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About us

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOQUSING PLC ("CSH", “Civitas” or

the “Company”) invests acress the UK in care-based
community housing and healthcare facilities for the
benefit of working age adults with leng-term care needs.
Since [PC in 2016, CSH has completed mcre than 120
individual transactions to build the largest portfolio of
its kind in the UK that has been independently valued at
£916 miilion.

The Company provides long-term community-based
homes for 4,295 tenants, acress 164 local authority areas
that are supported by 118 specialist care providers

and 16 Approved Providers. The delivery ¢of care in the
community is a primary government policy and cross
party policy of many decades aimed at enabling people
with long-term care needs to reside close to family and
friends and achieve more independent and fulfilled lives.
It delivers better personal outcomes and offers value

for money for the public purse that meets the costs of
the service. Residents, whose average age is 32 years,
typically reside in their adapted CSH community home
for many years and sometimes for their whole life.

As a result of making this provision available, CSH is able
to offer sharehclders the potential of stable, long-term
returns with progressive dividends whilst delivering
measurable social impact on a large scale. Following
sharehclder approval, the Company is ncw expanding
intc Scotland and Northern Ireland and will work with
organisations in receipt of public funding.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021
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What we do

Social Housing Pioneers Fund Qverview
CSH is a leading provider of care based community

housing in the UK T was established in 206 by the

founders of it [nvestinent Adviser, Clvitas Investmern:

Management Limited ("CIMY), from the long standing

conviciion that privete capital could play a vital and

ethical role in the delivery of homes within the zocal

housing sector

CS5d belleves that actess to a decent home is a basic
human righ! from which so much more can be achieved,
particularly for people who are living with a lile long
disalilizy. Witk millions of people stuck on housing
wallling st across the UK, or trapped in long =tay
Fospitals, CSH becarne the first pubbc company "o biing

large scale equity investment into the secior THRIELISICE Ln G TP P Pri 22 ) 8 Maich Z02°
bumers pre pr on 1 poblesl o cate

i & nefra s Glossary

Tre Company has the daal objectives ot achieving both
positive tinanclal returns and large scale measurable
soclal impact,
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How we performed

Financial highlights

as at 31 March

£915.6m 5.40p 108.30p £50.8m 5.80p  22.6yrs

Investment property Dividends declared IFRS NAV per Annualised Rent Roll: Pence Per Share Weighted Average
independent valyation  and paid in respect Ordinary share based upon £9156m  Earnings based on Unexpired Lease
(see note 15) of the year ended of real estate at the comprehensive Term
31March 2021 end of the year income and property
revaluations

Profit before tax ~ IFRS NAV per share IFRS NAV
£ million Pence E

2021 2021 o

2020 2020

] I
2019 2018 2019

EPRA EPS’ ' IERS property valuation ' Dividends declared
Pence £ million {Ordinary shares)
L Pence
2021 2021
TR TR i ' L% S
2020

e ———— ] ]
2019 2018
] ]
Annualised rent roll** Total shareholder return®  IFRS NAV increase since IPO*
£ million Percent Percent

2021 2021 T 2om

T See Ap 1 - Altemnatve Perf 1o these finanoal staternents for supporting workings.

* O an Ordinary shate held since launch (percentage rot annuaksed)

! Alterrative Performance Measures,

For repartng penods Starting on of after 1 January 2020, EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAY have been repiaced with three specific new measures See Appendx 1
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Key achievements

Operational highlights

- o W
619 properties £803.4 million 4,295 tenants based on long-
acquired invested with dependable term leases
accommodation signed with
16 Approved
Providers

oy

supported by across 164 Local
118 care Authorities
providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in their fourth annual
independent Social Impact Report on Civitas, noted that Civitas continues to be an
authentic impact investor according to [FC operating principles and is proactive in
its approach to asset management, taking well defined steps to improve the quality
of existing homes, especially in terms of improving environmental performance.

IERS and Portiolio NAV per share since [PO

iFRS NAY Porrtolio NAY
120
[IRR 8.53%]
15 PR
110
PR AR
105 e (R 8.54%)"
100 /
95
18 Nov 50 Sep ZTMar  3Jun 305ep 310ec  3tMar  30Jun  305ep F1Dec  3tMar  30Jdun  30Sep  31Dec  31Mar
2016 2017 2018 208 208 2018 2019 2019 2018 209 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021
3300 G323 10554 10533 10608 10653 jlangei} 7z 0723 'CYRS ‘07 E7 ez O8O o817 10830
L870 AAED 3R LTS ¥ AR s bev vRTA TRIT VHEn TRIS R4 MRTR v RERE
* Inernal rate af return calculation from PO based on issyance of shares, dvidends paid and IFRS/Portfolio NAV.
Share price performance (pence)
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Dear Shareholder
The COVID-18 pandemic has been with us fcr mcre than
a year and has created significant challenges across
society that have in turn been met by an extraordinary
respconse from many peopie, particularly front-line
workers. The Board gives its heartfelt thanks to the

slall al all ol uur pdrliners whose dedicaled efforls

have achieved:

e Continued very low incidence of COVID-19 across our
4,295 residents;

¢ High standards of care and management of homes;
and

e Ongoing delivery of asset management services for
the benefit of residents.

Financial Performance

1 am pleased to report a robust financial performance
with good rent recovery, as shown in the growth in
underlying operating cashftow. This reflects the work of
our Investment Adviser, Civitas [nvestment Management
("CIM"} and our partners, together with the Government
backed nature of our income which is supporting the
most vulnerable people in society.

During the period under review, our portiolio generated
rental income of £48.2 million, representing a 5.2%
increase over the corresponding period - a result of
indexation of rents and new properties purchased during
the period.

[FRS net asset value of the Company increased from 107.87
pence per ordinary share as at 31 March 2020 to 108.30
pence per crdinary share as at 31 March 2021

The Company has met the stated dividend target of 5.40p
per share for the year to 31 March 2021 and the Board has

set a new dividend target of 5.55p per share for the year
to 31 March 2022

100% dividend cover at
the year end on an EPRA
run-rate basis.**

= See Glossary for gefintions
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The Board is pleased to note the continued improved
performance of the share price. This allowed 250,000
shares 1o be sold from treasury on 24 March 2021 at a
price of 109.8 pence per share. Since the year end, the
balance of the shares held in treasury (565,000) were sold.
The Company no longer holds shares in Treasury.

During the year, there were six property acquisitions,
providing homes for a further 79 vulnerable adults,
including two higher-acuity state of the art facilities in
Wales. The drawdown of an £84.5m facility with M&G in
February 2021 has allowed ocur acquisition programme
to recommence since the period end, with 25 properties
purchased for a consideration of £19.5m, housing a
further 92 people with significant lifelong care needs

New Initiatives
The Board is pleased to note a number of new initiatives
that have been developed by CIM, which are set out
more fully within the Investment Adviser's Report, and
include the following:

s A strategic initiative to enhance the environmental
standing of the portfolio and to drive down our
carbon footprint and reduce energy costs;

o The launch of a real-time data system under the
“WebTerrier” brand to bring all properties fully online
with in-depth data access;

e With our administrator Link, implementing a system
within Yardi' to integrate a rent demand and
inveicing system; and

e An expansion of the CIM asset management team 1o
focus on the continued physical enhancement of the
properties in our portfolio.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUS\NG PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



éhgrmaﬁ;s Statement

Continued

Expansion into Advanced Homeless Provision

The Board is pleased to now be providing
accommueodation to several local authorities in London
which have identified the long-term need for adapted
specialist housing for homelessness provision, where
properties are designed to enable the delivery of

a significant level of care and support ("Advanced
Homeless Provision’). This is aimed tc break the cycle
of homelessness and offer the potential of a new start
for residents.

A commitment to Social Impact and ESG
Accompanying the financial results is the latest
independent Social Impact Report prepared by the
specialist consultancy The Gocod Economy ("TGE"). In

its report TGE confirms that the Company continues

to be “an authentic "impact investor™” according to

IFC Operating Principles”. It also highlighted that the
Company's portfolio generated a total Social Value of
£127.0 million, including £75.9 million of fiscal savings for
public budgets in the year to 31 March 2021

More broadly we continue to work closely with housing
associations, charitable and not-for-profit partners
("‘Approved Providers”) to assist in driving managernent
and governance standards. This includes the work cf
CIM in leading quarterly best practice seminars open to
all holders of the Company's leases, together with other
regulatory and sectcr influential entities and individuals.

We also maintain and develop new partnerships with
sector leading charities and seek tc ensure we are at the
forefront of maximising the impact of our market leading
position. The Board was pleased to support an additional
two charities this year focusing upon mental health and
the welfare of residents during the pandemic.

I am pleased that this year we continued to meet the
recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander Review
target of 33% women on Boards.

The Board is aware of the recommendations cf the Parker
Review and will take these into consideration as part of
its succession planning.

As noted above, the Board is pleased 10 report the
commencement of a market leading programme of
environmental enhancements and carbon reduction
to the portfolic with national provider, EON. This is
made possible by the national presence enjoyed by
the Company and will tead to reduced maintenance
and energy bills for tenants without placing any
additional funding obligations on the Ccmpany's
Approved Providers.

Credit Rating

The Company has recently secured an investment
grade A secured and A- unsecured credit rating from
Fitch Ratings. This in part reflects the strengths of

the Government suppornted eco-system in which the
Company's properties reside. This positive rating has
allowed CIM to commence the detailed examination of
issuance in the Sterling bond markets at what should
provide advantageous interest rates at longer tenures.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting is scheduled
10 be held on 22 September 2021 at the offices of
Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP, 100 Bishopsgate,
London EC2N 4AG at 2.00 pm. The Board looks ferward to
meeting shareholders. In due course, the notice of AGM
will be circulated in accordance with the requirernents of
the Company's Articles of Asscciation.

Due to the current COVID-19 outbreak, many companies
have either pestponed thelr AGMs or made aiternative
arrangements for conducting these meetings. We hope
that by 22 September 2021 the Company will be able to
hold its AGM in the usual manner. Hocwever, given the
uncertain nature of this situation, should the Company
need tec alter its AGM arrangements, it will communicate
these changes to shareholders through a regulatory
announcement This information will alsc be made
available on the Company's website, Shareholders

are advised to check the website to ensure they have
the most up-to-date information available regarding
the AGM.

Brexit

The Beard has considered the changing political and
economic envircnment in light of Brexit and does
not consider there to be any material impacts or risks
relevant to the Group.

12
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Chairman’s Statement

Continued

Outlook
It continues to be the case that there is a substantial
structural mismatch between the need for social housing
of all types and its availability - this is particularly so for
housing with care that is delivered by the private sector
withcut recourse to government grant or capital funding.

Civitas plays a pivotal role in investing responsible
capital on a substantial basis to provide quality social
homes for life. We continue to have excellent lcng-term
relationships across the sector which provides us with
the access to a substantial pipeline of opportunities with
a range of quality counterparties that Is in excess of the
Company's remaining debt facilities.

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

29 June 2021

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC |  REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
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Growth

Growing base of global investors

Civitas invests on behalf of a wide range of global, national and local investors seeking exposure to
sustainable long term income together with measurable social impact and high levels of ESG delivery.

Four Continents...




Amsterdam
Birmingham
Boston
Bradford
Bristol
Brussels
Chicage
Columbus
Denver
Douglas
Dublin
Edinburgh
Exeter

Fort Lauderdale
Frankfurt
Geneva
Glasgow

. Guernsey

¥ Heerlen
Hong Kong
Illinois
Jersey
Kuwait City
Liverpool
London

Los Angeles
Luxembourg
Melbourne
Montreal
Munich
New Jersey
New York
New Zealand
Newark
Oslc

Paris

Perth
Philadelphia
Richmond
Sacramento
San Francisco
Seattle

Seoul
Singapore
Smithfield
Sydney
Tokyo
Toronto

Vancouver
Windsor
Zurich

...52 Locations

Tunbridge Wells

Our strategy for grox_}\-r“t_ﬁ

Demand for the
accommodation provided
by Civitas is strong and
expected to remain so
over the long term. The
pandemic has further
evidenced the need for
safe and secure homes
for the most vulnerable
people in society

Civitas is a go-to partner
for an increasing range
of major vendors and
counterparties.

Civitas is the market leader

- with the largest portfolio

and deeply ingrained
relaticnships with care
providers, local authorities,

Approved Providers and
charities across the UK

DIV H LS JHOHS
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By UK Region
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Fitch Ratings

“AY 4N 7

High quality investment grade rating

Environmental Framework Signed Extensive CIM Recruitment Programme
Innovaiive approach to permanently reduce Asset Management
the Portfolio’s Carbon footprint Healthcare

Finance/Housing Benefi
Transactions
Investments

/4]

Digital Administration Advances + Extended Asset Management Resource
New real-time data systemns for asset inanagement Recruited highly experienced Directors o provide:
and billing platforms . Detailed control framework for counterparties
b within the CSH ponifolic
Adchtional oversight and direction of third party
property managemen: providers within the
physical environment




Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

Thankyou
“On behalf of the Board and CIM, we would like 10 say thank you to all
our partners who have continued to provide such high-quality care,

support and housing throughout the pandemic.”

Paul Bridge
CEOQ, Civitas Invesiment Management Limited

Paui Bridge, CEC, Socizl Housing Cietas
Investrment Management Lirmted

Introduction
Throughout the COVID-18 period CSH has focused upon
the following prionties:

Overview of Results

(CSH is a market leader in providing much-needed long-
term housing with care in the United Kingdom and leading
the charge for ethical invesiment inn the sector. These

annual results demonstrate a number of key achisvements: ¢ Ensure measurable positive social outcomes:

Continued strong resilience to the COVID-19 pandemic.
operationally, financially, and most importantly on a
human level

Rents indexed at CPl or CPI+l and coliected as
expected with no disruption from COVID-19;

A growing, market-leachng por:folio of high quality.
medium to high acuity properties:

High levels of care provided 10 each and every
resident, on average 43 hours per week;

Award winning approach to ESG and to reducing
carbon emissions in collaboration with EON;

Expansion and diversification of counterparties
and into accommodation for those with advanced
homelessness requirements;

New debt facility drawn down from M&G:

A high-quality investment credit rating from Fitch
Ratings of A secured and A- unsecured which will
allow access to broader long-term funding markets;

An investment adviser whose team continues 1o
grow with a mix of kigh-level skills from real estate.
fund management, social housing, care and asset
management unrivalled in terms of expertise in

the sector;

EPRA run rate dividend cover at 100%, expected

to increase further fellowing the subsegquent
deployment of M&G debt facilines:

A progressive dividend policy. On track to meet target
of 5.4p for the year 1o 31 March 2021 and targeting a
dividend of 5.55p to 31 March 2022

[FRS NAV increased 10 108.30 pence per Ordinary Share
and

Ongoeing Charges Ratic’ of 1.37%.

# Alternative Performance Measure

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2621

Ensuring full support 1s given o our counterparties

in manaoing their response to the pandemic and
ensuring every resident continued to receive the care
they need and deserve:

Ensure business continuity: Maintaining and
improving the portfclio whilst ensuring the safety of
our team through home working and managing a
socially distanced return to the office;

Achieve financial objectives: Grow rental income.
deliver strong operational cash flow. meet dividend
targets. drive dividend cover and enhance asset values;
and

Deliver social value: Maintain our evidenced

based approach with independent analysis of the
positive impact and cost savings generated by the
Company's portfolio and our broader activities in the
sector, along with a particular focus on the active
implementation of the carbon reduction programme.

CIM is a leading impact
investment manager
that is dedicated to
achieving long-term
sustainable returns for
global investors.



Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

Business continuity and safety

The primary concern during the continuing pandemic
has been to ensure the safety and resilience of the sector,
and the ongoing maintenance and improvement cf the
Company's portfolio.

We have throughout the year continued to see very low
incidences of COVID-19 amongst residents. The type of
personalised care that is being provided, the bespoke
nature of the buildings adapted for care use and the
focussed and efficient response from our partners

has resulted in a high resilience to the virus. Coupled
with this our residents are young, with an average age
of 32, living in self-contained homes and community
environments. Our approved provider partners have
continued 10 report excellent levels of compliance with
health and safety measures.

CSH, through CIM, took the following measures to
support its partners during the pandermic:

« Established fortnightly contact calls with key
approved providers;

» Used the approved provider network established
three years ago as a forum to share best practice on
responses tc COVID-19 and working practices; and

e Lliaised with local authorities t¢ assist them in housing
homeless pecple who as part of the Government's
response 10 the pandermnic were required to be housed
immediaiely under the “Bring Everyone I policy, C8H
continues to provide 29 bed spaces in Islington and is in
discussion with a number of cther local authorities who
wish to house homeless peopie in longer stay housing
to ensure they receive the care and support they require.
This has led to the further commissioning of a specialist
homelessness facility in Golders Green by Barnet
Council for 43 bed spaces with advanced support.

CIM relocated to home working with full technological
support and video conferencing in March 2020. The office
was made COVID-19 compliant and a phased return to
working in the office was achieved in Septemnber 2020.
The further lockdown was observed and a further phased
return to the office achieved in April 2021.

Overall Market Context

The social housing sector on a macro level continues to
demonstrate significant demand for all forms of subsidised
housing. The ability of the largest appreved providers to
deliver social housing through cross subsidy of selling
open market homes has to some extent been constrained
by the additional costs of health and safety post Grenfell
and the costs of removing cladding. These costs do not
apply tc the providers with which we wcrk as the portfolio
is low rise and without over-building cladding and the
providers do not undertake development.

The Government White Paper cn the future of social
housing called "The Charter for Social Housing Residents’
was published in November 2020 and proposed the
current regulatery system was maintained namely that
the Regulator of Social Housing will continue to oversee
the governance and viability of approved providers and
is likely to have an enhanced role in overseeing consumer
regulation. Post Grenfell there has been a view that the
interests of residents have not always been sufficiently
heard and included in the management ¢f general needs
social heusing. Homes England will continue to oversee
government investment into social housing.

The implications of the Charter for Social Housing
Residents are likely to be positive for housing with care
as the nature of relationship the Approved Provider
(AP) has with residents and the care provider is far
more involved than in general needs housing. This has
been reflected in the performance of the RPs during
the pandemic with high levels of compliance and rent
collection and low levels of COVID-19. CIM has been
assisting in ensuring residents, voices are heard through
the commissicning of independent surveys referred to
later in this report.

The Government has recently anncunced additional
funding for new housing. However, its key priority in
terms of providing capital support is through the 5%
mortgage guarantee scheme ta enable first time buyers
with a 5% deposit t¢ purchase their first home. For the
specialist supperted housing provided by CSH. the
private sector will continue to play a vital role.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC _-I- REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2027




Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

New legislation on building standards and planning
are, at the time of writing, being enacted with the aim
of improving the quality of new build residential homes
as well as enabling the level of house building tc rise
with the primary government focus being upon home
ownership. It is also likely that Leasehold reform will be
enacted to establish more rights for those purchasing
new build homes. It is unlikely that this legislation will
have an impact on CSH as the portfolic comprises low
rise, freehold traditional construction homes with no
cladding and we do not undertake new development
within the Civitas portfolio.

Specialist supported housing has a long provenance with
the first significant long stay hospital closure programme
being launched in the 1990s with a view to ensuing that
everyone with a learning disability or other substantial
care need could live within their own community in
suitably adapted homes with care support.

As has been repeatedly demonstrated the sccial
benefits experienced by residents and their families of
community-based care housing for life are substantial
and this is described in more detail in the most

recent independent reports by The Good Econemy
incorporating the Social Prcfit Calculator. It has also
been long established by Government and independent
sources that the cost of care and housing against remote
institutional care is considerably reduced often by a
factor of mere than half.

A key part of the rationale for providing housing with
care has always been that it significantly improves the
health and social outcomes cf those who benefit, and

it is more cost-effective than the alternatives. Important
further evidence of the continued efficacy of this
argument was provided by Mencap in its 2021 report,
“Tea, Smiles and Empty Promises: Winterbourne View,
and a decade of failures - a collection of family stories”

In its report Mencap found that:

s Many people (over 50%) (with long-term care needs)
live with elderly parents, who worry about what will
happen to their children when they ¢an no langer
care for them;

s Over 3,000 pecple with a learning disability are
currently placed in inpatient units, miles away from
their family, often for a long time;

e 82% of local authorities say they have a shortage of
suitable housing for adults with a learning disability
and 67% say that it has become more difficult for
adults with a learning disability to have their housing
needs met; and

¢ Due to this lack of appropriate local housing and the
support ¢ptions that go with it, many people with a
learning disability do not get a choice about where
they live or who they live with. Too often they are
moved intc accommodation far away from family and
friends, especially if they have complex needs.

CIVITAS 5OCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

Within March
4,535

10 years on from Winterbourne View:

the human rights scandol continues

ArtuinanTon

2021
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Financial Review
Rental income in the pericd grew to £47.8 mullion. a 4%
increase over the corresponding year (31 March 2020
£459 million) with annuahsed rental income of £30.8
million at 31 March 2021

This increase has been generated as a result of new
investrnents made 1in the perod. on rrack ‘ndexation

of rents and the effect of rental income on properties
purchased prior mo the period, being included for the full
welve months.

A fair value gain on investmen: properties of £5.5 million
was recorded 1n “he period and underlying operational
cash flow increased strongly to £36.1 rullion® (31 March
2020: £32.9 million} adjusted for non-cash 1tems and
reflecung strong cost control,

Earnings per share were 5.80 pence for the twelve-mornth
perniod compared to 606 pence for the full year 1o 31 March
2020. This movement 35 as result of a comparatively lower
valuation gain compared to March 202C due ‘o low CPI
rates during the vear and increased finance costs, EPRA
earnings per share were 433 pence over the twelve-mornth
periocd compared o 4.63 pence for the fall year to 31 March
2020. EPRA earnings per share s calculated after removing
oy change in fair valie of investmen! property.

The Company paid one dividend of 1.325 pence (from the
prior period) and three of 1350 pence during the period
{with a further 2350 pence pald after the year end) fully in

* Gross of 8 £100m cans.derar or payment made v the ordinar, <carse af rves'ment r respect o
acquinng acdhianal -ental ncomre fram rew Budd facltes in Wales, competisn 67 which was
anfcurcec Ty RNS on 24 Avgust 2020 Frem a echnicat perspecnive, the consiceratian has beer
classed as a3 lease ngentive mather than 3 capudal tem in accardance with accourting slargarzs
1AS A0 and FRS 16 eases) sn eduning stated oparanrg ash fow anae roressing stated wade
recevases This refler’s e E100m payment beng -rade r respect ofthe 3cqu snon of addinenal
rental mcarme unger an exist ~g lease rather than an entrely new property parchase
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line with, the distnbution rarget of 5.4p announced for the
year to 31 March 2021 Our priority s to reach a fully covered
dividend as scon as possible and we are pleased 1o note
that the EPRA run rate dividend cover at 3. March 2021 was
100%. The actual dividend cover for the year to 31 March
2021 was 91.6% compared to 87.4% as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 Marech 2027, the [FRS net asset value of the Company
was 108.3C pence per share, a slight increase on the 107.87
pence per share at 31 March 2020. Together with the
dinidends of 5375 pence paid in the period this gives a
total return since [PO of 26.48% on an (FRS basis and 39.9%
on a Portfol.o basis

The Ongoing Charges Rano', reflecting totwal costs
expressed as a percentage of the average net asset value
over the twelve-month period. was 1.37% in the periad
compared to 1.36% 1n “he year to 31 March 2020.

The portiolio was independently valued on an Individual
[FRS asset basis by JLL at £915.6 million as a1 31 March 2021
reflecting a net ininal yield of 5.24%. This compares 10 an
average purchase yield of 5.84% (prior to purchase costs)
and reflects the ability of the Company to use its scale
and market position 10 buy well often off market, and
generally avoid taking part In auctions.

The acquisition programme has continued post year
end with the acquusizion of 15 supported living and

care facilities in Scuth Wales for a total consideration of
£10.9 mullion and the acquisition of 10 supporied hving
properties across Hertordshire Sssex. Suffolk and Wales
for a total consideration of £8 6 mitllion.

# Avernat ve Pesfarmance Measure
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

Future Proofing

We are, and always will be, an active manager of the
portfolio and undertake property assessments on a
reguiar basis with our approved provider partners

and surveyors to determine whether properties are
achieving an optimal cutcome. We have expanded our
asset management team with senior individuals from the
real estate and care sectors to ensure we have a sector
leading approach to capital works and enhancements.

We continue to invest carefully in order tc expand
properties and to ensure that they are as future procfed
as possible. This might include small adaptations ¢
enable a building to function better for an approved
provider or a care provider and this modest investment is
typically above and beyond the repair and maintenance
obligations in the lease.

We also undertake reviews to ensure that each property
is working in an optimal manner within the overall sector
eco-systern in terms of interacticn with the local authority
as well as the approved provider and the care provider.

To complement this work, we have upgraded our asset
management software, which enables us to monitor
building, investment, and performance on a live basis
with direct access to all key counterparties,

Now that we have established a substantial pertfolio,
we have taken opportunities to move certain properties
between approved providers to promote diversification
and efficiencies, based cn lease assignments on the
same lease terms.

This action is taken where a particular approved provider

has for example a strong relationiship with a particular
local authority that facilitates engagement or where

we can achieve concentrations that assist approved
providers in undertaking maintenance and repairs and
also to bring together properties that deliver high acuity

care with approved providers that are particularly skilled

in working with such residents and care providers.

We will also respond 1o requests from approved
providers who might themselves want to reduce or
reshape their geographic coverage so that they can
become more efficient and have a business that is more
easily managed and can better meet the requirements
set by the RSH.

The Portfolio — Rental Income

The annualised rental income as at 31 March 2021 increased to £50.8 million and this is expected to increase further as
additional indexation is applied and the balance of the existing debt is invested.

Rental income is generated from leases with 16 approved providers.

Annualised rent roll' (%)

1.0
[:3]
|00

1
1.2\ |

il

Aucklanc
Falcon
BaST
Inclysion

l Westrmereland

Encircle

Trinity

Pivatal

I Harbour Light
a Chrysalis
New Walk

My Space

IKE

Hilldale

Blue Sgquare

Qualites Housing?

1 As ot 31 March 2021
2 Qualitas Housing accounts for G02%

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

Market Value (%)

Auckland

Falcon

* Inclusion

Westrngreland

5
g Truuty
S LS
bac:H '?f Enarcle

Prvctal

Chrysals
New Walk

My Space
Hilidale

Blue Square

Qualtas Housing

£915.6m %

23

1BUdIY 2D Avals oy



Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

Portfolio Characteristics
The key features of the CSH portfolioc can be summarised
as follows:

e Fully converted and specially adapted for care use;

s High number of care hours: 43 hours a week on
average;

s Median rents tested/compared against market
equivalent,

e Properties well located within the community and
with commissicner support;

o Over one third of the portfolio on back-to-back 25-year
leases with care providers mirroring the obligations
in the lease to approved providers;

s An own front door policy; and

e Cver cne third of properties bought when new,
without development or forward funding risk.

The high quality of the Company's portfolio reflects the
ability of CIM to source off market transactions through
its extensive network of care provider reiaticnships, with
the aim of achieving value growth over time.

Building characteristics

CSH has 619 properties across 164 local authority areas.

The average building size comprises 7 bed spaces and are
either stand-alone houses or apartment blocks typicalty

of between 10 and 15 flats with individuai front doors. The
nature of community-pased housing with care is best
delivered by acquiring traditional properties in traditional
streets near 1o cormmunity facilities and local Infrastructare.

As with all properties CSH acquires, a full independent
condition survey is carried out prior to acquisition. As a
result, over £500m of transactions have been rejected as
it did not meet the Ccmpany's standards with regards to
either the rent levels, building location, layout/suitability,
or reputation of the vendor.

Where a building proceeds to acquisition a full condition
report specifying all works that must be carried out at the
vendor's cost is undertaken. This may inciude bespoke
adaptations for the resident, health and safety works

and environmental enhancements to improve thermal
efficiency. These works will then be carried out and
inspected by a separate independent surveying practice
before final handover

All of the portfolio is traditional construction with no
systern-built properties or over-puilding cladding and
is property suitable for various types of community use
and accommeodation.

Overview of activities of CIM

CIM has undertaken additignal recruitment over the
last 12 months attracting additionat high calibre senior
professionals from Healthcare, Asset Management,
Finance, Transactions and Social Housing and
Welfare. This has enabled CIM to bring significant
additional added value to CSH through a range of new
initiatives including;

1. New M&G Facility

In February 2021, the Company secured a new debt
facility with a new lender M&G, for £84.5m to support the
ongoing acquisition of further high-quality properties.

M&G debt facility Terms

;furity Assets

Facility size £84,550,000
Term 7 years
le_rmination date 2l lanuary 2028

275bps margin (floating) ¥ 3-month

Cost

libor swap rate (314bps)
LTV 55% {event of defauit covenant)
ICR Projected Interest cover for the

next 12 months =250%

2. Fitch Ratings

CIM worked with Fitch Ratings on an intensive ground up
due diligence process, which led to a leading "A” secured
and “A-" unsecured rating for the Company, which
compares very well with a selecticn of well-established
real estate companies.

The rating has opened up the Company's access to
broader longer term funding markets and offers the
potential for a material increase in tenure of facilities
with competitive pricing for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders,
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

3. New Bespoke Dedicated Property

Management platforms
“WebTerrier”
CIM has implemented a dedicated integrated asset
management platform “WebTerrier” to enable real
time interaction with all £19 properties to include an
ongoing monitoring programme. The cloud-based asset
management scftware is leveraged to monitor:

e Works;

» Rentreviews;

¢ Renewals;

e Adaptions;

« Compliance and health and safety; and
« Portfolic management

“Yardi”

CIM has implemented with Link an integrated rent
demand and invoicing system to support CSH.
This allows:

¢ Integration of invoices and receipts into the books
and records for CSH; and

« Scope for further autcmation of rent receipts and
provision of debtor balances

Social Impact and Social Value

The Company's latest independent report from The Good
Economy was published today and provides details of
CSH's portfolio and the continued success in delivering
measurable social impact. Findings include:

1. 33% of CSH's 619 properties have been brought into
the social housing sector for the first time.

2. CSH's regular engagement with its Approved
Providers (APs) tc monitor the quality of its stock
continued through the COVID-18 pandemic.

3. Improvement works have enhanced the energy
efficiency of homes, with 99.92% cf homes with an EPC
rating of A-E.

4, CSH's homes continue to serve vuinerable individuals
and play a significant role in improving resident
wellbeing, particularly when individuals are coming
out of higher-acuity facilities.

8. 3Social value analysis revealed that. overall, the
portfolio generates £127 millicn of social value per
year, including fiscal savings to public budgets of
£75.9 million per year.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

Environmental, Social and Governance

Earlier this year, the Board of CSH set out its commitment
tCc a continuous improvement process in its approach

to Environmental, Sccial and Governance (ESG)
integration. CIM is responsible for the implementation
of the commitment t¢ integrate ESG considerations in its
investment strategy.

Owver the last year, we have engaged with ESG rating
agencies such as GRESB {formerly Global Real Estate
Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital
Internaticnal), Sustainalytics, and S&P Global. C§8H
achieved a strong B score following the GRESB Public
Disclosure Assessment 2020 compared with the peer
group average score of C. CSH is now in the 2™ position
within its Comparison Group (UK Residential). GRESB is
an investor driven global ESG framework, and the next
phase is to focus on full participation in GRESE Real Estate
Assessment. CSH has an ESG Risk Rating score of 14.1
{Low Risk) on Sustainalytics which measures how well
companies manage ESG issues that are maost material to
their business. We are working towards improving the
current CSH MS3CI ESG rating of B and have maintained
CSH's accreditaticn as an impact investor under
Internationa! Finance Corporation (IFC) Principles.

CSH is an Eariy Adopter of the "Sustainability Reporting
Standard for Social Housing” which has been developed
through a collaboration between hcusing associations,
banks and investors,

CIM has also heen engaged in an Equity Investor Impact
Reporting Project to produce the sector standard impact
measurement approach for equity investments in social
and affordable housing. The project aim is to develop a
framework to inform the engagement process between
investors, intermediaries, and investees. It will alsc help
articulate, measure, and actively manage positive social
impact contributions. It is envisaged that publication/
launch will take place in summer 2021.

4. Environmental: Carbon Reduction/

Energy Cost Savings
We have been actively engaged with our counterparties to
assess the environmental impact of the portfolic and from
this t¢ begin an active programme of carbon reduction.

Initially we completed four pilot prejects to establish
potential cost and efficacy of the initiatives. The
deployment of low carhon technologies at the properties
reduced the carbon {octprint cf the dwellings by up to
up to 67% and will generate annual energy cost savings
of up to 57% for the bill payer. [n addition, the housing
providers will benefit from export tariff income generated
from any excess energy generated by sclar panels. This
will contribute to reducing operaticnai costs.
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continued

In addition, we have impioved the environmental
perfcrmance of the portfclio with §9.92% of CSH homes
meeting the Government's minimum energy efficiency
standard of EPC grade E (up from 98% in March 2020).
Work is underway tc achieve 100% compliance by the end
of the Company's Q1 2021, which relates to one property.

Following the success of these pilots, we are pleased to
have agreed a significant national framework agreement
with E.ON Energy Installation Services, a part of EON

UK group - a leading energy supplier and pioneer in
sustainable solutions - for reducing carbon emissions.
The collaboration has identified an initial batch of 55
properties that will be upgraded with various forms of
energy saving measures including, solar panels with
storage batteries, external wall insulation, cavity wall
insulation, loft insulation and air source heat pumps.

The objective, drawing upon available Government
grants for elernents of the investment is to achieve at
least a 25% carbon reducticn across these properties and
for this to lead tc material energy cost savings for the bill
payer and the public purse. [t will move the 55 properties
from EPC rating E to D and above. The current split is 52%
A-C and 47.9% D/E.

We expect works to commence over the coming months
following site surveys and for a further tranche of
properties tc be selected thereafter creating a rolling
programme of carbon reduction.

The goal for the Company and indeed the sector is to
achieve carbon neutrality for which increased support in
the form of grants from Government will be required.

Social: Charities
Crisis

For the last four years CSH has supported Britain's
biggest homelessness charity. Crisis and CIM regularly
collaborate on the emerging knowledge required to
undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These

are vital 1o enable people who have been atrisk of, or
experienced homelessness, to rebuild their lives but
require considerable care and support in addition to

a safe home in the community. Qur case studies on
Golders Green, as cutlined in The Good Economy's latest
CSH Social Impact Report, and Holloway Road in the
2020 interim report, provide real examples of these type
of schemes.

Choir With No Name

With support frem the Company, this charity now runs
five choirs acress the country for those who are in need.
The charity has also provided team building events for
the CIM team.

House of St Barnabas and Women in Social Héusing
CSH continues to work closely with and support these
social housing charities.

Care Workers Charity and Little Sprouts

CSH has developed new relationships with these
charities: the first supports care workers and the second
provides meals for those with mental health issues who
have been affected by the pandemic.

Market position

CSH continues to lead the sector and CIM has headlined
a range of conferences in healthcare, social housing and
Real Estate We have featured in many Investors forums
and conferences; we continue our position as a leading
member of EPRA.

There has been considerable interest from local and
national media and the financial press and a range of
articles which can be found on the Company's website
(www.civitassocialhousing.com).

Counterparties
CSH works with 16 approved provider partners and
shareholders have approved an extension to its mandate
tc work with a wider group of requlated counterparties,
such as the NHS and registered charities. The primary
reason for this is that specialist supported housing is
managed by a range of counterparties under different
reqgulatory regimes.

The Social Housing Family CIC (TSHF CIC)

As previously reperted, Auckland Homes Sclutions was
the founding member of TSHF CIC in September 2019.
Since then, Auckland has benefited from the additional
infrastructure and skills TSHF CIC has been abie to
provide to enhance its business including recruiting

a new executive team, growing its portfolio in an
orderly way.

In August 2020, the CIC was joined by Qualitas Housing. a
Community Benefit Scciety dedicated 10 management of
housing with care.

It is anticipated that other organisations will join TSHF
CIC in due course.
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Regulation

CSH always welcomes the engagement ¢f the RSH with
our approved provider counterparties. Both CIM and the
Company support the work the RSH has undertaken in
making recommendations for improvements in the sector
over the last five years. The RSH continues to engage with
all approved providers, including those with which the
Company maintains a relationship.

[t is clear that the RSH will rightly publish infcrmation
as to the improvements it wishes to see and whenever
this occurs CSH will provide support to its partners

as appropriate.

CSH, through CIM, has been at the forefront of addressing
the RSH's concerns about the long-term risk planning of
approved providers by piocneering the introduction of
caps and collars on the indexation of rents of petween
1% and 4%, plus force majeure clauses which set out
appropriate steps in the unlikely event of a formal
change in central Government peolicy and funding. We
will continue to work with our counterparties and the
RSH to ensure that CSH fulfils its intenticns as one of
the largest owners of SSH in the country to enable the
sector to evolve and 1¢ maintain the improvements
already made.

Outlook

As the vaccine roll-out continues and a greater degree of
normality returns what is ¢lear is the ongoing need for

a significant increase in the supply of all forms of social
housing. It is clear that the Government recognises the
vital role that both the public and private sectors working
together will play in meeting the UK's housing need and
in particular in the provisicn of housing with care.

The evidence is overwhelming that housing the most
vuinerable individuals in our society in proper homes in
the community is of paramount importance and not only
transforms peopie's lives but alsc is more cost-effective
for the public purse.

CSH sees compelling oppcrtunities to invest further

in this sector. A substantial pipeline of over £200m

has been developed with long standing and trusted
counterparties and a good start made on deploying the
recently acquired debt facility from M&G. The pipeline
leaves open the prospect of future equity raises subject to
market conditions and investors’ views.

We remain cocmmitted to generating growth and
shareholder value through ethical investing. We lcok to
the future with confidence.

Civitas Investment Manageniént Limited
Investment Adviser

29 June 2021
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability
The business model of the Company is to provide long-
term suitable homes for individuals with care needs;
acting in a sustainable manner is key to achieving

this aim. Properties that are owned by the Company
are tailored to meet the future needs of the tenants
and, where required, are actively asset managed

1o provide leng-term functicnality and value t¢ the
wider community.

Environment

During the investment due diligence phase, the Company
looks closely at the envircnmental impact of each
potential acquisition, and encourages a sustainable
approach for maintenance and upgrading properties.
Through ccllaborating with specialist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expects from
each investment in the care-based housing sector is
adopted by other companies in the sector.

Once within the portfolio, the properties ¢of the Company
are actively asset managed, and the Investment Adviser
assesses whether there are opportunities to improve the
environmental efficiency of the properties, in additicn to
other asset management initiatives factcring heavily in
addition to other asset management initiatives. Further
details can be found on pages 52 to 57.

The Board has considered the requirements to disclose
the annual quantity of emissions; further detail on this is
included in the Report of the Directors on page 71

Diversity

The Company does nct have any employees or office
space and, as such, the Company does not operate a
diversity policy with regards to any administrative and
management functicns.

Whilst recognising the importance of diversity in the
boardrecom, the Company does nct consider it to be

in the interest of the Group and its shareholders to set
prescriptive diversity criteria cr targets. The Board has
adopted a diversity policy in respect of appointments

to be made to the Board and will continue to monitor
diversity, taking such steps as it considers appropriate
to maintain its position as a meritocratic and diverse
business. The Board's objective is to maintain effective
decision-making, including the impact of successicn
planning. All Board appointments will be made on merit
and have regard to diversity regarding factors such as
gender, ethnicity, skills, background and experience. See
Corporate Governance Statement on page 78.
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The Board comprises three male and two female non-
executive Directors. Throughout the year, the Company
complied with the Hampton-Alexander Review's target
of a minimum 33% representation of women on FTSE 350
boards.

The Board is aware of the recommendations of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
part of the Board's successicn planning. See Corporate
Geovernance Statermnent on page 76.

The beards of directors cf the Company's subsidiaries,
which are nen-operational, each comprise up tc one
female and four male directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
it now falls within the scope of the Mcdern Slavery Act
2015. The Company will publish a slavery statement in
due course.

The Board is satistied that, to the best of its knowledge,
the Company's principal advisers, which are listed in
the Company Information section, comply with the
provisions of the UK Mcdern Slavery Act 2015.

The Company's business is solely in the UK and therefore
is considered tc be low risk with regards to human
rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's properties enable the provision of care
to some of the maost vulnerable people in the community,
ensuring safe and secure accommodation, tailored to
meet individual care needs. The Company has increased
the provision of care-based housing. bringing new
supply to the sector and providing homes to over 4,200
pecple. All of the Coempany's properties enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local jobs and
helping to support local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
Tequirement to separately report on this area.

The Investment Adviser is an equal opportunities
employer who respects and seeks to empower each
individual and the diverse cultures, perspectives, skills
and experiences within its workforce.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors’ overarching duty is to act in good faith and
in a way that is most likely to promote the success of the
Company as set out in section 172 of the Companies Act
2006. In deing so, Directors must take into consideration
the interests of the various stakeholders of the Company.
the impact the Company has on the community and the
environment, take a long-term view on consequences

of the decisions they make, as well as aim to maintain a
reputation for high standards of business conduct and
fair treatment between the members of the Company.

Fulfilling this duty naturally supports the Company

in achieving its investment objective and helps to
ensure that all decisions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way. [n accordance with the requirements
of the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018, the Company explains how the Directors have
discharged their duties under section 172 below.

To ensure that the Directors are aware of, and
understand, their duties, they are provided with the
pettinent information when they first join the Board

as well as receiving regular and ongoing updates and
training on the relevant matters. Induction and access

to training is provided for new Directors. They also

have continued access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, and when deemed necessary, the
Directors can seek independent professional advice. The
Schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board, as well as
the Terms of Reference of its committees, are reviewed
regularly and further describe Directors’ responsibilities
and obligations and include any statutory and reguiatory
duties. The Audit and Management Engagement
Committee has the responsibility for the ongoing review
of the Companhy's risk management systems and internal
controls and, to the extent that they are applicable, risks
related to the matters set out in section 172 are included
in the Company's risk register and are subject to periedic
and regular reviews and monitoring.

Long-term Success
The strategy of the Company can be found on pages

38 to 43. Any deviaticn from, or amendment to, that
strategy is subject to Board and, if necessary, shareholder
approval The Company's business model, which can be
found on page 38, provides that the Board consider the
long-term consequences of its investment decisions.

The Company grants long term leases, generally 20 years
in length, t0 its tenants. The Company seeks to maintain
lasting relationships with its tenants and supports its
tenants in adapting properties toc meet their needs.
particularly improving and enhancing properties. Further
details can be found on pages 52 1o 57.

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered to
comprise its sharehoiders, its employees, its customers,
its suppliers as well as the wider community in which the
company operates and impacts. The Company is different
in that as an investment trust it has no employees and,

in terms of suppliers, the Company receives professional
services from a number of different providers, principal
among them being the Investment Adviser.

Through regular engagement with its stakehclders,

the Beard aims to gain a rounded and balanced
understanding of the impact of its decisions. In the main,
that information is gathered in the first instance by the
Investment Adviser and communicated to the Board in its
regular quarterly meetings and otherwise as required.

The impertance of stakeholders is taken intc account

at every Board meeting, with discussions invelving
careful consideration of the longer-term consequences
of any decisions and their implications for stakeholders.
The fellowing section explains why these stakeholders
are considered of importance to the Company and the
actions taken to ensure that their interests are taken into
account by the Board as part of its decision making.
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Section 172 {1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

How we wigage

Continued
Cur swksholders Ky areas of imereat
Shareholders s Current and future
Continued financial performance
shareholder » Strategy and business
support and model
engagement are Corporate Tnance
critical to the Tporate governanc
existence of the e ESG performance and
business and the sustainability
delivery of the « Dividend

long-term strategy
of the business.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and places great
importance on communication with the shareholders of

the Company. The Board is responsible for the content of
communication regarding corporate issues and for communicating
its views to shareholders. The Board aims to ensure that
shareholders are provided with sufficient information to understand
the risk/reward balance to which they are exposed by the holding
of shares in the Company. Active engagement with shareholders

is carried out throughout the year and regular communication is
undertaken to ensure that they understand the performance of the
business. The Board is committed to maintaining open channels of
communication and to engaging with shareholders in a manner
which they find most meaningful, in order to gain an understanding
of the views of shareholders. These channels include:

Annual General Meeting — The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voting and participation from shareholders at the AGM,
at which shareholders have the opportunity to meet the Directors and
Investment Adviser and to address questions to themn directly. The
Investment Adviser attends the AGM and provides a presentation on
the Group's performance and its future cutlook The Company values
any feedback and questions it may receive from shareholders ahead
of, and during the AGM and takes action, as appropriate.

For the 2021 AGM, which will be held on 22 September 2021, the
Board hopes that shareholders will be able to attend in person.
Arrangements for the AGM will be released in August and will take
account of the latest Government guidance and advice.

Publications — The Annual Report and Half-Year Results are

made available on the Company's website. These reports provide
shareholders with a clear understanding of the Group's portfolio and
financial position. In addition to the Annual and Half-Year Reports,
regularly updated information is available on the Company website,
including quarterly factsheets, key policies, the investor relations
policy and details of the investment propenty portfolio. Feedback
and/or questions the Company receives from the shareholders help
the Company evolve its reporting aiming to render the reports and
updates transparent and understandable

Shareholder meetings - Shareholders are able o meet with the
Investment Adviser and the Company’s Joint Brokers throughout the
year and the Investment Adviser provides information on the Company
on the Company's website. Feedback from all shareholder meetings
with the Investment Adviser and/or the Joint Brokers, and shareholders’
views, are shared with the Board on a regular basis. The Chairman and
other members of the Board, including the Senior Independent Director
and Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement Comurnittee,

are available to meet with shareholders to understand their views on
govermnance and the Company's performance where they wish to do so.
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Continued

Our stakaholders Kny arsas of interest How we engage

Shareholders « Current and future Shareholder concerns — The Board gives due consideration to any
Continued financial performance corporate governance rmatters raised by shareholders. In the event
shareholder s Strategy and business shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns with the Board or the
support and model Investment Adviser, they are welcome to write to the Company at the

engagerment are registered office address set out on page 143. Other members of the
critical to the Board are also available to shareholders if they have concerns that
existence ofthe  ® ESGperformance and have not been addressed through the normal channels.

business and the sustainability

s Corporate governance

delivery of the ¢ Dividend Investor relations updates — The Board regularly monitors
long-term strategy the shareholder profile of the Company. With the majority of
of the business. shareholders being a combination of institutional investors and

private client brokers, the Board receives regular updates on
investors' views and attitudes from the Company’s Brokers and

the Investment Adviser. During the year. several investor update
meetings were held between the shareholdets and one or more of
the Chairman, the Investment Adviser and the Brokers. The results

of these meetings were reported to the Board as part of the formal
reporting undertaken by both the Investment Adviser and the
Brokers. Included in the Report of the Directors on page 7t are details
of substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis {sometimes weekly) and at Board meetings,
the Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on

the share trading activity, share price performance and any
shareholders’ feedback, as well as an update from the Company's
Investor Relations adviser, Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser
on any publications or comments by the press. To gain a deeper
understanding of the views of its shareholders and potential
investors, the Investment Adviser maintains regular contact with
them and also undertakes investor roadshows. Any relevant
feedback is taken into account when Directors discuss any possible
fundraising or the future dividend policy.

T A
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Qur yiakaholders Kay arees of intermst How we angege

Investment e Current and future The management of the Cormpany's portfolio is delegated to the
Adviser financial performmance Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance with
Holding the e Shared commercial the Company's objectives and policies. At each Board meeting,

Company's shares

offers investors
an investment
vehicle through
which they can
obtain exposure
to the Company’'s
ponfolio of
properties. The
Investment
Adviser's
performance

is critical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver its
investment
strategy and
meet its objective
to provide
shareholders
with an attractive
level of income,

objectives with the

Company
Operaticnal
excellence
Long-term
development of
its business and
resources

ESG performance and

sustainability

representatives from the Investment Adviser are in attendance to
present reports to the Directors covering the Company’s current and
future activities, portfolio of assets and its investrment performance
over the preceding period.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with

the Investment Adviser is crucial as the Board and the Investment
Adviser both aim to continue to achieve consistent long-termn
returns in line with the Company’s investment objective. Important
components of the culture of both the Company and the Investment
Adviser are:

s operating in a fully supportive, co-operative and open
environment and maintaining ongoing communication with the
Board between formal meetings;

s encouraging open discussion with the Investment Adviser,
allowing time and space for original and innovative thinking;

s recognising that the interests of stakeholders and the Investment
Adviser are for the most part weil aligned, adepting a tone of
constructive challenge;

e drawing on Board members' individual experience and
knowledge to support the Investrnent Adviser in its monitoring of

together with and engagement with other stakeholders; and
the potential for e willingness to make the Board members’ experience availabie
capital growth. to support the Investment Adviser in the scund long-term
deveicpment of its business and resources, recognising that the
long-term health of the Investment Adviser is in the interests of
shareholders in the Company.
Other service s Current and future The Company's main functions are delegated 1o a number of
provider financial performance service providers, including the Administrator. the Company
In order to e Shared commercial Secretary. the AIFM, the Registrar, the Corporate Brokers and the
function as an objectives with the Depositary, each engaged under separate contracts. The Board
investment trust Company maintains regular contact with its key external providers and
with a premium o tional receives regular reporting from them, both through the Board and
listing on the Operationa Committee meetings, as well as cutside of the regular meeting cycle.
London Stock excellence Their advice, as well as their needs and views, are routinely taken
Exchange. the ¢ Long-term into account. Through its Audit and Management Engagement
Companyrelieson  developmentofthe  Committee, the Board formally assesses their performance, fees and
a diverse range of service providers’ continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the key
repwtable advisers businesses service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are
for support & Sustainability appropriately remunerated to deliver the expected level of service.
in meeting The Audit and Management Engagement Comimittee also reviews
all relevant and evaluates the control environment in place at each service
obligations. provider.
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How we sngage

Care providers e« Current and future
performance

Welfare of tenants
+ Lease obligations
e Void management

At the outset, it is important to note that the Company does not
have any legal or operational responsibility for the delivery of care
in the properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the
Investment Adviser have taken the view that they wish to have a
detailed understanding of the delivery of care and the interacticn
with the major care providers who deliver this care.

Accordingly, the Investment Adviser maintains an active dialogue
with many of the care providers to build constructive and informed
relationships.

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the time

of acquisition of properties, the Investrent Adviser undertakes

due diligence with respect to the operational and financial

performance of all care providers who are proposed to deliver ‘ .
care into the particular properties. This includes the financial

standing of the care provider, its CQC ratings and the nature of the

SLA agreement covering voids between the care provider and the

Approved Provider.

The Investment Adviser is noted as having demonstrated
considerable expertise and understanding of the care taking place
within its properties.

Tenants s Greater independence
¢ Maintaining high level
of care

¢ Improved personal
outcomes

The Company’s properties are adapted for the use of individuals
with long-term care needs within a community setting with

the specific aim of achieving better personal cutcomes and
independence for the individuals.

The sector in which the Company operates is regarded as having
achieved significant success in delivering these positive outcomes
compared to long-term older style remote institutional care.

On a regular basis, members of the Investment Adviser visit
properties accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider
partners to see first hand the nature of the housing and care
provision that is being delivered. Whilst this process has slowed

as a result of the pandemic, the lnvestment Adviser has engaged
with its tenants. This is supported by the regular Approved Provider
seminars at which the wellbeing of tenants is discussed in detail

In addition, the Company undertakes resident case studies through
careful and considered interaction via the care provider to assess
the positive impact our properties and associated specialised care
have had con the individual and their wellbeing.
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Our staksholders Kay areaa of lnmeeyy How we angage

Regulator of » Financial and The Company is not itself regulated by the RSH, but it is important

Social Housing operational viability  to maintain open and regular dialogue to ensure that the Company

(RSH) e Govemance and the RSH are working together to improve the sector.

* E:ar?tﬁh:nngesav.\fﬂez and A senior representative from the RSH attended the Company's Board
regulatory stan dar ds meeting in March 2020 to share thoughts on the sector and the ways
in which the Company could further evolve in order to assist the
o Safety and wellbeing  work of the RSH. This meeting was regarded by both parties as being
of underlying tenants very useful and constructive.
A senior representative of the RSH also attended the quarterly
approved provider seminar to discuss the Housing White paper.
In addition, the Investment Adviser has a regular and ongoing
dialogue with the RSH and with the Housing Association partners
regulated by the RSH.
The Company also publishes responses to the regulatory
judgements of the RSH regarding the Approved Providers working
with the Company as parnt of the RSH's general review of Approved
Providers engaged in the provision of property services for
vulnerable people as announced in May 2018. This demonstrates the
Company's desire to maintain a dialogue with the RSH and its desire
1o see that the positions improve where needed.

Other regulatory « Compliance The Company regularly considers how it meets various regulatory

authorities with statutory and statutory cbligations and follows voluntary and best practice

The Company can and regulatory guidance, and how any governance decisions it makes can have

only operate with requirements an impact on its shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the

the approval of e Governance based shorter and in the longer term.

Its regulators who on best practice

have a Jegitimate guidance

interest in how Better reporting to

the Company

A shareholders and

operates in the other stakeholders

market and treats

its shareholders.

Local authorities e« Provisionofsafeand [t is important for the Company to build and maintain relationships
secure propertes of a with local authorities as they have an important role in identifying
high quality areas of high demand, agreeing rents and referrals to the Company’s

» Sustainability for long- Schemes.
term placements

The Company will engage with the local authority commissioner
either directly, or through specialist consultants, Approved Provider
and care provider partmers as part of the Company’s due diligence to
ensure that each property being acquired has been commissioned
by the relevant local authority and that rent levels have been
discussed and agreed.
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Our stakeholders Key areas of interest How we engage
Lenders ¢ Current and future The Company has arranged debt facilities from a wide range of
Availability of financial performance lenders and engages with these on a regular basis through regular
funding and of the business meetings and presentations to ensure they are informed on all
liquidity are s Openness and relevant areas of the business. The continual dialogue helps to
crucial to the Transparency support the credit relationships.
Company's abiity Proactive approach to
to take advantage communication During the year, the Company arranged a £84.55m seven year term
of investment facility with M&G in order to support the Company's continuing
opportunities as * Obperational growth plans and deliveting on the Company’s mission to provide
they arise. excellence stable long-term income for the Company’'s shareholders and long-
term accommodation for the residents of the Company's properties.
The Company achieved an Investment Grade High Credit Quality
Rating from Fitch Ratings Limited of A" {(senior secured) and a
Long-Term IDR {Issuer Default Rating} of A- with a Stable Outlook.
This will enable the Company to pursue its strategy in relation to
debt funding, in addition to continuing to work with the Company’s
existing lenders, with whormn the Company has built strong
relationships.
Communities s Acceptance of carein A key component of the Company’s portfolio is that the properties
The Company's the community within it are set within community environments so that individuals
assetsrelyon a » Availability of local are able as part of their care plan to interact with the local
strong, positive facilities for tenants community rather than being isolated.
connection
with the local ‘This is achieved in consultation with local authorities in determining

communities in
which its business
operates.

that the initial settings are appropriately diversified within the
respective comrmunity and are not clustered in a way that would
lead to isolation.

This assists the individuals and aiso ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-to-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensure positive relationships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within
the Company's properties create employment within the local
community for both housing and care workers,

Charity partners e Delivering needed
support to vulnerable
adults

» Improved well-being
of vulnerable adults

s ESG performance and
sustainability

The Company supports a number of organisations whose cbjectives
are to provide improved outcomes for vulnerable adults affected by
homelessness and other care needs.

The Company comiImits targeted financial support to fund specific
programmes which help those affected by homelessness by
teaching them skills and offering support to prevent them from
being in that position again.

The Company ensures regular calls and meetings with our charity
partners to update on progress and projects being undenaken, as
well as attending events in support of their work

During the year, the Company amended its investment objective
and investtment policy to enable it to enter into long-term leases
with the NHS and with registered charities operating within areas of
investment interest to the Company. The amendments will allow the
Company access 10 a wider range of pipeline cpportunities and will
assist in providing the currently unmet demand in these areas.
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Our stalshoiden Key arens of intarest How we engage

Approved e Current and future The Company's Approved Provider partners are an important part of
Providers performance the investment model as the responsibility for collection of housing

s Sustainability benefit and subsequent payment of rent, the maintenance of the
properties under the full repairing and insuring leases and, most

* Compliance and importantly, the safegquarding of the underlying tenants through the

property management ;. .ve means, lies with the Appraved Providers.
e Welfare of tenants
Lease obligations The Investment Adviser works closely with the Company’s Approved

Provider partners to improve standards and govermance and to
introduce practices and procedures that make the Company’s
investment processes ever more robust.

The Investment Adviser has a constant open dialogue with the
Approved Frovider partners, liaising monthly on compliance,
health and safety, maintenance and future-proofing schemes,
as well as hosting quarterly seminars to discuss current themes/
trends affecting the sector, to troubleshoot and this serves as an
opportunity to build relationships and share best practice.

The Investment Adviser has continued its regular and extensive
dialogue with Approved Providers which since the start of the
pandemic includes detailed reports on pandemic responsiveness.
These reports have shown a high degree of resilience to the
pandemic with few serious cases of COVID-19 reported due to the
quality of the buildings people live in. the attention and dedication
of the one-to-one care they receive and the age profile of the
residents.

The Investment Adviser supported the establishment of The Social
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-profit community interest company
operated independently of the Company whose stated aim is

tc enable Approved Providers holding the Company's leases 10
increase skills and experience and to provide funding to promote
enhanced performance. Membership is open to any Approved
Provider that holds Civitas leases and the effect of membership is to
transfer ownership of the Approved Provider to the social housing
family. Auckland Homes Solutions was the first Approved Provider to
join and has now recruited a very experienced and senior executive
team and board of management. Qualitas comrnunity benefit society
has also now joined the CIC.

The above mechanisms for engaging with shareholders are kept under review by the Directors and will be discussed
on a regular basis at Board meetings to ensure that they remain effective.
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Principal Decisions
Principal decisions have been defined as those that have
a material impact to the Group and its key stakehclders.

In taking these decisions, the Directors considered
their duties under section 172 of the Act. Two principal
decisions made during the year were as follows:

Widening of the Company’s Investment Policy
During the year, the Board sought, and was granted
approval by shareholders, to widen the Company's
investment policy to enable it to enter into long-term
lease agreements with additional counterparties
including the National Health Service ("NHS"). In
considering whether tc amend the investment policy,
the Beard has regard to the interests of the Company's
shareholders, the community and local authoerities.

The Board believed that the widening of the investment
policy was in the best interest of shareholders, local
authorities and the community as it would allow

the Company tc access a wider range of pipeline
oppcrtunities and allow the Company to assist in
providing the currently unmet demand for the delivery
of care for long-term conditions such as learning
disability, autism and mental health, in addition to other
urgent needs with significant unmet demand including
homelessness and step-down acccmmeodation for the
NHS. This provides housing to local authorities and has
also a positive impact cn the community providing
homes for unmet demand.

Seven Year Term Facility with M&G
During the year, the Board secured a new seven-year
term, interest only, loan facility of £84.55m (the Tacility”)
from M&G Investment Management Limited ("M&G”), a
new lender to the Company. [n considering whether tc
approve the new Facility the Beard had regard to the
interests of the Company's shareholders, the community
and its lenders.

The Board believed that the Facility was in the best
interest of its shareholders as part of the Company's
ambitions to evolve its debt funding strategy around

the sourcing and delivery of debt facilities and provide
additional capital for investrment This is in addition to
continuing to work with the Company’s existing lenders
with whom the Company has built strong relationships.
The Board also considered that the Facility provides more
funds for the Company to invest in social housing to
benefit the wider community.
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Strategic Overview

Business Model

1 2
An indiidua! with The Local Authority
care requirements designs a care package,
requires a horme. identifying a care
provider and property
far the individual.

3a.
The care provider
is paid the full amount
far the care package
and pays rent to the
Appraved Pravider.

-

i L ’i}j’ i
b, 4
The Approved The Approved
Provider is paid Provider pays

the rent directly. Civitas the rent.

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established in 2016 with the purpose
of delivering long-term responsible. stabie returns te
investors and achieving positive measurable social
impact and ESG benefits on a large scale. It should
achieve this as a result of introducing long-term equity
capital into the social housing sector with a particular
focus on care-pased community housing. By doing so.
this would form a bridge between equity investors and
the sccial housing sector and bring together aspects of
healthcare with soc¢ial housing.

The Company has since developed the largest portfolic
of care-based community housing in the UK that provides
long-term homes for more than 4,200 individuals across
half the local authorities in England and Wales.

As a result of this success, the Company has recently
extended its mandate to be able to enter intc
transactions directly with the NHS and with leading
charities with an interest in the provision of specialist
housing that has a strong care or support element, is
consistent with public pelicy and whaose costs are met by
the public purse for which it offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's investment objective is to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income, together
with the potential for capital growth from investing in a
portfolio of Sccial Homes, which benefits from inflation
adjusted long-term leases or occupancy agreements with
Approved Providers and to deliver, on a fully invested
and geared basis, a targeted dividend vield of 5% per
annurmy, which the Company expects to increase broadly
in line with inflation.

Investment Policy
The Company's investment policy is to invest in a
diversitied portfolic of Social Homes throughout

the United Kingdom. The Company intends to meet

the Company's investment objective by acquiring,
typically indirectly via Special Purpose Vehicles,
portfolios of Social Homes and entering into long-term
inflation adjusted leases ¢r occupancy agreements

for terms primarily ranging from 10 years to 40 years
with Approved Providers, where all management

and maintenance obligaticns will be serviced by the
Approved Providers. The Company will not underntake
any development activity or assume any development or
construction risk. However, the Company may engage in
renovating or customising existing homes. as necessary.

1 The dwviden yield is based ar the enginal IPQ prce of 100 pence per Ordinary share. The target dmdends are targets only and do not represent a profit forecast There can be no assurance that the 1argets can
ar will be met and should not be taken as an indication of the Company’s expected ar actual future results, Accordingly, patential nvestars shouid nat place any seliance on these targets in deciding whether or not
ta mvest in the Company or assume that the Company will make any distnbutions at all, and should decide for themselves whether or pot the target ddend yields are reasonabie or achievable

38

CIVITAS SOCIAL HéUS\NG PLC | _R_EP;)-R_T-AVJE;\CEEN'}-SHZOﬂ



Strategic Overview

Continued

The Company may make prudent use of leverage to
finance the acquisition of Social Homes and tc preserve
capital on a real basis.

The Company is focused on delivering capital growth
and expects to held its Portfolio over the lcng term and
thercforce it is unlikely that the Company will dispuse
of any part of the Portfolio. In the unlikely event that a
part of the Pertfolio is disposed of, the Directors intend
to reinvest proceeds from such disposals in assetsin
accordance with the Company’s investment policy.

Investment Restrictions
The Ccmpany invests and manages the Portfolic with the
objective of delivering a high quality, diversified Portfolio
through the following investment restrictions:

e the Company only invests in Soccial Homes located in
the United Kingdom;

e the Company only invests in Social Homes where the
counterparty to the lease or occupancy agreement is
an Approved Provider;

¢ nolease or occupancy agreement shall be for an
unexpired period of less than 10 years, unless the
shorter leases or occupancy agreements represent
part of an acquisition of a portfolic which the
Investment Adviser intends t¢ reorganise such that
the average term cf lease or occupancy agreement is
increased to 15 years or above;

s the aggregate maximum exposure to any single
Approved Provider is 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company is fully invested;

s noinvestment by the Company in any single
geographical area, in relation to which the houses
and/or apartment blocks owned by the Company are
located on a contiguous or largely contiguous basis,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Asset Value of the Company;

s the Company only acquires completed Social Homes
and will not forward finance any development of new
Social Homes;

e the Company does not invest in other alternative
investment funds or closed-end investment
companies; and

e the Ccmpany is not engaged in short seliing.

The investment limits detailed above apply at the time of
the acquisition of the relevant investment in the Portfclio
once fully invested. The Company would not be required
tc dispose of any investment or to rebalance the Portfolio
as a result of a change in the respective valuations of its
assets.
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Gearing Limit

The Directors seek to use gearing to enharnce equity
returns. The leve! of berrowing is set on a prudent basis
for the asset class and seeks to achieve a low cost of
funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying
security requirements and the structure of both the
Portfolic and the Company.

The Company may, following a decision of the Board,
raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and
the aggregate borrowings of the Company is always
subject to an absolute maximurm, calculated at the time
of drawdown, of 40% of the Gross Asset Value. This is the
overall gearing target of the Company.

Debt is secured at asset level, whether over a particular
property or a holding entity for a particular series of
properties, without recourse to the Company and also
potentialiy at Company level with or without a charge
over the Portfolio (but not against particular assets),
depending cn the optimal structure for the Company and
having consideration to key metrics inctuding lender
diversity. cost of debt debt type and maturity profiles.
Otherwise there wiil be no cross-financing between
investments in the Portfolio and the Company will not
operate as a common treasury function between the
Company and its investments.

Use of Derivatives

The Company ray choose to utilise derivatives for
efficient portiolio management. In particular, the
Directors may engage in full or partial interest rate
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the risk of interest
rate increases on borrcwings incurred in accordance
with the gearing limits as part of the management of the
Particlic.

Cash Management
Until the Company is fully invested, and pending re-
investment oI distribution of cash receipts. the Company
invests in cash, cash equivalents, near cash instruments
and money market instruments.

REIT Status

The Directors conduct the affairs of the Company so as to
enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for the purposes
of Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 {and the
regulations made thereunder).

40

Culture
The Directors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culture among the Board and in its
interaction with the Investment Adviser, sharehoclders
and other stakeholders will support the delivery of its
purpose, vaiues and strategy. The Board seeks tc promote
a culture cof openness, debate and integrity through
cngoing dialogue and engagerment with its service
providers. principally the Investment Adviser.

As detailed in the Corporate Governance Statement,

the Company has a number of palicies and procedures

in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good
governance, including those relating to diversity and
Directors’ conflicts of interest. The Board assesses and
monitors compliance with these policies as well as the
general culture of the Board through Board meetings and,
in particular, during the annual evaluation process which
is undertaken by each Director (for mere information, see
the performance evaluation section on pages 78 and 79).

The Board's culture itself is one of openness,
collaboration and constructive debate to ensure the
etfective contribution of all Directors, particularly in
respect of the Board's decision making. Consideration
of our Stakeholders is embedded in the Board's decision
making process. Please see our section 172 Statement on
page 29.
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

Magym £ Result
Increase in IFRS Target 10 achieve capital appreciation whilst IFRS NAV increase of 10.30p per share or 10.56%
NAV per share  maintaining a low risk strategy from enhancing from IPO.
the quality of cash flows from investments, by
physical improvement of properties and by
creating a significantly diversified, high-quality
peortfolio.
Dividends per Tor the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company  Total dividend of 54p per share declared for the
share targeted a dividend of 5.4p per share. year to 31 March 2021,
Number Target risk mitigation through a diversified As at 31 March 2021
of Local portfclic (once fully invested) with no more
Authorities, than 25% exposure to any one Local Authority or e 164 Local Authorities
Approved singie Approved Provider and no more than 20% , g Approved Providers
Providers and  exposure to any single geographical area, once .
care providers the capital of the Company is fully invested. » 118 Care Froviders
The Company's largest single exposure is to
Auckland Home Solutions CIC and currently
stands at 24%. The largest geographical
concentration is in the South West, being 16%.
Loan to Gross  Assets Target debt drawn of 35% of gross assets. Leverage as at 31 March 2021 of 34.48% of gross
Assets assets.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

41

By

HELNE LT RN

1304 i

e



Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA

The Company is a member of the European Public Real Estate Association {'EPRA’). EPRA has
developed and defined the following performance measures to give transparency, comparapility
and relevance of financial reporting across entities which may use different accounting standards.
The Company is pleased to disclose the following measures which are calculated in accordance

with EPRA guidance.

For reporting periods starting on or after 1 January 2020, EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV have been replaced with three
specific new EPRA NAV measures. The table below shows the new metrics, and the new measure most comparable 1o
the EPRA NAV is EPRA Net Tangible Assets.

31 March

EPRA Performance Measure  Defintion . Purpose EPRA Performance Measure S‘MZ.('!;: ) 2020
EPRA Eamings Farnings from operational A key measure of a EPRA Earnings £30,630,000 £28,814,000
activities, company's underlying
operating results
and an indication of . o
the extent to which EPRA Earnings per 493p 4.63p
current dividend share (Basic and
payrments are diluted)
supported by earnings.
EPRA Net EPRA NAV metric which The EPRA NAV set EPRA NRV £674,042,000 £671042,000
Reinstatement assumes that entities never sell  of metrics make
Value (“NRV") assets and aim_s to represent adjustments to the EPRA NRV per share 10838p 10795p
the value required to rebuild NAV per the IFRS (diluted’
the entity. financial statements to
EPRA Net EPRA NAV metric which provide stakeholders — EpRA NTA £674,042,000 £671.042,000
Tangible Assets assumes that entities buy and ~ With the most relsvant
{“NTA") sell assets, thereby crystallising information on the S T T oo
certain levels of u)r:agidable 7 fair value of the assels f;?iig’x per share l0a38p 10795p
deferred tax. and liabilities of a
EPRA Net EPRA NAV metric which real estate IVeSIMEnt  pppa Npy " T£671,476,000 £667560.000
Disposal Value represents the shareholders’ cqmpany. undey
(“NDV") value under a disposal different scenarios.
scenario, where deferred tax,
financial instruments and C—
EPRA NDV per 107.97p 107.39p

certain other adjustments are
calculated to the full extent
of their liability. net of any
resulting tax.

share (diluted)

Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance.

For detailed workings reconciling the above measures to the [FRS results, please see Appendix ! to these financial
statements on pages 144 to 146,
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ﬁrategic Overview

Continued

31 March

EPRA Performance Measure Definition Purpose EPRA Performance Measure 3‘"‘@ 2020
EPRA Net Initial Annualised rental income A comparable EPRA NIY 524% 5.26%
Yield (“NIY™) based cn the cash rents measure for portfolic

passing at the balance sheet valuations. These

date, less non-recoverable measures should make

property operating expenses, it easier for investors

divided by the market value of  to judge themselves,

the property with (estimated) how the valuaticn of

purchasers’ costs. portfolio X compares
EPRA ‘Topped- This measure incorporates an "1\ portfolio Y. EPRA ‘Topped-up’ 5.24% 526%
up’ NIY adjustment to the EPRA NIY NiY

in respect of the expiration

of rent-free periods {or other

unexpired lease incentives

such as disccunted rent

periods and stepped rents}).
EPRA Vacancy Estimated Market Rental A'pure’ (%) measure of EPRA Vacancy Rate 0% 0%
Rate Value ("ERV") of vacancy space  investment property

divided by ERV of the whcle space that is vacant,

portfolic. based cn ERV.
EPRA Costs Administrative and operating A key measure to EPRA Costs Ratio 20.33% 2148%
Ratio costs (including and excluding enable meaningfui

costs of direct vacancy) measurernent of

divided by gross rental the changes in a EPRA Costs Ratio 2033% 2148%

income.

cempany’s opetating

costs (excluding direct

vacancy costs)

Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance.

For detailed workings reconciling the above measures to the IFRS results, please see Appendix 1 to these financial
statements on pages 144 to 146.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC |  REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

43

R

ravrgds mvdivaas



Principal Risks and Risk Management

The Board considers that the risks detailed below are the principal risks facing the Group currently, along with the
risks detailed in note 33.0 to the financial statements. These are the risks that could affect the ability of the Company to
deliver its strategy. The Board confirms that the principal risks of the Company. including those which would threaten
its future performance. solvency cr liquidity, have been robustly assessed throughout the year ended 31 March 2021,
taking into account the evolving COVID-19 risk, and that processes are in place to continue this assessment. The Audit
Committee takes responsibility for overseeing the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems on
behalf of the Board and advises the Board on the principal risks facing the business.

Further details of risk management processes that are in place can ke found in the Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 79 and 80. The principal and emerging risks and uncertainties relating to the Group are regularly reviewed
by the Board along with the internal controls and risk management processes that are used to mitigate these risks.
The principal risks and management of those risks are described below:

VERY HIGH ‘
HIGH 000
'G :
< MEDIUM |
=

VERY

VERY
UNLIKELY POSSIBLE LIKELY
uNLikery  ONE LIKELY
PROBABILITY

Principal risks and uncertainties 7 )
1 Strategy and com petitiveness nsks ’ Irpact How managed}mmgmed B

The Commpany and its operations Any change in the laws, The Company focuses on niche Impact:

are subject to laws and regulations regulations and/or government real estate sectors where it Very high

enacted by national and local
governments and government

policy.

policy affecting the Company and
its operations may have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the
Company to successiully pursue
its investment policy and meet

its Investment ocbjecuve and cn
the value of the Company and

the shares.

believes the regulatory framework
to be robust.

The investment Adviser has strong
incustry contacts and has good
knowledge on policy opinion and
direction.

The Board obtains regular updates
from professional advisers

to monitor developments in
regulation and iegislation.

Probability:
Unlikely
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l;rincipal Risks and Risk Mana”gement

Continued

2 Sirategy and competnveness nsks

impact

How managed/mihgated

As a result of competition from The rate of capital depicyment The Company has strong links with  Impact:
other purchasers of social housing  would drop, decreasing returns to  vendors and a robust pipeline of High
properties, the Company's ability shareholders. future acquisitions.
to deploy capital effectively within
a reasonable timeframe may be The Board regularly reviews the Probability:
restricted or the net initial yields at pipeline of potential acquisitions Unlikely
which the cOmpany can acquire and monitors the market
properties may decline such that landscape.
target returmns cannot be met.
3 Investmem managemen nsk Impact B o How managed/mitgated
Tenant defaulting under the tetms  Loss of rental income in the The portiolic iz diversified to Impact:
of a lease. short term. reduce the impact of default. Medium
Extensive diligence is undertaken
on all assets, which is reviewed
and challenged by the Board. Probabflity:
Likely
The Board is provided with regular
updates on the tenants with any
concerns raised for discussion.
4 investment managernent risk Impact o How managed/mitigated
The value of the investments made The valuation of the Company's The Company invests in projects Impact:
by the Company may change from assets would fall. decreasing the with stable, predetermined, long- High
time to time according to a variety  NAV and yields of the Company. term leases in place with CFI or CPI
of factors, including movements plus 1% indexation and its strategy
in interest rates, inflation and is not focused on sale of properties, Probability:
general market pricing of similar Uniikely

investments.

CIVITAS SQCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

The Board receives regular
updates on factors that might
impact investment valuations, such
as the current COVID-19 pandemic.
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Principal Risks and Risk Maﬁagel;enf_

Continued

5 Investrent management risk

_Impact

Due diligence may not reveal all
facts and circumstances that may
be relevant in connection with an
investment and may not prevent
an acquisition being materially
overvalued or rental streams being
at risk.

How managed/miigated

The Company would averpay

for agsets impairing shareholder
value, reducing rental income and
therefore returns.

The Company undertakes detailed
due diligence on the properties.
their condition, the proposed
rental jevels ~ benchmarking
against comparable schemes using
both external consultants where
required and its own proprietary
database - and on the Approved
Providers and care providers
involved in each property 16
ensure that the purchase price

is robust.

The Board considers the due
diligence undertaken when
approving acquisitions.

Impact:
High

Probability:
Unlikely

6 Investrent management fisk

impact

Loss of key staff at the Investment
Adviser.

Negative investor sentiment
leading to a reduction in share

How managed/mitgated

The Board considers the risk of
the Investment Adviser losing key

price Reduction in ability to source  staff and the succession plans the

off market and favourable deals.

Investment Adviser has in place.

7 Invesiment managerrent nsk

Impact

How managed/mitigated

Failure to monitor that contingent
activities are compieted by the
Approved Providers or other
parties.

Deterioration in the ﬁnderlying '
quality, and therefore value, of the
Company's property.

Contingent actions are regularly
monitored and followed up.

The Board is kept apprised of any
breach of lease obligations.

Impact:

Medium

Probability:
Unlikely
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Principal Risks and MSl?Mahageniént

Continued

Emerging risks
Emerging risks are considered during the regular risk review, and would be specifically discussed and evaluated as
they arise during the year. Input from the Investment Adviser on emerging risks is considered by the Audit Committee.

Key emerging risks identified and considered duling Lhe year include:

e COVID-19 - the impact of COVID-18 pandemic and associated lockdowns. Although there has been minimal impact
of COVID-19 on the Company. the Board continues to closely monitor the crisis.

e Climate Change - the impact of climate change on the business. The Company is committed t¢ understanding
ESG risk, including the impact of climate change on the business. Climate change poses an indirect risk to the
Company's operations, the environment and society, and the Board is aware that appropriate action is required to
reduce its impact.

Please see the Company’s ESG Report on pages 52 to 57 for further detalls.

The Listing Rules require premium-listed commercial companies to disclose in their annual report whether they
have reported on how climate change affects their business in a manner consistent with the recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD'), and to provide an explanation and other
information if they are unable to do so. In additicn, the UK Government intends to introduce mandatory climate-
related disclosures to supplement the requirements under the Listing Rules. These requirements are expected to
be applicable to the Coempany in the financial year 2024.
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Going Concern and ViabiliTy Statement

Going Concern
The Board regularly reviews the position of the Company
and its ability to continue as a going concern at its
meetings. The financial statements set out the current
financial position of the Company.

The Company acquires high-quality property with a
particular focus on property providing care for the long
term. The properties acquired are on long-term full
repalring and insuring leases in a sector of the market
with very high levels of need. The cost base of the
Cornpany is proportionately low compared to revenue
and there is a high level of certainty over cost to be
incurred. On this basis, the Cormpany is expected to be
viable well beyond the five-year termn considered in the
Company's testing below.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company held cash balances

of £107 million (net of operating and financing amounts
due) The Board has evaluated the financial position of
the Commpany and has secured a premium investiment
grade rating frem Fitch Ratings Ltd a well established
rating agency with a strong familiarity to the alternative
healthcare real estate space ), which gives the Company
confidence in the ability to raise future debt and/

or equity capital in crder to fund the Company's
investments for the long term and to facilitate the
pavyment of dividends to shareholders at the targeted
rate. Based on this, the Board believes that the Company
is in a position to manage its financial risks.

The Directors believe that there are currently no material
uncertainties in relation to the Company's ability to
continue in cperation for a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the Company’s financial
statemnents and therefore have adopted the going concern
basis in the preparation of the financizal staternents.

Viability Statement

The Directors present the Company’s viability statement
which summarises the resulis of their assessment of
the Company's current position, its principal risks and
prospects over a periced to 31 March 2026.

The assumptions underpinning the forecast cashflows and
covenant compliance forecasts were sensitised to explore
the resilience of the Company to the potental impact of the
Company's principal risks and uncertainties and Covid 19,

The prospects were assessed over a five-year pericd,
acknowledging that the Company will have its first
continuation vote in 2022, for the following reasons:

i) the Company's long-term forecast covers a five-year
pericad;

ii) the length of service level agreements between
Approved Providers and care providers is typically five
years; and

iii) the Company's leases are typically 25 years on fully
repairing and insuring leases, enabling reasonable
certainty of income over the next five years.

The Company's five-year forecast incorporates
assumptions related to the Company’s investment strategy
and principal risks from which perfermance results, cash
flows and key performance indicators are forecast. The
principal risks are set out on pages 44 to 47. Cf these risks,
those which are expected to have a higher impact on the
Company's longer-term prespects are those related to
future government housing policies. The Company has
considered its strategy over a longer term and. in light

of the inherent demand fcr the Company's properties

and the vulnerable nature of the ultimate tenant, the risk
of change in future housing policy is considered to be
limited. The principal risks are mitigated by the Company's
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dghg Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

risk management and internal control processes,

which function on an ongoing basis. The Board, via
delegation to the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee, monitors the effectiveness of the Company's
risk management and internal control processes on an
ongoing basis. The monitoring activities are described
in the Report of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee on pages 73 to 75 and include direct review
and challenge cf the Company's documented risks, risk
ratings and contrels, and review of performance and
comEpliance repcrts prepared by the Company's advisers
and the independent external auditors.

The Board of Directors has carried out a robust
assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing
the Company, including those that would threaten its
business mecdel, future performance, sclvency and
liguidity. Where appropriate, the Company's forecasts are
subject to sensitivity analysis, which invclves applying
severe conditions and flexing a number of assumptions
simultanegusly. The sensitivities performed were
designed to provide the Directcrs with an understanding
of the Company's performance in the event of severe

but plausible scenarios, taking full account of mitigating
actions that could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact
or occurrence of the underlying risks outlined below:

e 10% of tenants defaulting under a lease. The outcome
of this scenario reduces profits on average over the
five year forecast by 11% per annum. Cash is reduced
however, the Board is still comfortable that dividends
could be pald; and

s deterioration in economic outlook, such as any negative
impact due to Brexit, impact of COVID-19, or change in
government housing pelicy which could impact the
fundamentals cf the social housing sector, including
a negative impact on valuations and a 5% reduction
in annual!l rents. The cutcome of the 'severe downside
scenario was that the Company's covenant headrocm
on existing debt e the level at which the investment
property values would have to fall before a financial
breach occurs) reduces by 26%. prior to any mitigating
actions such as asset sales, which indicates that
covenants on existing facilities would ncot be breached.
The impact of Covid 18 and Brexit on going concern
is immaterial

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

The remaining principal risks and uncertainties, whilst
having an impact on the Company's business, are

not considered by the Directors to have a reasonable
likelihcod of impacting the Company's viability over the
five-year period, therefore the scenarios outlined above
are the only cnes that have been specifically tested.
Based on the results of their assessment, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the five-year period of their assessment.

Apbrox;ral of Strategic Report
The Group Strategic Report was approved by the Board
and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

29 June 2021
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
as at 31 March 2021

Energy performance is measured in two
ways across the portfolio: Domestic;
homas and Non-domestic high-aauity
reflecting the manner in which EPC data
is made available for each property.

Domestic/homes
Domestic/homes refer to dwellings, whether a house

or apartment where one heating system serves a single
household. For Civitas, these properties have specialist
adaptations and care provision but are still regarded
as domestic homes

Domestic properties typically use less power and have
smaller footprints than non-domestic/higher acuity
preperties.

Ncen-domestic/higher acuity
Non-domestic/high-acuity properties are larger
properties which have additicnal specialist/communal
facilities with a higher energy use.

This Includes industrial kitchens and back of house
facilities plus extensive rehabilitation services.

Tonnes CO, Civitas total smissions”

Q 5 0 15 20 23 3c 35 40 45

" Basegon Cwvitas
retaired EPC data
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Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP ratings

Energy Performance Certificates (EPC)

Following active asset management including
property improvements works. renovations and
scheduled post-completion works, Civitas has
improved the overall energy performance of
the portfclio as 1dentified on EPC reports daia
as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021

52.7%

25

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Enerigy Porormanc e Loris ation Band

Al < ] E F G Rﬂsl:o:
Owner occup.ed 19 336 501 108 28 07 638
Private renied U0 363 469 106 32 10 541
Socialrented 25 585 344 38 07 01 691
All tenures 20 383 469 96 25 07 648

Civitas domestic 13.6 357 37.0 136 0.0 01 66.4
Civitas S3H properties will often tend to offer

slightly larger accommodation for tenants

than conventional social housing or other

private dwellings.

Provides accurate and reliable assessments of
energy performances required to underpin energy
and environmental policies/initiatves tha: drive
mprovenients

Methodology used assesses and compares energy
and environmental performance across the UK
‘ndicates a score from 1 to 100+ for the annual

energy cost
The higher the score. the lower the running cos's
with 100 represenng zero energy Cost




How Have We Started to Reduce the Carbon I-‘ootpfint in our Portfolio?

The first pilot initiatives have been
successfully completed with significant
CO, and energy savings with the
intention to commence broader
strategies across the portfolio.

Auckland Home Solutions

Alvechurch
Solar Panels

2 x Three-bedroom detached houses, previously fuelled
by gas central heating

Spacification (per property)

G x 325W a}l Vblack panels

%@t_ige HD-Wave 1ph inverter

GivEnergy AC-coupledEnverter wii'th Z.kahib@%i

Kay Banefits

Electricity Costs Savings

£283.3]1 pa - average saving.glper property
C€o, &dudipn 7

214 tonnés/“;.)-a

Partners

EON Energy
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McAteer Court
Air Source Heat Pump

Thornlaw
Solar Panels

FProjact Gvandrw

8x Oneff)edro-brhgelf-:c-o_ﬁtgi_ned apa_ftmems previousl_jf_
fuelled by electric thermal storage heaters

Project Cverview

Seven—bédrodrﬁ detached house currently fuelled
by gas central heating

Specification

Spacification

Cavity wall insulation

Skw Daiken Monobloc air source heat pﬁm;ﬁs (ASHP)
in 2ach flat

Unvented Cylinder, User contfols and ancillary
equipment

78 X 3257W7 all black panels_ B L
SclarEdge HD-Wave Iph inverter -
GivEnergy AC-coupled inverter with 2.6kwh batter

Kay Banefits

Electricity Costs Savings

£275.51 pa - average sa\:'i_ng pe_r property

Key Banafits

Electric ty Costs Savings

@9_00 Pa_—_&_we-r”age séﬁngswper property
€O, Reducton
19.8 tggnes/pa

Partners

_1_3_acifica Group

Falcon Housing Association
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€0, Reductan

0.8 tonnes/pa

Poctners
EONEnergy
Auckland Home Sclutions
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What'g Next? Collabora tive Approach, Grangg and Fundiug
o . — —
Civitas’ ESG bolicy targety Carbon neutrahty.
To SUcceeq this Needs ¢ be a coﬂaborauve
9PProach. Working ith oyr 4 Droved Providerg
Tesidents, Rationg) govemment, Iocaj agencieg
investors, lenders
CiM Initiatige _ coHabagﬁae - Grangs and Fungj,
Apprbach Civitag Wil utilisa Jover ment
CiM. through s geaje ang expertise Unding and @vailahle grants ang
] T on the foucwing key Will not Push cogie dowwn ontg
CSH. APproveq Proviger Partnerg
YIRS o ldentifing Granis T
EE LTS AR LN haye idemiﬁsd the roHowing
Through Working in c:oﬂaboran’on Orants foy Hhase L fury,
with £ N, Civirgg Is able 1 deliver g vernmen, rants are
its ob;ective of reducmg t Carbon EADECtay oV
footpn’m of the Portiolio

oV Nnent's SEG
Bligarion EON off an export
0 energy | there tarlff ag a andaiory SEG Hcensee
is the Brospect aof Modeg: uplifrs aﬂowmg Surplyg energy 15 be
in property valuangn SXportag back 15 the elecm‘cz‘ty
grid in exchange for g fee,

Electr City barkey by Do rerowable SCurgceg EOns ferewsbip
Sererafn,. dssefy agreemenls

Wl UK wime 9erersiars arg the
erewabig E}Edncﬂy Ceskficates T,
r

e elaciy oy
LamMes from the Ratigerg Grd ang OO
ecr‘ef‘ergyccmlrer:ewabla
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Implemehtation

Following the success of the environmental pilot studies and working in collaboration
with E.ON, CIM is now commencing the rollout over the broader portfolio on a step-
by-step basis utilising available Government grants and other funding sources.

Phase 1

T‘l;'.»l_‘;-.‘;}-’?i\*-i-?-l":-i" o B f?-\;)::.-: >.=ijx;.: SEArinter, T -
Beginning August 2021, initial Across the 55 properties:

measures will include: sl

- Caviry wall insulation i

; Loftinsulation

| External wall insulation:
Test case two properties H

. Ailr source heat pump central '
heating systemns
(non-gas properties only}

| Solar PV: Based on 10 panel system
& battery storage

Delivél;y Pr6§ra;lﬂe

Pre-start meeting

éurvéys

Cavity wall insulation

Loft insulatioh

Soiar PV & battery
storage systermns

Exterriz;l wail -
insulaticn

Air source heat pump
central heating system

Grant évailé_hilii;-_

Aug 2° Sep 2! Qo 21 Now 21 Dec 21 lan-22

ECO3 Funding

AoR Funding
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Social Impacf N

The Good Economy (‘“TGE") (31 March 2021)

THE
GOoD
ECONOMY

The independent annual social impact assessment explores the resilience of the
specialist housing association partners and care providers during the current
COVID-19 pandemic and has found that:

“Respondents reported
marked improvements

in both confidence and
independence since moving
into their current Civitas-
owned home”

TGE

Impact Objectives

“Civitas is proactive in

its approach 1o asset
management, taking
well-defined steps to
ensure and improve the
quality of existing homes,
especially in terms of
improving environmental
performance.”

TGE

9

Provide housing  Increase the
that meets an supply of
identified socia!  sacial housing
nead across the UK,
particularly
for vulnerable

pecpie

relz o= 43 hours
of care per
week

33% 77:'7;::9::6:"_63

[mprove the
quality of social =
housing e

“This move has enabled my
sibling to gain confidence.
independence and choice. It
has given them the freedom
to be the person they are
today, and they are stili
developing”

Family Member

Outcomes

000

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

Improve the
waelibeing of
residents

Throughout this process, Civitas works to mitigate against negative impact risks

ca
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Social Impact
The Social Profit Calculator (ﬁaérchégél)

A fécent"in_depéﬁgr_it stud?by thegﬁwecialist consultancy The Social Profit
Calculator, confirms Civitas created a Social Value of £127 million in the year to 31
March 2021. The Social Value assessment involves two discrete measures; Resident
Wellbeing and Savings to the Public Purse.

The Sacial Drons Caleulator mweorporas=s A Treasary's

Graen 300k < 1o irsssrment
(SROD framew

salat.ons

"Covias s delvenng s
welbeing and for th
demonstrates that o
quality housmyg that b

mprovad heirph

Findings in 2021

Resident Wellbeing Savings to the Public Purse

£51,170,686 £75,859,248
0Qo
R 6]8

Social Value Ratio | Total Social Value

£3.51 £127,029,934
25 e
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Social Impact

Charitable Partnerships o

Crisis - WISH
s e 5 v ves at oy s e Eee e ‘4 » 1 3 membersh 1}‘ Lasod newrork tor

Cras s a nalenal chaey lor the boeless that NUSH s
r cdise pline o

m w:xk: o nrovide voral
ampo'z‘ng

can rekadld ther i
S35 10T qood A orking

0 [ERTYI SN
Srie HodEing T’a ner ILJ. .
ALY ToUrge Resulbis simice ‘ﬁ‘.f“l* ""BC

3 grant programmes have been iaunchod Little.. Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity
pa2 rulion nvestec Sprouts - =
SAPROrNg over 200 organisa

Creat Bn

rad o mproing
wellbeing of our comrmunisy “hrangh cooking
workshops A ;

shops, chack and ¢
The Chmr wuh ‘No Name L7t as tood sollaos

A5 SJAppors s

oot cosrs o1

curmic
apar
oo a:

Jppq' 3 Tt“e
! sy JIJ«N‘!;,LZJ 5EC ;
tanct g ply

The Care Workers-'-Charity
=V arkers Ch NG

}J DO AT




Governance

Counterparty Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's investment adviser, has engaged
actively with its approved provider partners throughout
the pandemic providing shared advice and learning
through:

r Weekly operational calls

[ Monthly compliance monitoring

| Quarterly seminars

This engagement has helped facilitate continued high
level operational performance as well as further building
relationships with each of our partners through the
offering of continued support and advice.

Since the cutset of the pandemic, CIM has undertaken
weekly keep-in-touch calls with each approved
provider partner to cover:

r COVID cases

1 Relations with care providers

r Protocols in place
| Resilience
| General advice

CIM has continued tc undertake monthly governance
and health and safety monitoring across the portfolic.

Approved providers have demonstrated resilience
and continued high levels of compliance with health
& safety standards

CIM hosts quarterly Aproved Provider Seminars.

The last of which was held virtually on 8 December
2020 and was attended by all approved provider
partners and sector regulators.

Next Serminar bocked for 20 July 2021, to be held
in London.

- é‘%&mm .

&1



Governance

I'ridice's

CiM's implementation of the Board's commitment to continuous improvement in its
approach to ESG integration remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last
year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such as GRESB (formerly Global
Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.

Index . What 15 17 o o Vr}imw 15 C5H rated”
P GRESB i5 the lead.ng sus-amabily benchmark : 2
- ior the global real sstare s AsseEIMaSnts G223
’l hd “ake plas nually and are guidad by Jacters © Beer gUGAp aver

C R F S B "haon sand e

ralizs.ass

piop

devzlopers

cands and

a1 oprortans

' MSCI ESG ﬁatings provide sight i i
MSCI o s -

s poriol

SUSTAINALYTICS Sustalpalytlcs 1

e iaet

EPRA SBPR Guidelines -~

as

éEPRA




Governance

Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices. Civitas participates in the followmg frameworks

which don't issue a grading.

AAPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

lmpact Managemem Pro;ect

The ! mpcm Managemen: Project 1s a.

i Clobal lomum tor bulding conzensus om how o
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Com_pany who

were in office during the period
and up to the date of signing the
financial statements were:

&6

Michi_nel Wrobel
Chairman

Michael has over 40 years’
experience in the Investrment
industry as a portfolio manager and
running institutional businesses

and retail businesses at Fidelity and
Gartmere. He serves as a trustee
director of the BAT UK Pension Fund.
the Deutsche Bank UK pension
schemes and as a trustee of the
Cooper Gay (Holdings) Limited
Retirement Benefits Scheme.

Michaei has previously served as

a Non-Executive Director of several
investrment trusts and a number of
industry associations. Michael has an
M A. in Economics from Cambridge
University.

Michael was appointed to the Board
on 24 October 2016 and has served as
Chairman since his appointment.

Caroline Gulliver

Director

Carcline is a chartered accountant
with over 25 years' experience at
Ernst & Young LLF latterly as an
executive director before leaving

n 2012, During that time, she
specialised in the asset management
sector and developed extensive
experience of investment trusts. She
was a member of various technical
committees of the Association of
Investment Companies She is also

a non-executive director and audit
committee chair for ]JP Morgan Global
Emerging Markets Income Trust plc,
International Bictechnology Trust plc
and Aberdeen Standard European
Logistics Income PLC.

Caroline was appointed to the Board
on 24 October 2016 and has served as
Audit and Management Engagement
Cormnmittee Chairman since her
appointment,
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Report of the Directors

The Directors Present their Report and the audited financial statements for the yeér

ended 31 March 2021.

Principal Activities
The Company is a closed-ended investment ccmpany
and is a REIT which was incerporated in England and
Wales on 29 September 2016 The Company is the holding
company of a number of subsidiaries and its Ordinary
shares were admitted 1o trading on the Main Market

of the London 5Stock Exchange on 18 Novemnber 2016.

The Company invests in properties or property-holding
SPVs, either directly cr via a wholly-owned subsidiary,

in accordance with the Company's investment objective
and policy.
Business Review
A review of the business and future developments is
contained in the Chairman's Statement and Investment
Adviser's Report. The principal risks and uncertainues are
detalled on pages 44 (o 47. See note 35.0 for a summary of
the post balance sheet events.

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are shown on page 6.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares during the year:

1.325p per share

paid on 12 June 2020

135p per share

paid cn 7 September 2020
1.35p per share

paid on 4 December 2020
1.35p per share

paid on 1 March 2021

First dividend

S;é_ond dividend

“Third dividend
Fourth dividend '_"

Since the year end. the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Qﬁanerly
dividend

135p per share
_paid on 10 May 2021

No final dividend 1s being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

8

Directors
The members of the Beard are listed on pages b6 and 67
All Directors served throughout the period under review.

The Board consists solely of non-executive Directors,
each of whom is independent of the Investment Adviser
and the Company itself. The Cornpany has no executive
directors or employees.

In accordance with Board policy, all Directors wiil retire
and, being eligible, will stand for re-election at the AGM.

Performance evaluation of the Board, its Committee and
individual Directors 1s carried out 1n accordance with the
procedure set out on pages 78 and 79.

No Director is under a contract of service with the
Company and ne Director or any persons connected
with them had a material interest in the transactions
and arrangements of the Caompany. Details of Directors’
rernuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 82 10 85

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the securities
of the Company are set cut in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 85

Through their Letters of Appointment, the Company
has provided indemnities to the Directors. to the extent
permitted by law and the Company's Articles, in respect
of habilities which may arise in connection with claims
relating to their performance or the performance cf the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no other
qualifying third party indemnities in force,

The general powers of the Directars are contained
within the relevant UK legislation and the Company's
Articles of Associauon. The Directors are entitled to
exercise all powers of the Company, subject to any
himitations imposed by the Articles of Association or
applicable legislation. As set out on page £9, the Articles
of Association may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

continued

Capital Structure

[ssue of shares

At the AGM held cn 8 September 2020, the Directors were
authorised 1o issue equily securnties up to an aggregate
ncminal amount of £621,646 (being approximately 10%

of the issued Ordinary share capital). The Company was
also authorised to disapply pre-emption rights in respect
of equity securities and to issue equity securities for cash
up toc an aggregate ncminal amount equal to £621,646
{being approximately 10% of the issued Ordinary share
capital).

250,000 Ordinary shares were issued from Treasury under
these authorities during the year. These shares were
issued at a price of not less than the net asset value per
share at the time of issue plus an amount to cover the
cost.

The issuance was made with a view to balancing the
premium tc NAV and satisfying market demand for
additicnal shares in the Company

Post the year end, the Company issued 565,000 Ordinary
shares from Treasury At the date of this Report, the
Company deoes not hold any shares in Treasury.

Proposals for the renewal of the Directors’ authority 1o
issue shares will be set out in the Notice of AGM.
Purrhase of own shares o

At the AGM held on 8 September 2020, the Directors
were granted the authority to buy back up to 93,184,792
Ordinary shares, being 14.99% of the Ordinary shares in
issue at the time of the passing of the resolition.

During the year, no shares were bought back for Treasury
or for cancellation.

The authority to buy back up to 93,184,792 shares will
expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM, when
a resolution for its renewal will be propesed. Further
information will be contained in the Notice of AGM,
which will be circulated to shareholders in due course.
Current share capital

As at 31 March 2021, there were 622,461,380 Ordinary
shares in issue, of which 565,000 shares were held in
treasury. The total voting rights of the Company as at

31 March 2021 was 621,896,380.

As at the date of signing this Report, the total voting
rights of the Company was 622,461,380.

CVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPCRT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

Shareholder Rights
Ordinary shares
Each Crdinary shareholder 1s entitled to one vote on

a show of hands and, on a poll. to one vote for every
Ordinary share held. The right to attend and vote at
general meetings of the Company may be restricted
where a shareholder has failed 1o provide information
pursuant to a notice served under section 793 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Ordinary shares carry the right
1o receive dividends declared by the Company. Provided
the Company has satisfied all of its liabilities, during a
winding-up of the Company. the holders of Crdinary
shares are entitled to all of the surplus assets of the
Company.
Transfers of shares
There is ne restriction on the transfer of the Company's
shares other than transfers to more than four joint
transferees and transters of shares which are not fully
paid up or where the transferor or any other person
whom the Company reasonably believes to be interested
in the transfercr's shares has been duly served with a
notice pursuant to section 793 of the Companies Act 2006

There are no special rights with regard to contral
attached to securities; no agreements between holders
of securities regarding their transfer knocwn to the
Company: and no agreements which the Company

is party to that might affect its control following a
successiul takeover bid.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of
the shareholders.

Management Arrangements
Investment Adviser

The Board has appeinted the Investment Adviser, Civitas
Investment Management Limited, to provide investment
advice and to manage the property portfolio and the
associated day-1o day activities, including management
of tenanted properties and marketing activities. CIM is

a specialist investor in social housing property, with a
focus on specialist social housing and has extensive
experience in sorial housing and real estate investment.

A0S Livhoghag
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Rébort of the Directors

continued

The duties of CIM include the sourcing of investment
opportunities that meet the investment criteria of the
Company. controlling the acquisiticn of approved
properties, management of all properties within the
portfolio, ongeing monitoring of the properties and
tenants maintaining compliance with all relevant rules
and regulations, and previding marketing and investor
relaticns services to the Company.

Details of the fees payable to the Investment Adviser are
described in note 8.0 of the financial statements. The
basis for the calculation of the Investment Adviser's fees
is based upon the 1IFRS NAV.

The agreement with CIM is terminable on not {ess than 12
months’ notice by either party. such notice not 1o expire
earlier than 30 May 2024.

The performance of the Investment Adviser has

been reviewed on an ongeing basis throughout the
period by the Board at its quarterly meetings A formal
annual evaluation is also carried out by the Audit and
Management Engagement Commazttee The Board
considers a number of facters including investment
perfcrmance, the quality and quantity of investment
oppeortunities presented, the skills and experience of key
staff and the capability and resources of the Investment
Adviser to deliver satisfactory perfermance for the
Company. The Board is satisfied with the performance
of the Investment Adviser and considers its continued
appointment to ke in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders.

AlIFM
G10 Capital Limited ("G10" or the "AIFM") has been
appointed as the Company's AIFM with effect

from 24 August 2017. The AIFM receives an annual
management fee of 0.03% of the total Company NAV for
its services, subject to a minimum of £96,000 per annurn,
and the agreement s terminable on three months notice
by either party.

70

Depositary
Indos Financial Limited was appolnted as the Company's
Depositary with effect from 1 June 2018. The Depositary
provides cash monitering, safekeeping and asset
verification and oversight functions as prescribed by

the Alternative [nvestment Fund Managers Djrective.

The Depositary receives an annual fee of £59,000, plus
0.006% of the first £350 million of any new equity capital
raised per annum and 0.003% of further equity raised per
annum, subject to a maximum fee of £150.000 per annum.
The agreement is terminable on six months’ notice by
either party.

Administrator
The Company has appcinted Link Alternative Fund
Administrators Limited ("Link") as the Administratcr

of the Company and its subsidiaries. with effect from

28 February 2018, to undertake the accountancy and other
administrative duties of the Company. Link is a specialist
administrator for investment funds, providing support
functions and expertise tailored for this industry.

The Administrator recelves a fixed base fee for the
provision of its services to the Company as well as an
entitlement to additional variable fees for duties relating
to corporate activities. The agreerment is terminable on at
least six months notice by either party.

The duties of the Administrator include the maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary bcoks and recards,
excluding those maintained by the Investment Adviser,
monitoring compliance with applicable relevant rules
and regulations and other administrative duties as
required.

Company Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited was appointed as the
Company Secretary to the Cornpany with effect from

28 March 2018 The Secretary receives a fixed fee for the
provision of its services to the Company. The agreement
was for an initial period of one year and thereafter
automatically renews for successive periods of 12 months,
unless terminated by either party on at least six months’
notice.
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Report of the Directors

continued

Review of service providers
The performance of the service providers is reviewed on
an ongolng basis throughout the period by the Audit and
Management Engagement Cormmittee The Commitiee
considers a number of factors including performance

of duties, the skills and experience of key staff, and

the capability and resources of the service provider to
deliver satisfactory performance for the Company. The
Board is satisfied with the performance of the service
providers appointed by the Company and considers their
continued appointment to be in the best interests cf the
Company and its shareholders.

Substantial Siiarehf:idings -

At 31 March 2021, the Company had been informed of the
following disclecsable interests in the share capital of the
Company.

Percentage of

L odmnwem ke
Investec Wealth & Investment Limited  62135,615 9.9%
East Riding of Yorkshire Council 37,153,492 597
BlackRock, Inc. 31,266,521 5.03
Massachusetts Financial 31.210.592 502
Services Company
Standard Life Aberdeen plc 30,492,544 - 490

Between 3] March 2021 and the date of this Report, the
Company has been informed of the following changes in
the disclosahle interests:

Percentage ot

Nurrhber of Total Voting

_ o Ordinary shares Rights
BlackRock, Inc 30,918 419 496
Massachusetts Financial 30,300,144 486

Services Company

Continuation Vote
The Company has an unlimited life. However, in
accordance with its Articies, the Board will propose an
ordinary resolution for the Company to continue in its
current form to shareholders at the AGM to be held in
2022. and at the AGM held every five years thereafter.
If the resoluticn is not passed. the Directors intend to
formulate proposals to be put to shareholders within
six months of such resolution being defeated for the
recrganisation or reconstruction of the Company.
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Listing Rule 9.8.4
The listing rule 9.8.4 outlines a sernes of requirements for
listed companies to disclose certain items. The Directers
confirm that there are no disclosures required in relation
to Listing Rule 9.8.4.
Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financial instruments in its
operations. The financial instruments of the Company at
31 March 2021 comprised trade receivables and payables,
other debtors, cash and cash equivalents, non-current
borrowings, current borrowings and derivatives.

QOther than its fixed interest rate debt facilities, it is the
Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of all financial
instruments on the statement of financial position 1s
equal to their fair value.

For a more detailed analysis of the Cornpany’s financial
risk management, please refer to note 33.C of the
financial statements.
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirements to disclose
the annual guantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent for activities for which the Company
is responsible. The Board believes that the Company

has, from a formal reporting perspective, no reportable
emissions as this reporting falls under the lessees’
responsibility as part of the terms of their fully repairing
and insuring leases; emissions produced from either

the registered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed to fall under the
responsibility of other parties; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the GHG Protocel Corporate Standard. In relation to
the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR),
implemented by The Companies (Directors’ Report} and
Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)
Regulations 2018. for the year ended 31 March 2021 the
Group is considered to be a low energy user.

Regardless of the obligations of other parties, the
Company takes the issue of environmental enhancement
and emissions sericusly as part of its overall E5G strategy
and is evaluating the portfolic, working with housing
managers, to consider where it can bring about further
enhancements and improvements.

Further details can ke found in the Environmental, Social
anad Governance report on page 50
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Report of the Directors

continued

Charitable Donations

In addition to its direct investments, the Company plays
a broader part within the comrmunities in which it
works. Whilst recognising the practical [imitations that
all financial investors face Civitas supports voluntary
organisations that are active within the broader housing
and homelessness environment. Civitas also intends, as
part cf its broader financial and operational reporting, to
provide a commentary on the positive social change and
impact that results from the investments that have been
made,

The following charitable donations were agreed during
the year:

Chanty L o Donanan

Crisis £35,946
Choir with No Name*® £15,000
Little Sprouts £5600
House of St Barnabus £5,000
WISH* £3,600
Total 64546

" pad n the year 1o March 2021

Auditor
In the case of each Director in office at the date the
Report of the Directors is approved:

e 5o far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Group and Company's
auditor is unaware; and

s they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that
the Group and Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its
willingness to continue to act as auditor of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointmeant will be propesed
at the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

72

Corporate Governance
The Corperate Governance Statement, the Report of the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report form part of the Report of
the Directors.
Approval - o -
The Report of the Directors has been approved by the
Board.

By order of the Board
Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary

29 June 2021
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Reportﬂof the Audit and ﬁénageméht Endagement Committee

Introduction

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee (the
"Committee”) oversees the financial reporting process

for the Company, with consideration of the internal
contrels and risk management of the Company, and
oversight nf the Coampany's compliance with accounting
standards and regulatory requirements. It also oversees
the performance of the Investment Manager and the
Company's administrative and company secretarial
support.

Composition

The Committee {s chaired by Carcline Gulliver and
comprises all the Directors. The Committee operates
within written terms of reference as determined by the
Board. The Beard considers that at least one member has
recent and relevant financial experience and is satisfied
that the Committee as a whole has competence relevant
to the sector in which the Company operates.

Meetings

The Committee meets twice a year; on both occasions.
part of the meeting is held with the external auditor
without the [nvestment Adviser present. The Commuittee
met twice in the financial year and the meetings were
attended by each member as set out on page 78.

Responsibilities of the Committee:
The principal functions of the Committee are to:

e oversee the financial reporting process for the
Company and monitor the integrity of the financial
statermnents of the Company and the Group. including
their compliance with accounting standards and
regulatory requirements;

e to advise the Board, where requested, on whether
the Annual Repert and financial statements, taken as
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
previde the information necessary fcr shareholders
1o assess the Company's position and perfoermance,
business model and strategy;

s review and monitor the internal financial control and
risk management systems of the Company.

e« monitor and review annually whether an internal
audit function 1s required;

¢ review the [nvestment Adviser's whistleblowing
arrangements;

e approve the appointment, re appointment or

CVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

removal of the external auditor, and approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement;

s manage the relationship hetween the Company
and the external auditor, including reviewing their
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process;

s develop and implement a policy on the engagement
of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
and

e review and monitor the performance of, and
contractual arrangements with, the Investment
Adviser, the AIFM and other service providers.

It is within the Committee’s terms of reference for its
members to seek independent professiconal advice, at the
Company's expense, as required in the furtherance of its
duties.

During the period, the Committee carried out its duties as
specified in the terms of reference, as follows:

o discussed and agreed the scope of the audit and the
audit plan with the external auditor;

# agreed the remuneration of the external auditar,

e reviewed the half-year and annual financial
statements and discussed the results of the audit with
the external auditor;

e reviewed the internal controls of the Company
and the Risk Matrix, which is reviewed by the
Committee on a six-monthly basis, and carried cut
an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's
risk management and internal control systems; the
Committee has not identified nor been advised of any
tailings cr weaknesses which it has determined to be
significant

s reviewed the performance of the Investment Adviser,
the AIFM and other key service providers and made a
recommendation to the Board about their continuing
engagement; and

¢ monitgred the Company's whistleblowing
arrangements. No incidents were raised during the
period.

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluation of the performance of the

Committee is disclosed on pages 78 and 79.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

continued

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluation and managing the principal and emerging
risks faced by the Group. Further details can be found on
pages 79 and 80.

The principal risks and uncertainties identified from the risk
register and a description cof the Group’s risk management
procedures can be found on pages 44 to 47.

Activities

The Committee meets at least twice a year to conslder the
annual repert. interim report, any other formal financial
performance announcements and any other matters

as specified under the Committee’s terms of reference
and reporied to the Board on how it discharged

its responsibilities

During the year, the Committee discussed and

considered the external audit performance. objectivity

and independence, the external auditor re-appointment,
accounting policies and alternative accounting treatments,
significant accounting judgements and estimates. the need
for an internal audit function and the risk register.

During the year, the Commuittee also conducted a
comprehensive review of the key agreements with

its service providers and a detailed review of the
perfcrmance, composition, personnel, processes and
internal contrel systems of the [nvestment Manager,

a review of all of the Group's other corporate advisers

and key service providers. The discussion included an
assessment of performance and suitability of the services
provided in the context of the fees pald to each provider,
and a review cf the termination period of each agreement.

The Committee considered the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement, to ensure it continues to reflect
the commercial arrangements agreed between the
Company and the Investment Manager and was satisfied
that this was the case.

Significant Issues Considered by the Committee
The Commitiee considered the key accounting
judgements underlying the preparation of the financial
statements focusing specifically on

Signiticant Financiai Reporting Issue - Valuation of
Investment Property

The valuaticn of the property pertfolio 1s crucial to the
statemnent of financial position and reperted results.

After discussion with the Investment Adviser, the
Committee has determined that the key risks of
misstaternent of the Company {inancal statements relate
to the valuation of investment property.

The valuations of the investment properties at the end of
the financial pericd were independently performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle {"JLL"), whormn the Committee considers
1o have sufficient expertise, experience and local and
national knowledge of social housing and supported
housing 1o undertake the valuations.

JLL alsc conducts initial valuations of preperties on
acquisition.

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Committee that
the method of valuation has been applied consistently
during the year It further confirmed that, during the
course of the period, JLL was regularly challenged by
the Investment Adviser on the assumpticns used in the
valuation of the Company's investment properties to
ensure ropust and appropriate methods were being
applied The Investment Adviser discuss these areas of
challenge with the Commuttee.

The Auditor met separately with JLL and reported back
to the Committee on its challenge of the valuations

and assumptions. The Auditor was satisfied that the
valuations had been prepared using appropriate
methods and assumptions, and had been prepared in
accordance with RICS Valuation - Professional Standards.

As explained in note 15.0 to the financial statements,

the approach adopted by the Company is to recognise
investment properties at fair value, with the fair value of
the property being based on valuations performed by JLL.
The revaluation of the investment properties gave rise to
new revaluation gains of £5.5 million i the period

Maintenance of REIT status.

There are a number of conditions that a company {or
principal company of a group REIT) needs to satisfy in
order to become a REIT and remain within the regime.
The UK REIT regime affords the Group a beneficial tax
treatment for income and capital gains. provided certain
criteria are met. There is a risk that these REIT conditions
may not be met and additicnal tax becomes payable by
the Company. The Board regularly reviews the REIT tests
that are performed by the Administrator.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has maintained
its REIT status throughout the year.

Misstatements

The [nvestment Adviser confirmed to the Committee that it
was not aware of any material or imrnaterial misstatements
made intentionally to achieve a particular presentation.
The Committee confirms that it is satished that the

auditor has fulfilled its responsibibities with diligence and
professional scepticism.
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flepbrt of the Audit éﬁd_l\danadement Engagemeht Committee

continued

Conclusion in respect of the Annual Report and
Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentations and reports from the
Investment Adviser, the Committee is satisfied that the
financial statements appropriately address the critical
judgements and key estimates. both in respect of the
amounts reported and the disclosures.

The Committee is also satisfied that the significant
assumptions used for determining the value of assets
and liabilities have been appropriately scrutinised and
challenged and are sufficiently robust. Accordingly, the
Comrmittee has concluded that the Annual Report and
financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair balanced
and understandable, and has recommended their
approval to the Board on that basis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure

As a result of the UK's implementation of the EU's
mandatory audit firm rotation requirements, the
Company is required to ensure that the external auditor's
contract is put out to tender at least every 10 years,

with the proviso that ne single firm may serve as the
Company's external auditor for a period exceeding 20
years. PwC was first appointed as the Company's auditor
with effect from March 2017. It is intended that the
external audit will be put out to tender no later than for
the financial year commencing 1 April 2026, which is 10
years after the Company's initial listing.

Sandra Dowling has been the senior statutory auditer for
the audit since PwC’s appeintment. Under the pariner
rotation rules set out in the appiicable ethical standards.
Saira Choudhry will take over as audit partner for the 2022
audit, her final year as partner will be 2027 after five years
service.

Assessment of the Effectiveness of the External Audit
Process

As part of its annual review of the effectiveness of

the external audit process, the Comrmittee obtained
assurance on the quality of the external audit from its
own evaluation, the audit feedback documentation and
from correspondence and discussions with the audit
partner, Investment Adviser and the Administrator.

The Auditor demonstrated a geod understanding of

the Group, and had identified and focused on the

areas of greatest financial reporting risk. Its reporung

to the Commities was clear, open and thorough. The
Committee 1s satsfied that the Auditor has demonstrated
professional scepticism and appropriately challenged
management's judgements. The FRC's Audit Quality
Inspections Report on the audits carried ocut by
PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP was alsc considered

by the Committee. On the basis of these factors and
assessments, the Committee has concluded that the
external audit process has been effective.

The Committee assessed the external auditor's
independence, qualifications. relevant experience, and
effectiveness of audit procedures. [n advance of each
audit, the Committee obtains confirmation from the
external auditor that it remains independent and that the
level of non-audit fees are not an independence threat.
Non-audit Services

The Committee has put into place a policy for the
provision of non-audit services to the Company by the
auditor. The general intention of the Committee is to
avold the provision of non-audit services by the auditor,
other than the review of the half-yearly report, as these
have the potential to compromise the independence of
the auditor. The Committee acknowledges that in certain
situations it may be appropriate for the external auditcr
to provide such services to the Company for a variety of
reasons including cost effectiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relationship between the Board and
the external auditor. All non-audit fees are approved by
the Committee in advance Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significant, the Committee considers the
appropriateness of the independence safeguards put in
place by the auditor.

The total fees paid te PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF during
the period, net of VAT, totalled £361,000 (2020: £246,000), of
which £57,000 {2020: £51,000) was received [or non-audit
services. For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
non-audit service fees related to the review of the half
yearly report.

Note 9.0 to the consolidated financial statements
details all services provided and total fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021. The Committee considers
PricewaterhocuseCoopers LLP to be independent of
the Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditor
Taking into account the performance and effectiveness of
the Auditor and the confirmation of their independence,
the Committee has recommended 16 the Board that a
resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
the Company's auditor be put to the sharehoclders at the
forthcoming AGM.

CMA Order”

The Company has compilied with the provisions of the
CMA Crder throughout the year ended 31 March 2021,

Caroline Gulliver
Chairman, Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

29 June 2021

* Terms defined in the Glossary,
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Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require listed companies to disclose
how they have applied the principles and complied

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

to which the issuer is subject. The provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (UK Code’), as issued by the
FRC in July 2018, are applicable to the year under review
and can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance ("AlIC Code™ as issued by the AIC in February
2019. The AIC Code addresses all the principles set outin
the UK Code, as well as setting cut additional principles
and recommendations on issues that are of specific
relevance to the Company as an mvestment company.
The FRC has confirmed that AIC member companies
who report against the AIC Code will be meeting their
obligations in relation to the UK Code and the associated
disclosure requirements of the FCA. The AIC Code can be
viewed at www.theaic.couk.

The Board considers that reporting against the principles
and recommendations of the AIC Code provides
shareholders with full details about the Company’s
corporate governance compliance.

Statement of Compliance

Except as set out below, the Company has complied

with the provisions of the AIC Cede threughout the year
ended 31 March 2021

Provision 23: Directors are not appointed for a specified
term, as all Directors are non-executive and the Board
believes that a Director's performance and their
continued contribution te the running of the Company
is of greater importance and relevance to Shareholders
than the length of time for which they have served as a
Director of the Company. Each Director is subject to the
election and re-election provisions set gut in the Articles
which provide that a Director appointed during the year
is required to retire and seek election by Shareholders
at the next Annual General Meeting following their
appointment. Thereafter the Directors intend to offer
themselves for re-election annually and will aim to not ke
on the Board for more than 8 years; and

Provision 37: As all the Directors are non-executive, the
Board was of the view that there was no requirement for
a separate remuneration comrnittee, Directors’ fees were
considered by the Board as a whole within the lirnits
approved by Shareholders. Since the end of the year,
the Board has agreed the establishment of a separate
Remuneration and Nomination Comrmittee.
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The UK Code includes provisions relating to:

e« therole of the chief executive; and
e executive directors rernuneration.

The Beoard considers that these provistons are not relevant
10 the position of the Company. being an externally
managed investment ccmpany In particular, all of the
Company's day-tc-day management and administrative
functions are outsourced to third parties. As a result,

the Company has no executive Directors, employees

or internal operations. The Company has therefore not
reported further in respect of these provisions

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board

is responsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate strategy.
corporate governance, risk assessment and overall
investment policy. The Directcrs have overall
responsibility for the review of investment activity and
performance, and the supervision of the Investment
Adviser which is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the portfolio assets.

The Board consists of five non-executive Directors. It
seeks to ensure that it has an appropriate balance of
skills and experience, and considers that, collectively, it
has substantial recent and relevant experience of public
company management, the UK real estate sector, sccial
housing and investment companies. All the Directors are
independent of the [nvestment Adviser and the AIFM.

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters reserved
for decision by the Board, including inter alia,
determining the Company's investment objective and
policy. and gearing and dividend policies. This schedule
of matters reserved for the Beoard is available on the
Company's website,

The Directors ensure that risks are effectively managed
through robust policies and procedures, supported

by the right values and culture The Board's primary
focus is the sustainable long-term success of the Group
to deliver value for shareholders. taking into account
other stakeholders.

The Board is responsible for investrnent decisions, other
than to the extent delegated to the AIFM and/or the
Investment Adviser, and the appointment, supervision
and monitoring of the Company's service providers,
including amongst others, the AIFM and the [nvestment
Adviser. The Board is responsible for the interim and
annual financial statements of the Company and, 1n
conjunction with the AIFM, also approves the periodic
calculation of the Net Asset Value.
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Corporate Governance Statement

continued

The Chairman, Michael Wrobel, was independent of

the Investment Adviser at the time of his appointment
and is deemed by his fellow Directors to continue to be
independent in character and judgement and free of
any conflicting relationships. He leads the Board and

1s responsible for its overall effectiveness in directing

the Company. In llaison with the Ccmpany Secretary, he
ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Mr Wrobel considers himself to have
sufficient time to cornmit to the Group's affairs. He has no
significant commitments other than those disclosed in
his biography on page 66. The role and responsibilities of
the Chairman are clearly defined and set out in writing, a
copy of which is available on the Company's website.

Peter Baxter is the Senior Independent Director of

the Company. He provides a scunding board for

the Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the
other Directors and sharehclders. He also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chairman and takes the lead in the annual evaluation
of the Chairman by the cther Directors. The role and
responsibilities of the Senior Independent Director are
clearly defined and set out in writing, a copy of which is
available on the Company's website,

The Board has no set policy for the length of tenure of
Directors although it keeps in mind the recommendations
of the AIC Code during succession planning. It 1s the
Beoard's policy for all Directors to stand for re-election
annually. Recommendaticns for election/re-election of
Directors are made on an individual kbasis following
rigorous review. Directors are appointed under letters of
appointment, copies of which are available for inspection
at the registered office of the Company and at the AGM.

Board Operation and Culture

The Board meets formally at least quarnterly, but also
meets on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considering
potential transactuons and assoclated due diligence.
The Board will meet to consider and, if appropriate,
approve the acquisition of properties recommended

by the Investment Adviser. The Investment Adviser
prepares an Investment Proposal Paper ("IPP7) in respect
of the proposed acquisitions which includes details

of the transaction and due diligence reports. Upon
review of the [PP, the Board contemplates the structure
of the transaction, any risks attached to the proposed
transaction and how these would be mitigated/managed,
and the impact ¢f the transaction on the value of the
Group's property portfclio, following advice from

the valuers
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For the purpose of monitoring the portfclio, the Board
recelves pericdic reports from the AIFM and the
Investment Adviser, detailing the performance of the
Company. The Board delegates certain responsibilities
and functions to the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee, which has written terms of reference.

To assist the Board in the day-to-day operations of the
Cocmpany, artangements have been put in place to
delegate authority for performing certain operations to
the AIFM, the Investment Adviser and other third-party
service providers, such as the Administrator and the
Company Secretary.

The Chairman demonstrates objective judgement,
promotes a culture of openness and debate and
facilitates effective contributions by all Directors. The
Directors are required to act with integrnity, lead by
example and promote this culture within the Company

The Board seeks to ensure the alignment of the
Company's purpose, values and strategy with the culture
of openness, debate and integrity through cngoing
dialogue, and engagement with the Investment Adviser
and the Company's other service providers. The Board
and the Investment Adviser operate in a supportive, co
operative and ¢open environment.

The culture of the Board is considered as part of

the annual performance evaluation process which

i1s undertaken by each Director. The culture of the
Company's service providers is alse considered by the
Audit and Management Engagement Commuittee during
the annual review of their performance and while
considering their continuing appointment.

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance on behalf of the Directors at the expense of the
Company. The Board has agreed arrangements whereby
Directors may take independent professional advice

in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has

also indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Associaticn.

Independéﬁéeiﬁf Directors
The independence of all Directors is reviewed as part of
the annual assessment of the Board

The Board has determined that each Director remains
independent in character and judgement and is free of
any relationships or circumstances that threaten their
independence of the Company or 1ts [nvestment Adviser.
[n particular. none of the Directors have ever been
executives of the Company or the Investment Adviser,
have had a material direct cr indirect relationship
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Corpo_l:éte Governance Statement

continued

with the Company or its stakeheclders. have received
disproporticnate fees, have close family relationships
with stakeholders or represent significant sharehoclders.

Board Meetings

A formal agenda 1s approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance of
each meeting to the non-executive Directors and other
attendees. A typical agenda includes: an analysis of
portiolic performance and exposure; an update on

the investment pipeline; the Company's financial
performance; updates on investor relations; statutory and
regulatory compliance; and any corporate governance
matters. Kelevant papers on the items included on the
agenda are circulated in good time to the members of
the Board, in advance of the meeting.

The Investment Adviser attends the Board meetings
together with representatives from the AITM and
Company Secretary. Representatives of the Company's
other adwvisers are also invited 1o attend Board rmeetings
from time to time.

The number of Board and Audit and Management
Engagement Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 March 2021 along with the attendance of the
Directors is set out below:

ALdit and Managernent

e _ Board Engagement Comrmatee

Nurber ertitled
ta attend

HNemrber
arrended

Number antilec
1o attene:

Numher
altended

Michael Wrobel 13 13 2 z
Alastair Moss 13 13 2 2
Alison Hadden 13 12 2 2
Caroline Gulliver 13 13 2 2
Peter Baxter 13 13 2 2
Committee

The Company cperates through the Board and its only
Board committee, namely the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee (the "“Comumittee” The Board
evaluates the membership of 1ts Board committees

on an annual basis. All Directors are a member of the
Cormmittee. Caroline Gulliver, the Chairman of the
Comrmittee, is a Chartered Accountant and is considered
to have recent and relevant financial experience. The
Committee as a whole has competence relevani tq the
real estate investment company sector. The Chairman

is a member of the Committee. but does not chair it. His
membership of the Committee is considered appropriate
given the small size of the Beoard and the Chairman's
knowledge of the financial services industry. A copy of
the terms of reference of the Committee is available from
the Secretary and on the Company’s website

The Committee meets at least twice a year and reviews
the scope and results of the external audit, its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of
the external auditors, including the provision of non-
audit services.

The Commiftee also reviews the terms of the AIFM
agreement and the Investrment Adviser Agreement, and
examines the effectiveness of the Company’s internai
control systemns and the performance of the AIFM,
Investment Adviser, Administrator, Depositary, Company
Secretary and Registrar. and other service providers.

The Report of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee is set out on pages 73 to 75.

Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Given the size of the Board and the nature of the
Company, it is not deemed necessary to form a separate
rermnunerarion or nomination committee. The Board as

a whole will assess the remuneration and composition
of the Board and whether it has the correct balance

of skills, experience, knocwledge and independence to
operate effectively.

Post the year end, the Board has agreed to establish a
new committee taking on responsibility for Nornination
and Remuneration matters. pius the annual perfermance
evaluation, with the Senicr Independent Director

as Chairman.

Diversity
The Board recognises the benefits of diversity and has
adopted a diversity policy. All Board appointments will
be made on merit and have regard to diversity in relation
to factors such as gender, ethnicity, skills, background
and experience. The Board does not consider it to be in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders to set
prescriptive diversity criteria or targets, but will continue
to monitor diversity and take such steps as it considers
appropnate to maintain 1ts pcosition as a rneritocratic and
diverse business. See also the Strategic Report on page 28.

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the induction of new Directors has been
established, including the provision of an induction pack
contalning relevant information about the Company,

1ts processes and procedures and meetings with the
Chairman and relevant persons at the Investrnent
Adviser,

Performance Evaluation

Each year the Board undertakes an annua! performance
evaluation of the Board to include the Board's Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, the Chairman and
individual directors
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continued

This year an external review was conducted by BoardAlpha
Limited. an i1ndependent specialist adviser with no
connection with the Company or any individual Director.

BoardAlpha undertook an information gathering exercise,
analysing Board material as well as hnlding individual
interviews, by videc conference, with each Director,

key personnel at the Investment Adviser, the Company
Secretary and other third-party advisers. BoardAlpha also
attended a Board meeting as an observer.

The evaluation was wide-ranging. including frequency
and effectiveness of meetings and processes, knowledge,
behaviours. balance of skills, diversity and succession
planning.

BoardAlpha produced a formal report that included a
number of recommendations, which were reviewed
in full by the Board. In addition to general processes,
the Board intends to implement the following specific
recommendations and, where relevant, will report on
progress in the 2022 Annual Report:

e The formation of a new committee taking on
responsikility for Noemination and Remuneration
matters, plus the annual performance evaluation, with
Peter Baxter as Chairman. This is intended 1o avoid
conflict for the Company Chairman. specifically in
relation 1o the appointment of a successor, and spread
responsibilities.

e Allocation of time at each board meeting for the
Board to meet privately

e Task key third party providers to submit a self-
assessment against agreed KPIs, as an addition to the
current internal assessment.

The Board considered a recommendation to separate the
responsibilities of the Audit and Management Engagement
Cormmittee, but concluded that this would not deliver any
improvement. This will be kept under review.

The results of the evaluaticn concluded a strong and
collaborative Board, with high calibre and experienced
Board members and a strong and independent
Chairman The Board was found to provide good and
independent challenge tc the Investment Adviser in
ordler to achieve the best cutcome for shareholders that
is consistent with the Company's social impact aims.

It also concluded that the flow and activities of both
the Board and its Audit and Management Engagement
Committee worked well.

The results of the evaluation of the Chairman were
presented to the Senior Independent Director and
concluded that he is a very strong and independent
Chairman, with excellent leadership.
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The Beard concluded that each Director brings
considerable expertise and experience 1o the Board and
the Board operates with good independent thought
and challenge.

All Board members have assessed their ongoing
commitments and are satisfied that they can comrmit the
time necessary (o execute their duties to the Company.
Contflicts of Interest

All Directors have a statutory responsibility to avoid
situations where a conflict of interest exists, or may exist,
between the Company and an entity that the Director is
either directly or indirectly involved with The Board has
procedures in place to identify potential conflicts and
resolve any that should arise In the case of a conflict of
interest. the nature and extent of the conflict are assessed
against the existing internal control structure, and the
results of this assessment and actions taken to resolve the
conflict are documented in the minutes of the relevant
Board meeting. No conflicts of interest arose during the
perncd.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is of prime importance to the

Company and is considered equally with all other
business management activities to ensure protection of
stakeholders, be they tenants, advisers, suppliers, visitors
or others. The Board regularly discusses health and safety
issues with the [nvestment Adviser.

The Company is committed to fostering the highest
standards in health and safety as it believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preventable. All
our stakeholders have a responsibility (o support the aim
of ensuring a secure and safe environment, and ail our
stakeholders are tasked with responsibility for achieving
this commitment.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Directors are respconsible for the systems of internal
control relating to the Company and its subsidiaries.
and the reliability of the financial repcrting precess and
for reviewing their effectiveness, ensuring that the risk
management and control processes are embedded in
day-to-day operations.

An ongoing formal process, in accordance with the FRC
Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and
Related Financial and Business Reporting, has been
established for identifying. evaluating and managing the
principal and other risks most likely to impact the Group.
This process, which is regularly reviewed, together with key
procedures established with a view to providing effective
financial control, has been in place throughout the year
ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this Report.
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continued

The Committee has in place a formal procedure for
performing an ongoing robust assessment of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. A risk matrix
has been established against which the risks iclentified
and the controis in place to mitigate those risks can be
monitored. The risks are assessed on the basis of the
likelihood of them happening, the impact on the business if
they were to occcur and the effectiveness of the controls in
place to mitigate them. [n arriving at its judgement of what
risks the Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company's operations in the light of the following factors:

s the nature and extent of risks which it regards as
acceptatle for the Company to bear within 1ts overail
business objective;

e the threat of such risks becoming reality;

¢ the Company's ability 1o reduce the incidence and
impact of risk on its performance; and

s the cost to the Company and benefits related to the
Company and third parties operating the relevant
controls,

The risk matrix 1s reviewed twice a year by the
Committee and at other times as necessary. The principat
risks facing the Company are set out on pages 44 to 47 of
this Annual Report, toegether with the processes applied
to mitigate those risks.

On an annual basis, the Committee reviews the control
reports of its key service providers and the Auditor notes
any deficiencies in internal controls and processes that
have been identified during the course of the audit.

The Committee is mindful of these key risks as well as
considering evolving and emerging risks such as the impact
of the COVID 19 pandemic and associated lockdowns

and climate change, which have the potential to affect

the Group. The Committee ensures that the Board takes
appropriate advice and debates the issues facing the Group.

At each Board meeting, the Board receives reports from
the Investment Adviser, the Administrater, the AIFM and
the Broker in respect of compliance activities, Company
financial performance and financial position.

The controls, which are regularty reviewed, aim to ensure
that the assets of the Company are safeguarded, proper
accouniung records are maintained, and the financial
information used within the husiness and for publication
15 1eliable The risk management process and Company
systems of internal controls are designed (¢ manage rather
than elirminate the risk of fallure to achieve the Company's
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absclute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss.

The Directors have carried cut a review of the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and
internal control systems as they have operated over

the period and up te the date of approval cf the Annual
Report. During the course of the review, the Board has not
identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses
which it has determined to be significant.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness of
establishing an internal audit function and, having regard
to the structure and nature of the Company's activities, has
concluded that the functicn is unnecessary The Committee
will review on an annual basis the need for this function
and make appropriate recommendations to the Board.
Financial Reporting

The Board operates the following key controls in reiation
t¢ financial reporting:

s the Board and Cormnmittee members review quarterly
management reports and supporting documents that
are provided by the [nvestment Adviser;

e the Board has procedures in place for the approval of
expenses and payments to third parties; and

e the Commttee memkbers and Board review all
financial information and announcements prior to
publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibility as

integral to how it conducts 1ts business. It is committed to

being a good corporate citizen and behaving responsibly
with a demonstrated transparency of approach.

To achueve this goal, the Company applies the following
principles to its operations:
Business conduact

The Company's investment decisions are made on the
basis of generating shareholder value and ensuring

the long-term success of the business. The selection ot
suppliers will be made independently by the Company's
Directors upon advice from the Investment Adviser

and in the best interests of the Company. The Board

will ensure that appropriate contrels are in place to
guarantee independence from the supply chain.

All customers and suppliers will be treated fairly and
responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial support to
political parties or politicians.
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The Company is resolutely oppcsed to bribery and
corruption. The Company will not use any illegal or
improper means to further 1ts business interests, nor will
it accept any forms of inducements intended to influence
its investment decisions.

Governance

The Company will protect the interests of its sharehclders
and other stakeholders through compliance with relevant
legal and regulatory environments, and through effective
management of business risk and opporunity.

The Board will ensure that its members are truly
independent, are competent and have the resources and
support required to perform their duties optimally, and
that the Board's decisions are made in the best interests
of the Cocmpany and its shareholders. The performance
of the Board will be regularly reviewed, and Directors will
retire as and when deemed appropriate by the Board in
accordance with best practice

Sbk:ially responsible investrment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible investor
and believes that it is important to invest in specialist
social hcusing properties in a responsible manner in
respect of environmental, ethical and social issues.
The Investment Adviser's evaluation procedure and
analysis of the properties within the portfolio includes
research and appraisal of such matters, and takes into
account environmental and social policies and other
business issues.

Further details on the social impact of the Company’s
investments are included in the Somal Impact report
from the The Good Economy. a summary of which can be
found on page 58.

The Company recognises that environmental protection,
resource efficiency and sustainable development are
necessary to ensure that environmental damage 1s
limited and furthermore that where relevant, positive
actions should be taken to improve the existing
environment for future generations.

Transpare nc-y” T T

The Company aims to pe transparent, and to ensure
that it communicates with its shareholders and
cther stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
understanding cf its business.

The Company maintains accounting documentation
that clearly identifies the true nature of all business
transactions. assets and liahulities, in line with the
relevant regulatory. accounting, and legal requirements.
No record or entry is knowingly false, distorted,
incomplete, or suppressed.
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All reporting is materially accurate and complete and

in compliance in all matenal respects with stated
accounting policies and procedures. The Company does
not knowingly misstate or misrepresent management
information for any reason, and the Company expects the
same to apply to its suppliers.

The Company may be required to make statements

or provide reports to regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other government departments, as well as to
the media. The Company ensures that such statements or
reports are correct, timely, and not misleading. and that
they are delivered through the appropriate channels.

The Company provides through its website, its

Annual Report and other staterments with appropriate
information to enable shareholders and stakehalders to
assess the performance of its business. It complies with
the applicable laws and regulations concerning the
disclosure of information relating to the Company

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that its properties which
are associated with the provision of health services
provide significant value-adding facilities in the
communities where it invests. The Company aims to
ensure that its properties are applied optimally for the
use and benefit of communities.

Relations with Shareholders
Details regarding the Company's engagement with its
shareholders are set out within the Strategic Report on
pages 30 tc 3L

Approval
The Corporate Governance Statement has been approved
by the Board.

By order of the Board

Link Céapany Matters Limited
Company Secretary

29 June 2021
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy
introduction T
The remuneration policy of the Company is set by

the Board. A resclution to approve the Remuneration
Policy was passed at the AGM of the Company held on

5 September 2019 The policy provisions set out below will
apply until they are next put to sharehoclders for renewal
of that gpproval, which must be at intervals of not more
than three years, or if proposals are made to vary the
pohcy. The Remuneration Policy is binding and sets the
parameters within which Directors’ remuneration may

be set.

éélicy
The remuneration pelicy of the Company 1s to pay its
non-executive Directors fees that are appropriate for
the role and the amount of time spent in discharging
their duties, that are broadly in line with those of
comparable real estate invesiment companies and that
are sufficient to attract and retain suitably qualified and
experienced individuals.

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may also be reviewed when new non-executive Directors
are recruited to the Board. The Directors of the Company
are entitled to such rates of annual fees as the Beard

at its discretion shall from time to time determine The
Chairman of the Board and the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chairman are entitled to receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflecting their additional duties and responsibilities.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addition to the annual fee under the Company's
Articles of Association, if any Director is requested

to perform any special duties or services cutside his
ordinary duties as a Director, he may be paid such
reasonable additicnal temuneration as the Board may
from time to time determine.

Comrponent Director . . Rate at 1 Apnl 202 Puipose DfREH"LHEIE(\UrL . i _ L
Annual fee Chairman £82,000 <Commitment as Chairman of a public
company’
Annual fee Ncon-executive Directors £33280 Commitment as non-executive Directors of
a public company?
Additional fee  Chairman of the Audit and £5000 For additicnal responsibilities and time
Management Engagement Committee comrnitment? S
Additonal fee  All Directors Discretionary  For extra or special services performed in
their role as a Director® o
Expenis_és " &ll Directors n/a Reimbursement of expenses incurred in the

performance of duties as a Director®

1 The Company's palicy is for the Chairman of the Board ta be paw a higher fee than the otber D-rectors ta refiect the mere onerous role

2 Tre Compary's Aricles of Assoc alon it the aggreqate tees payable to the Board of D rectars to £250,000 per anrum

3 Tte Compary's palicy 1s for the Charmar of the Aug t and Mapagemert Engagement Cammittee to be pa o a kigher fee than the other Directors to reflec! the more areraus role

4 This ‘s a prewsion of the Compary's Articles Adgiional fees would pnly be paid in exceproral © rcunstances in relanes to the performance of estra o special services

5 Drectars are ent tled to cla m expenses n respec! of dul gs Lrdertaken nconnection with ther role as a Directer

The Comgpany has no ermplayees other thar the Oirectors Accerdirgly, there are ro d ferences .n policy or the remuneratian of Oirectars and the remurerat or of employees

Ivo Director i< ant tled to receve ary remurerat cn wh.ch s performarce related As a result, there are no gerformance conditens r relaton 1o ary elemerts of the Direclors' remureratan n ex sterce fo set oul in

th & Rernureranan Potcy

Directors’ and Officers’ liakility insurance cover is
maintained by the Company on behalf of the Directors.

Directors are entitled o be paid all expenses properly
incurred in attending Board or shargholder meetings or
otherwise in or with a view to the performance of their
dutles

az

As all Directors are non-executive and there are no
employees, the Company does not operate any share
option or ather long-term incentive schemes and the
Directors' fees are not subject to any performance criteria.
No pension or other retirement benefit schemes are
operated by the Company for any of 1ts Directors
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Servrea Uonaracts

No Director has a service contract with the Company. The
Directors are appointed under letters of appointment.
Their appointment and any subsequent termination or
retirement is subject to the Articles of Association The
Directors’ letters of appointment provide that, upon the
terminaticn of a Directcr's appeintment, that Director
must resign in writing and all records remain the
property of the Company. The Director's appoeintment
can be terminated in accordance with the Articles of
Association and without compensation. There {s no
notice pericd specified in the Articles of Asscciatien for
the removal of Directors and all Directors are subject to
annual re-election by shareholders.

Aptroant o Ren ar
The remuneration package for any new Chairman or
ncn-executive Director will be the same as the prevailing
rates determined on the bases set out above. The Board
will not pay any intreductery fee or incentive to any
person to encourage them to become a Director, but
may pay the fees of search and recruitment specialists
in connection with the appointment of any new non
executive Director.

imeryton

sy ptTesyey o

St hoa ooy
Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees being
paid to Directors would be taken into consideration by
the Board when reviewing levels of remuneration.
Remuneration Report
The Board presents its Directors’ Remuneration Report
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 The Beard
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. An ocrdinary
resclution for the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report will be put to sharehelders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company’'s auditer to audit certain
of the disclosures required. Where disclosures have been
audited, they are indicated as such. The auditor's opinion
is included in the auditor's report on pages 89 to 95.
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Annual Statement from the Chairman
I am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 March 2021

As the Board has no executive Directors, it does

not consider it necessary 1o estabiish a separate
Rermuneration Committee. The Board as a whole

is therefore responsible for decisions regarding
remmuneration. The Board consists entirely of non-
executive Directors and the Company has no employees.

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such
rate as the Directors shall from time to time determine.
The Board has set three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman, one for other Directors, and an additional

fee that is paid to the Director who chairs the Audit

and Management Engagement Committee. Fees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remuneration
Policy. The fee for any new Director appointed will be
determined on the same basis.

Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 March 2021 were

at a level of £50,000 per annum for the Chairman and
£32,000 per annum for other non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee received an additicnal fee of £4.000 per
annum. No changes relating to Directors’ rermnuneration
were made during the year to 31 March 2021 With
effect from 1 April 2021, the Directors have agreed

to increase the Director's, Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chalrman and Chairman's
annual fee by 4% with the additional fee paid to the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee
Chairman increasing by £1,000 to reflect the additicnal
work undertaken.

There were no other payments for extra or special
services in the year ended 31 March 2021

At the AGM held cn 5 September 2018, shareholders
approved the amendment to the Company's Articles of
Association which increased the maximum aggregate
annual remuneration payable tc Directors from E200,000
1o £250,000.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved
at the AGM held on 5 September 2019. There will be
no significant change in the way the Remuneration
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

a3
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Directors’ Remuneration Repdft

continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served during the year received the following emoluments:

Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020

Director

Michael Wrokiel (Chairman)
Alastair Moss
Alison Hadden?
Caroline Gulliver
Peter Baxter
Total

1 Appointed or 2 November 2013

The amounts paid to the Directors were for services as
non-executive Directors. Taxable benefits included in the
above table are in respect of the amounts reimbursed to
Directors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
by them in the performance of their duties. There are no
variable elements in the remuneration payable to the
Directors.

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the total
aggregate remuneration and benefits in kind of the
Directors of the Company 1s subject to @ maximum of
£250,000 in any financial year Any change to this would
require shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited) T
The Directors do not have service contracts with the
Company but are engaged under letters of appointment
under which there is no enutlement to compensation for
loss of office. Directors are subject to annual re-election
by shareholders.
Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the
pericd frem [FO on 18 November 2016 to 31 March 2021
the total sharsholder return of the Cornpany's Ordinary
shares relative to the FTSE All-Share Index and FTSE

350 Real Estate Index. Although the Company has no
formal benchmark, these indices have been selected as
the FTSE All-Share represents all companies of a similar
capital size, and the constituents of the FTSE 350 Real
Estate Index are UK-based real estate companies and are
therefore considered to represent the most appropriate
comparative

84

Fees Taxable benefits Totat Fees Taxable benefits Tolal
£50,000 - £50,000 £50.000 - £50,000
£32,000 - £32,000 £32,000 - E£32,000
£32,000 - £32,000 £11.569 £1.073 £12,642
£36,000 - £36,000 £36,000 - £36,000
£32,000 - £32,000 £32000 - £32000

£182,000 - £182,000 £161569 £1073  E162.642
Tota! Sharzholder Return (rebasedi R
FTSE 35Q Real Estate Index
"a0
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay T
The table below sets cut, in respect of the year ended
31 March 2021

a) theremuneration paid to the Directors: and
b) the distributions made to shareholders by way of

dividend

T o T ewended | vearerded
31 March 2021 31 Marck 2020

. £000 £000

Directors remuneration 182 162
Dividends paid to Crdinary 33,413 32870

shareholiders B
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Directors’' Interests (audited)

There is no requirement under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the terms of their appointment for
Directors to hold shares in the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the Birectors (including their
connected perscns) had beneficial interests in the
fcllowing number of shares in the Company:

X1 March 2021

31 March 2020

_Ordinary chares  Qrdinary shares
Michael Wrobel 100,598 100,598
Alastair Moss 11,766 11,766
Alison Hadden - -
Caroline Gulliver 58,832 58,832
Peter Baxter 47,065 47,065

There have been no changes to Directors’ share interests
between 31 March 2021 and the date of this Report.

None of the Directors or any persons connected

with themn had a material interest in the Companvy's
transactions, arrangements or agreements during the
year.

Voting at AGM
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved at

the AGM held cn 5 September 2019 and the Directors’
Rernuneration Report for the yvear ended 31 March 2020
was approved at the AGM held on 8 September 2020 The
votes cast by proxy on these resclutions were:

‘votas for Votes against Vates Total

Bs_qluue_n_ % of votes cast % of votes cast withheld __  votescast
To approve 99.99 0.01 10,801 307,334,672
the Directors’

Remuneration

Report

To approve 9999 0.01 - 320,495,728

the Directors’
Remuneration
Policy

1 Votes far nclude discrelionary proxy votes granied to the Cha rman by sharehalgers
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Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company is committed to ongoing shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes.
Where there are substantial votes against resclutions

in relation to Directors’ remuneration, the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vote and will detail any
resulting actions in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Approval o
The Directcrs’' Remuneration Report was approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by:

Chairman

29 June 2041

vivauiaal) .

ikl

LA
1.3




Statement of Directors’ Reéponsil:iiqiitie;--

The Directors are re?ponsibiéfor pfgfaaring the Anr_iaa;l'Repor‘tEnd the financial

statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation,

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directcrs to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements
in acccerdance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and the company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”,

and applicable law). Additionally, the Financial Conduct
Authority's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
require the directors to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

Under company law. directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounnng pelicies and then apply
them consistently:

s state whether applicable international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and international financial
reperting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation
(EC) No 16C6/2002 as it applies in the European Union
have been followed for the Group financial statements
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 10! have been followed for the Company iinancial
statements, subject to any material depanures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reascnable and prudent; and

s prepare the financial staternents on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue 1n business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irreqularities.

The directors are 1esponsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group's and Company's transactions and

86

disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positicn of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the
Cornpanies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial
statements Article 4 of the JAS Regulaticn.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance

and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in
the United Kingdem governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations '
The directors consider that the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for sharehoiders to assess the Group's and Company's
posttion and performance, business mode! and strategy.

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are
listed in the Board of Directors confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge:

e« the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and international financial
reperting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation
(EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Eurcpean Union,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Group;

¢ the Company financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprsing FRS 101, give a true
and fair view of the assets, llabilities, financial position
and profit of the Company, and

e the Group Strategic Report includes a fair review of
the develepment and perfcrmance of the business
and the position of the Group and Company,
together with a description cf the principal risks and
uricertainties that it faces.

Approval

This Statement of Directers’ Responsibilities was

approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

29 June 2021
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Alternative Investment Fund Managefs Directive

As the Company and the Alternative Investment Fund
Manager (the "AlFM") are each domiciled in the United
Kingdom, the FCA Handbook rules require that, amcng
other things, the AIFM makes available the following
information to shareholders of the Company under
the AIFM Directve (as implemented in the UK} and

to notify them of any material change to information
previously provided.

[nvestment Policy, Leverage and Liquidity (AIFMD
23{1)fa)(bhji

The investment strategy and cbjectives of the Company.
the types of assets it may invest in and the investment
techniques it may employ, associated risks and any
investment restrictions are laid out in the investment
objectives and policy and other sections of the

Annual Report.

For information about the circumstances in which

the Company may use leverage. the types of sources
permitted and the associated risks and any restrictions
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangements, shareholders are directed to the
disclosures contained in the investment objectives and
policy section of these financial statements as well as
specific AIFMD related disclosures further below.

Under the FCA's Listing Rules to which the Company 15
subject it needs the prior approval of its shareholders to
make a material change to its investment policy.

Since the Company is closed-ended without redemption
rights, liquidity risk managernent is limited to the
liquidity required to meet the Company's ebligations in
relation to its financing arrangements. The AIFM utilises
various risk assessment methods to measure the risk of
portfelio illiquidity to meet the Company's obligations.
This measurement enables the provision of management
information to the AIFM and the Board of the Company to
enable these risks 10 be monitored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIEMD 23{1ic))
The Company is a public limited ccmpany listed on the
Londen Stock Exchange The Company is incorporated
under the laws of England and Wales. The constitutional
document of the Company is its articles of asscciation
which may only be amended by way of a special
resclution of its shareholders. Upon the purchase

of shares, an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Company. A shareholder's liability to the Company will
ke limited to the amount uncalled on their shares.

CIVITAS SOC AL HOLSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

As the Company is incorporated under the laws

of England and Wales, it may not be possible for a
shareholder located outside that jurisdiction to effect
service of process within the local jurisdiction in which
that shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a substantial porton of the assets of the Company
may be located cutside a local jurisdiction in which
a sharehclder resides and, as a result, it may not be
possible to satisfy a judgement against the Company
in such local junsdiction or to enforce a judgement
obtained in the local jurisdiction's courts against

the Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 2301020, fe; and (I )}
The AIFM (G10 Capital Limited) is a private limited
company with its registered office at 3 More London
Riverside, London SE1 2AQ. G10 Capital Limited is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FRN 648853). It has been appointed by the
Company to manage the Company under an AIFM
Agreement with effect from 24 August 2017,

The AIFM is responsible for portfolio managemernt
and risk management and monitoring of the assets of
the Company and has discretionary authority over the
acquisttion and disposition of the Company's assets.
with power to give guarantees and undertake other
transactions on behalf of the Company subject to the
provisions of the AIFM Agreement The AIFM 1s also
responsible for ensuring compliance with the AIFMD.

The AIFM's duties under the AIFM Agreement are owed
to the Company as a whole rather than directly to the
shareholders, whether individually or in groups. The
Beard of the Company is responsible under the AIFM
Agreement for representing the Company in its dealings
with the AIFM.

In order t¢ comply with its regulatory chligations. the
AlFM holds professional indemnity insurance.

Déi@iar'}'ﬁd iis Delegates (ALEMD 23il5d) and 7550
Indos Financial Limited (the "Depositary’) has been
appointed as the Depositary of the Company under a
Depositary Agreement agreed in accordance with AIFMD
requirements. The Depositary is a company incorporated
in England (registered number D8255973) whose
registered office is at 54 Fenchurch Street, London EC3M
3IY. It is authorised to act as a Depositary by the FCA (FRN
602528) The Depaositary is responsible for safekeeping

of the Company's investrnents, including holding in
custody those investments which are required to be

held in custody and verifying ownership and keeping
records of the Company's other investments. and for cash
menitorng.
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Alternative Investment Fund Maﬁnagieﬁrs Directive

Continued

The Depositary's duties under the Depositary Agreement
are owed 1o the Company as a whole and not directly to
shareholders. whether individually or in groups.

The investments of the Company are not ¢f a kind
required to be held in custody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditor (AIEMD 23(1)(d)}

The independent auditer of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE
The auditor's duties, which are set out on pages 94 to

95, are owed 1o the Company as a whole. They have a
statutory responsibility to report to the members of the
Company as a whole in relaticn to the truth and fairness
of the Company's state of affairs and profit or loss.
Valuation {AIFMD 23(1)gl) - o

The assets of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Valuation Policy. The
[nvestment Commitiee which has been set up by the
AIFM in respect of the Company and it's assets adds

a further level of oversight 1o the valuation process as
set out on in the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report,

Faes angd E"xpenses TATEMD 2300000
The Corapany incurs costs in the form of depositary fess,
custodian fees, bank fees and charges, marketing fees,
auditors’ fees, lawyers’ fees, fund administration fees,
company secretarial fees and other fees

Treatment (AIEMD 23115(;3,
No preferential rights have been granted tc any
existing shareholder.

The Company and the AIFM are cemmitted to ensuring
that all shareholders are treated fairly and in accordance
with UK company law. They have not and will not enter
Into any arrangement with ¢ne shareholder which
could result in any overall material disadvantage to the
other sharehgclders

Issue and Redemagarion of Sharehoid;;lir;‘;erest“sTn the
Company ALEMD 23(1l);

The Comgpany is closed-ended and does not provide for
redemption or repurchase of the interests of ordinary
shareholders at their regquest

and 23{1,{ny;

The historic performance of the Company. to the extent
available, has been disclosed to shareholders in the
Company's Annual and Half Yearly Reports, which will be
sent to shareholders and are available from

http// civitassocialhousing.com/

ag

The latest NAV of the Company is published in the !
latest Annual cr Half Yearly Report cr quarterly
NAV announcement.

Prime Broker {AIFMD 23(1’1(0); )
The Company does not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic Disclosures
(AIFMD 23(1)(p),23{(4),23(5)}

Information about the Company's risk profile and risk
management, total leverage and any material change to
the arrangements for managing the Company's liquidity, I
the proportion of assets (if any) subject to special
arrangements arising from hguidity, the maximum
permitted leverage or the grant of rights of re-use of
coliateral or guarantees in relation to leverage will be
provided in the Company’s Annual Reports ar on the
Company's website hitp.//civitassocialhousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Managéﬁéﬁt (AIFMD 23:4)c);

The appointment of the AIFM as the AIFM of the

Company under the AIFMD means that it is responsible |
for risk management and the ongoing process of
identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing

the risks facing the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the AIFMD. The Board keeps the AlFM's
performance of these responsibilities under review as
part of 1ts overall responsibility for the Company's risk
management and internal controls.

The principal risks of the Company are set cut in the risk
management section in the Annual Report. The AIFM's
risk management system incorporates regular review

of these risks and the establishment of appropriate risk
limits and internal control processes to mitigate the
risks. The sensitivity of the Company to relevant rnsks 1s
further detailed in the risk management section in the
Annual Report,

Restrictions on the Use of L_e_\;é_;age and Maximum
Leverage (AIFMD 23(5)

As specified 1n the Investment chjectives and policy in
the Annual Report, The Company has the ability to put up
to a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Asset Value and the AIFM oversees the use of leverage to
ensure that the use of borrowing is consistent with this
requirement. Leverage 1s calculated using gross assets,
with vanous adjustments, divided by net assets.

Under AIFMD, the Company is required to calculate
leverage under the two methodologies specified by
the Directive, the ‘Gross Method' and the 'Commitment
Method, the difference being that the Commitment
Method allows certain expesures to be offset or netted.
Disclosures are made on the website of the Company
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_I'ndependent auditors’ i‘eport to the members of Civitas Social Hoﬁéin& PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinicn:

e Civitas Secial Housing PLC's Group financial
statements and Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”) give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs
as at 31 March 2021 and of the Group's profit and the
Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

s the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with internaticnal
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

e the Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law);
and

» the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included
within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report’), which comprise: the Consclidated and
Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 March
2021; the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows, and
the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description cf the
significant acceounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit
and Management Engagement Committee.

reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation
(EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union
As explained in Note 2.0 to the financial statements, the
Group, in additicn to applying international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, has alsc applied international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant

tc Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Unicn.

In our apinion, the Group financial statements have been
propetly prepared in accordance with international
financial reporung standards adopted pursuant

tc Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union.

Basis for opinion o o

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of cur report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate tc provide a kasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes
the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public
interest entities. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare
that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in Note 9.0, we have provided
no non-audit services to the Group or 1its controlled
undertakings in the period under audit.

Our auﬁépproach
Gvetrview

| e

e We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able t¢ give an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into
account the structure of the Group and the Company,
the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which they operate The Group consists of
a single reportable segment.

T A I
e Valuation of investment property (Group)
s  COVID-19 {(Group and Company)

»  Overall Group materiality: £10.4 million (2020:
£9.5 million) based on 1% of total assets.

» Specific Group materiality: £1.5 million (2020:
£14 million), based cn 5% cf European Public Real
Estate (EPRA) Earnings, for financial statement hine
iterns impacting EPRA Earnings.

» Overall Company materiality: £7.4 million (2020:
£7.4 million) based cn 1% of total assets.

o Performance materiality: £7.8 million {Group; and
£5.6 milllon (Company).
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Independent auditors’ rei:ort to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Continued

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the

financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the }
audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material |

misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect

on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion therecn, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

The key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter

fa : AERR PRRLTRE AR S
Refer to the Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, Note 31, Significant estimate -
valuation of investment property and Note 150, [nvestment
property. Invesiment properues are held at a fair value

cf £893.7 milhion as at 31 March 2021 in the Consohdated
Statement ¢f Financial Position. The valuauon of the Group's
investment property is the key component cof the net asset
value and underpins the Group's result for the year. The
result of the revaluation this year was a gain of £5.5 million.
which 1s acccunted for within 'Change 1n fair value of
investment praperties’ In Note 15.0 Investment property. The
Group's investment property porticlio consists of specialist
social housing properues located :n England and Wales
which are let 1o Registered Providers of social hcusing on
long-term leases. Investment property valuations were
carried out by a third party valuer. Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
{'JLL or the Valuer}. The Valuer, engaged by the Directors,
performed their work in accordance with the Royal [nstitute
of Chartered Surveyors {RICS) RICS Valuauon - Professional
Standards and the requirements cf International Accountung
Standard 40 ‘Investment Property. In determuning the value
cf a property, the Yaluer has taken into account property-
specific information including the lease term and rental
income payable. They applied assumptions for the yield.
discount rate and CPl growth which are influenced by
prevailing market conditicns and comparable transactions.
to arrive at the final valuaticn as at the valuaton date. The
valuauon of the Group's investment property portfolic

was 1dentified as a key audit matter given the valuauocn

is iInherently subjective due 10, among other factors. the
individual nature of each property, its locaticn and the
expected future rental streams fcr that particular property
The wider challenges currently facing real estate investor
markets as a result of COVID-19 further contributed to

the subjectvity for the year ended 31 March 2021 The
sigruficance of the esumates and judgernents involved.
coupled with the fact that only a small percentage difference
1n individual property valuanons, when aggregated, could
result in a material misstatement, warranted specific audit
fccus in this area.

T BN

S0

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Given the inherent subjectivity involved in the valuation

of the property portfolio, and therefore the need for deep
market knowledge when determining the most appropriate
assumptions and the technicalities of valuation methodology.
we engaged cur internal valuation experts (qualified
charntered surveyors) to assist us 1n our audit of this area

Mo ML T M A L T R SR PRR .

We read the Valuer's report and confirmed that the appreach
used was consistent with the RICS guidelines. We assessed
the Valuer's qualifications and expertise and read their terms
of engagement with the Group, determining that there were
no matters that affected their independence and objectvity
or imposed scope limitations upon them. We also considered
fees and other contractual arrangerments that might exist
between the Group and the Valuer. We found no evidence 1o

suggest that the objectivity of the Valuer was compremised.

S1T Y R0 L. ° IO e e ! N
We validated the data provided to the Valuer by
management and found that 1t was consistent with the
information we audited. This data included inputs such as
current rent, rent indexation (CPI or CPI+1%; and lease term,
which we have agreed cn a sample basis 1o executed lease
agreements as part of cur audit work. We verified legat
ownership of properties through independent utle deed
confirmaticns on a sample basis.

Yra v enroae g g Bt e e, s ar s - L e

In cur testing, which invclved the use of our internal real
estale vaiuation experts. we considered the assumptions
utilised by the Valuer within the valuauon and benchmarked
tc market evidence. We challenged the Valuer regarding the
impact of the regulatcry environment on investor sentiment
and asset values.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We attended meetings with management and the Valuer, at
which the valuation methodology and the key assumptions
were discussed. We challenged their approach to the
valuations, and the rationale behind the more significant
valuation assumptions adopted. Where assumptions

were cutside the expected range, we undertook further
investigations, held further discussions with the Valuer

and obtained evidence to supporl explanations recelved.
The valuation commentaries provided by the Valuer

and supporting evidence. enabled us to consider the
property specific factors that may have had an impact on
value, including recent cormparable ransacuons where
appropriate. We concluded that the assumptions used

by the Valuer were consistent with our expectations

and comparable benchmarking and market transaction
informaticn for the asset type.

We have no 1ssues to report in respect of this work.

Refer to the Group Strategic Report - ‘Principal Risks and
Risk Management and the ‘Going Concern and Viability
Statement, the Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, Note 2.0, Basis of preparation and
Note 3.0, Significant accountng judgements, estimates and
assumpticns. The outbreak of Covid-19 has been declared
as a glebal pandemic and is having a major impact on
econcmies and financial rmarkets. In order to assess the
impact of COVID-19 on the business, the Directors’ have
updated their nsk assessment and prepared an analysis of
the pctential impact on the revenues, profits, cash flows.
operations and liguidity position of the Group for the next
12 months and over the next five years. The analysis and
related assumptons have been used by the Directors in
their assessment of the Group's going concern and viability.
We censidered the impact of Covid 19 an the valuation of
investment properties. Given the Sccial Housing sector
within which Civitas operates, their portfolio has seen an
uplift in value dunng the year. We alsc considered the
impact of COVID-19 on any tenant receivables and lease
incentives. Management's analysis includes base and
downside case scenarics. At the balance sheet date, the
Group's cash balance 1s £107.1 million of which £3.3 million is
held as restricted cash and post the year end, the Group has
extended the term of the loan presented in current liabilities
as at 31 March 2021 In making their assessmen! management
took inta account the covenant headroom on the Group's
loan facilines. After considering all of these factors,
management has concluded that preparnng the financial
stalements on a geing concern basis remalns appraopriate.
No material uncertainty 1n relation to going concern exists.

Tircor vr L s T

We evaluated the Group's updated risk assessment and
analysis and considered whether it addresses the relevant
threats posed by COVID-15. We alsc evaluated management’s
assessment and corroborated evidence of the operational
impacts, considering their consistency with cther available
information and our understanding of the business.

Our procedures in respect of the valuation of investment
properties are set out 1n the key audit matter above.

We assessad the disclosures presented in the Annual Report
in relation to COVID-18 by reading the other information,
including the Principal Risks and Risk Management and the
Going Concern and Viability Statement set out 1n the Group
Strategic Report, and assessing 1ts consistency with the
financial statements and the evidence we obtained 1n our
audit. We considered the appropriateness of the disclasures
around the accounting estimates within the Annual Report
and consider these to be adequate. We have obtained
management'’s assessment over the expected credit losses
on financial assets and assessed the methodology applied.
We have tested the integrity of data 1n this calculation
through agreeing a sample of invoices to the aged debtors
report to determine appropriate aged classification. We
have challenged management on the assumpticns used in
the analysis including the default rate and where specific
provisions have been applied.

Our conclusicns relating to going concern and other
informanan are set out in the 'Conclusions relating t¢ going
concern and ‘Reporting on cther information’ secticn of our
report, respectively, below.

We have no 1ssues 1¢ report in respect of this work.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to glve an opinion on the
financial statementis as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting
processes and controis, and the industry in which they operate.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be abie to give an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company. the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Continued

Matertality

The scope of our audit was influenced by cur application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and
in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whele.

Based on our professional judgement we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

financiai statemeants - Group Financial statements - Company
FRATVNY £10.4 million (2020: £9.5 millicn}. £7.4 mullion {2020: £7.4 millicn).
R PP
1% of tota] assets 1% of total assets
T
Hoarysaale 1o The key measure of the Group's perfermance 1s the  The Company's main activity is the holding of
AL G valuation of investment properties and the balance  investments in subsidiaries. On this basis, we set
VLTS sheet as a whole. Given this, we set an overall an overall Company materiality level based on
Group materiality level based on otal assets. total assets.

In addition to overall Group materiality, a specific materiality was also applied to income statement line items that
impact EPRA Earnings. which is based on profit before tax. adjusted to exclude fair value gains/{losses) on investment
property and derivatives. We set a specific overall materiality level of £1.5 mullicn (2020: £14 million}, equating to 5%

of EPRA Earnings. In arriving at this judgement, we considered the fact that EPRA Earnings is a secondary financial
indicator of the Group (refer to the Strategic Report where the term is defined in full).

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the prokability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in
determining the scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions
and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality,
amounting to £7.8 million for the Group financial statements and £5.6 million for the Company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of risstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls — and concluded that an amount at the upper end
of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee that we would report to them misstatements
identified during our audit above £518,000 (Group audit) (2020: £474,000) and £372,000 (Company audit) (2C20: £370,000;
as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

In addition we agreed with the Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee we would report to them
misstatements identified dunng our Group audit above £77.000 (2020: £72.000) for risstatements related to financial
statement line items impacting EPRA Earnings within the financial statements, as well as misstatements below that
amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Our evaluation of the directars’ assessmen! of the Group's and the Company's ability to continue 1o adopt the going
concern basis of accountung included:

e Corroborated key assumpuons (eg hguidity forecasts and financing arrangements) to underlying decumentation
and ensured this was consistent with our audit work in these areas,

s+ Considered management's forecasting accuracy by comparing how the forecasts made in the prior year compare
to the actual results of the current year;

+ Understood and assessed the appropriateness of the key assumptions used both in the base case and in the
severe but plausible downside scenario. including assessing whether we considered the downside sensitivities to
be aprropriately severe;

s+ Tested the integrity of the underlying formulas and calculations within the going concern and cash flow models:

e Considered the appropriateness of the mitigating actions available to management in the event of the downside
scenarlo materialising. Specifically. we focused on whether these actions are within the Group's control and are
achievakbile;

« Reviewed the debt covenant calculations agreeing the inputs to the audited resuits. Additionally, we have
reviewed management's stress 1ests on the covenants; and
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e Reviewed the disclosures previded relating to the going
concern basis of preparation and found that these
provided an explanation of the directors’ assessment
that was consistent with the evidence we obtamned.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not
dentified any material uncertainties relating toc events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issuc

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded
that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is appropriate.

However because not all future events or conditions can
be predicted. this conclusion is not a guarantee as (o
the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

in relaticn to the directors’ reporting on how they have
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to
the directors’ statement in the financial statements about
whether the directors censidered it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur respeonsibilities and the responsibilities of the
directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information

in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cever the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except t0 the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency cr material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is a material misstatement of the financial statements cr a
material misstatement of the cther informaticn. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there

is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Report of the
Directors. we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have

been inciuded.
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Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit,
the Companies Act 2006 requires us also tc report certain
opinions and matters as descnbed below.

Strategic Re{;;r?ghd Repc}rt of the Directors

In our opinion, based cn the work undertaken 1n the course
of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report
and Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021
is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not 1dentify any material
misstatements in the Strategic Report and Report of

the Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’
statements in relation to going concern, longer-term
viability and that part of the corpcrate governance
statement relating to the Company's compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review. Our additicnal responsibilities
with respect to the corporate governance statement as
other information are described in the Reporting on other
information section of this report

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governance statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained
during the audit, and we have nothing material ¢ add or
draw attention to in relation to:

¢ The directors' confirmation that they have carried
out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principail risks;

e The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe
those principal risks, what procedures are in place to
identify emerging risks and an explanation of how
these are being managed or mitigated;

e The directors statement 1in the financial staternents
about whether they considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing them, and their identificaticn of any material
uncertainties to the Group's and Company's ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial statermnents;

e The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of
the Group's and Company's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the period is appropriate,
and

e The directors statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company will be able
te continue in gperation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the period of 1ts assessment. including
any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary gualifications or assumptions

93

T L Ivhisais




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Continued

Our review of the directors’ statement regarding the
longer-term viability of the Group was substantially

less in scope than an audit and only consisted of
making inquiries and considenng the directors’ process
supporting their statement; checking that the statement
is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code; and considering whether
the statement is consistent with the financial statements
and our knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit.

In addition, based on the work undertaken as part of
our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance statement is
materially consistent with the financial statements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit:

¢ The directars’ statement that they consider the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for the members to assess the Group's and
Company's position, performance, business model
and strategy;

» The section of the Annual Report that describes the
review of effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems; and

e The section of the Annual Report describing
the work of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility
tc report when the directors’ statement relating to the
Company's compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the
Code specified under the Listing Rules for review by

the auditors.

Respc-n-lsi-l-ai“]ities for the financial statements and
the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the

financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors are respoensible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framewocrk and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view The directors are also
responsible for such internal contrel as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsikle for assessing the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accountung unless

the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the

tinancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or errar,

and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 18As (UK) wall always detect a material misstatement
when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis cf
these financial statements

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, cutlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
wrregularities, including fraud. The extent to which cur
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, is detalled below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry,
we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to coempliance with

the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) status Part 12 of

the Corporation Tax Act 201C and the UK regulatory
principles. such as these governed by the Financial
Conduct Authority, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance might have a material effect on
the financial statements We also considered those laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated
management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the
risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal nisks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure,
and management hias in accounting estimates and
judgmental areas of the financial statements such as the
valuation of investment properties Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

s Discussions with management. including
consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.
and review of the reports made by managerment;

s Understanding of management's internal controls
designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

e Assessment of matters, if any. reported to the Audit
and Management Engagement Commuttee;

» Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including
those of the Board of Directors and the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee;

»  Review of tax compliance with the involvement of our
tax specialists In the audit;

o Desigrung audit procedures to Incorporate
unpredictability over the nature, timing and extent of
our testing of expenses;

C'VTAS 50C AL HCLSNG PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



Independérit auditors;”féport to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Continued

e Procedures relating to the valuation of investment
properties described in the related key audit matter
below; and

s ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular
any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations and words.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that are not closely related to events and transactions
retlected in the linancial statements. Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
exarmple. fcrgery or intenticnal misrepresentations, or
through collusicn.

CQur audit testing might include testing complete
populations of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it
typically involves selecting a limited number of items for
testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will
often seek to target particular items for testing based on
their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will
use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion
about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
wehsite at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
descripticn ferms part of our auditers report.
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Use ot this report

This report, including the cpinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
cther purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or intc whose hanas it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

_O_tT)"Ei'_required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you i, in cur opinion:

e we have not cbtained all the infoermation and
explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting reccrds have not been kept by
the Company. or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

e the Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appcinted by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016
and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 5 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2021

Sandra Dowling (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of -Con{_pﬁ;éﬂénsive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue

Rental income

Less direct property expenses
Net rental income

Directats’ remuneration
Investment adviscry fees
General and administrative expenses

Total expénses

Change in fair value of Investment properties

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance expense — relating to bank borrowings
Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives

Profit before tax
Taxation

Far the

For ihe

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

yeat ented year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
) B Nole £006 £000
50 49,020 46165
B 5.0 (1,175) (259}
47,845 45906
60 (198) (176)
8.0 (6.117) (6.183)
o ) 90 (3.183) (3501)
(9,498) {9,860)
] o 7 150 S5 9389
43,858 45,475
10.8 20 110
1.0 (7.737) (7342)
210 (66) (478)
36,075 37.725
120 - -
36,075 37725
130 5.80p 6.06p

Al amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income above arise from conunuing cperations,

The notes an pages 102 1o 130 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2021

Assets
Non-current assets
Investment property

Othier receivalbiles

Current assets
Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank and loan borrowings

Non-current liabilities
Bank and loan borrowings
Interest rate derivatives

Total liabilities

Tgtal net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premiurm reserve
Capital reduction reserve
Retained earnings

Total t_equity

Net assets per share — basic and dilu;éc_l_

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

B Nore EQ00 £1000
150 893684 867988

17.0 21905 10755

915589 678743

176 12821 10,838

180 107.097 58,374

~ B 119,918 69,212
1035507  947.955

19.0 (9,345) (7.743)

200 (59937  (59.730)

(69.282)  (67.473)

200 (292183  (209.440)

B 2w (549) (4a78)
~ (362009)  (@77.39)

673498 670,564

22.0 6.225 225

230 292,463 292405

240 331140 330926

250 43670 41,008

i i B 673498 670564
260 10830p  107.87p

These consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 130 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas Social Housing

PLC and authorised for issue and signed on {ts behall by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

29 June 2021

Company No: 10402528

The notes on pages 102 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Share Capital
Share premium reduction Relained Tatal

e oo Tens T Ten S
Balance at 1 April 2019 6225 292408 331625 36253 666508
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 37725 377258
Issue of Ordinary shares
Shares bought back into treasury - - (699) - (699)
Dividends paid
Total interim dividends for the year ended 31 March 2020 4.0 - - - {32,970} {32,970y
{5.30p}
Balance at 31 March 2020 N - 6225 292405 330926 41008  670.564
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 36.075 36,075
Issue of Ordinary shares
Shares relssued from treasury - 58 214 - 272
Dividends paid
Total interun dividends for the year ended 31 March 2021 14.0 - - - {33413 (33.413)
(5.375p) L o o
Balance at 31 March 2021 i 6.225 292463 331,140 43670 673498

The nctes on pages 102 1o 130 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterents.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
As at 31 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year before taxation

- Change in fair value of investment properties
- Change in {air value of interest rate derivatives
- Rent and in¢entive straight line adjustments
- Bad debt expense

Finance income

Finance expense

Increase in lease incentive receivable

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payakles

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Net cash flow generated f_rom cg_ﬁ_;f;ting activities

Investing activities

Purchase of investment properties
Arquisition costs

Purchase of subsidiary company

Sale proceeds on sale of subsidiary company
Lease incentives paid

Release/f{(increase) in restricted cash held for investing activities
Net cash flow used in investing activities T

Financing activities

Cost of shares bought into treasury
Dividends paid tc equity shareholders
Bank borrowings advanced

Bank borrowing issue costs paid

Loan interest paid

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 102 to 130 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Mew €000 €090
36,075 37,725

{5,511) (9.389)

66 478

68 ®7)

289 -

20) (110

7,737 7,342

(1,217} -

(3,150} (3.290)

1,762 126
26,099 32,795
20 10

26,119 32,905

{19.462)  (17.986)

(938) 9.737)

- (19,829)

- 2.221

- (6.844)

14,232 {9,726)

- (6.168) (61901
24.0 - (699)
(33319)  (32.889)

200 84,550 64,053
2.811) (1364)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1.0 Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (the "Company”) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 as a public
company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC, which was
subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 Cctober 2016,

The address of the registered office is Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP. The Company is registered as an
investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 In England and Wales and is domiciled in the United Kingdom:

The Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange ("LSE").

The Company's Ordinary shares are admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA") and traded on
the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”} is to provide shareholders with an attzactive level of
income, together with the potential for capital growth from investing in a portfolic of social hornes.

2.0 Basis of preparation

The Group's consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"), as adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Eurcpean Union and in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006.

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified for the Group's
investment properties and derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has chosen to adopt EPRA best practice guidelines for calculating key metrics such as net asset value and earnings
per share. These are disclosed on page 42 with supporting calculations in Appendix 1 on pages 144 to 146,

| FrriioTioaal andd ;,;-ff-qrii\r_viiw;efx DL
The financial informaticn is presented in Pounds Sterling which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000s), except where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Ldanvg uoanc e

The Group benefits from a secure income stream from long leases with the Approved Providers, which are not overly reliant
on any one tenant and present a8 well-diversified risk. The Group's cash balances as at 3! March 2021 were £107,097,000, of
which £3.278,000 was held as restricted cash. Details of this can be found in note 18.0.

To date, the Company's financial performance has not been negatively impacted by COVID-19. The Company and its
Investment Adviser, Civitas Investment Management Limited {"CIM"} continues to work closely with the Company's major
counterparties to monitor the position on the ground and should it be needed, to ofter assistance and guidance where
possible. The Board of Directers believes that the Company operaies a robust and defensive business model and that social
housing and specialist healthcare are proving 1o be some of the more resilient sectors within the market, given that they are
based on non-discretionary public sector expenditure and that demand exceeds supply.

On 27 November 2020, an extension was granted for the facility with HSBC Bank PLC, which now expires in November 2022.

The facility with Lloyds Bank plc has also been successfully re-financed with a 2 year Revolving Credit Facility expirnng in
July 2023.

As a result of the positive cash balances and the positive future outlock regarding the soclal housing and specialist healthcare
sector, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its financing and other business risks and that the Group
will remain viable. continuing to operate and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

The Board of Directors believes that there are currently no material uncentainties in relation to the Group's ability 1o continue
for the period of at least 12 months from the date of the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Board is, therefore. of
the opinion that the going concern basis adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

2.3 Moew stapdards, sinendinenis and tilorpraialions
The following new standards are now effective and have been adopted for the year ended 31 March 2021

Amendments to LAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). These amendments clarify

the definiticn of 'material’. The amendments make the standards more consistent but have no significant impact on the
preparation of these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). These
amendments clarity the definition of a business and the subsequent accounting treatment applied. Careful consideration
is given to the accounting treatment for each acquisition Most acquisitions made by the Group are ireated as an asset
acquisition, so the amendments to this standard have not had any impact on the Group financial statements.

24 New standards, amendments and iterpretations ofisonve for biture accounting periods
The following are new standards, interpretations and amendments. which are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted in this financial information, that will or may have an effect on the Group's future financlal statements:

.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 'Financial
instruments; Recognition and Measurement’, IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after 1 january 2021). These amendments address 1ssues that
might affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative benchmark
interest rate.

The Group's berrowings with Lloyds Bank pic, HSBC Bank PLC and National Westminster Bank Plc will be transitioning
from the London Interbank Offer Rate {LIBOR) benchmark to the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) benchmark in
due course. There 1s expected to be negligible cost involved in the berrowing facility transition and the respective hedge
instrument amendments.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact of the changes in accounting standards but as the Group does not apply
hedge accounting, it is anticipated that the accounting standard amendments wiil not have a significant impact on the
preparation of the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)
- clarifies that liahilines are classified as either current or nen-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the
reporting period and not expectations of or actual events after the reporting date. The amendments also give clarification
to the definition of settlement of a liability. The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the
preparation of the {inancial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2022) - qives
clarification on the recegnition of contingent liabilities at acquisition and clarifies that contingent assets should not be
recognised at the acguisiticn date. The amendments are not expected tc have a significant impact on the preparation of
the financial statements.

BT TR TTSl ST TN PR T1T REPR SR RNIY

IFRS 8 Operating Segrents requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal financial reperis about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, which in the Group's case is
delegated to the Investment Adviser. who has formed an Executive Team, in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess their performance.

The internal financial reports received by the Investment Adviser's Executive Team contain financial information at a Group
level as a whole and there are no reconciling items between the results contained in these reports and the amounts reported
in the ¢consolidated financial statements.

The Directors consider the Group's property portfolio represents a coherent and diversified portfolic with similar economic
characteristics and as a result, the whole portfolio of properties represents a single operating segment. In the view of the
Directcrs there is accerdingly one reportable segment under the provisions of IFRS 8.

All of the Group's properties are based in the UK Gecographical information is provided to ensure compliance with the
diversification requirements of the Company, other than this no geographical grouping is contained 1n any of the internal
financial reports provided to the Investment Adviser's Executive Team and, therefcre no gecgraphical segmental analysis is
required by [FRS 8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

3.0 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4.0, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are cutlined below:

$1 Sigmibioant esuimate - vauaunn of invesument property

The Group uses the valuation carried cut by its independent valuers as the fair value of its property portfclio. The valuation is
based upon assumptions including future rental income and the appropriate discount rate. The valuers also make reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. Further information 1s provided in note 15.0.

The Group's properties have been independently valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited {"JLL" or the "Valuer’) in accordance
with the current Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors' Valuation — Global Standards, incorporating the IVS, and the RICS
Valuation — Global Standards 2017 UK naticnal supplement (the RICS “Red Book”). JLL is one of the most recognised professional
firms wrthin social housing valuation and has sufficient current local and natonal knowledge of both social housing generally
and Specialist Supported Housing ("SSH" and has the skills and understanding to undertake the valuations competently.

In accordance with RICS guidelines the Material Valuation Uncertainty that had previously been applied 1o the valuation of the
majotity of classes of real estate as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic had. for the year ended 31 March 2021, been lifted from
the Company's pertfolio. RICS confirmed that the condition would ne ionger be applied to specialist supported housing of
both C2 and C3 designations let on full repainng and insuring leases.

With respect to the Group's consolidated financial statements, investment properties are valued at their fair value at each
balance sheet date in accordance with (FRS 13 Fair value measurements should be presented and classified using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in the measurements, according to the following levels:

[;e_jr_el 1 Unadjusted, queoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active (typically quoted) markets.

Level 2 [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset o1 liahility, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbhservable inputs). Value is the
Directors’ best estimate, based on advice from relevant knowledgeable experts, use of recognised valuaton
technigues and a determination of which assumptions should be applied in valuing such assets and with
particular focus on the specific attnbutes of the investments themselves.

Given the bespoke nature of each of the Group's investments, the particular requirements of due diligence and financial
contribution obtained from the vendors together with the recent emergence of SSH, all of the Group's investment properties
are included in Level 3.

b mrgnderant paddge gt o o aminnatinn.

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own invesunent properties. At the tirne of acquisition, the Group considers whether each
acguisition represents the acquisition of a business cr the acquisition of an asset. Management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquired entty in determining whether the acquisinon represents the acquisition of a business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired 1n addition
to the property. Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business
combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
entity based upon their relative fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly no goodwill or addinonal deferred tax arises.

All corporate acquisitions made during the year have been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations
because no integrated set of activities was acquired.

Durning the comparative year, the Group entered into a transaction to acquire the freehold properties operated by New
Directions Flexible Sccial Care Soluticns Ltd and Vision MH Ltd. Upon the acquisition of the companies, investment properties
were transferred intw other Group companies and the companies, along with their associated operations, were sold to TLC
Care Homes Litnited. Further details are shown in note 160 to the financial statements.
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The acquired companies met the definition of a business under IFRS 3, and the transaction was therefore recorded as a
business combination.

Because the Group acquired the company with the intent to sell the business, management applied the short-cut method
under IFRS 5 - Subsidianes acquired with a view to resale. Under this method. the subsidiary is recorded at fair value less costs
to sell, and there is no requirement to fair value the subsidiary's individual assets and liabilities.

33 Rgniboant judgement - operating leasa eantracts = the Group ys loasor

The Group has acquired investment properties that are subject to commercial property leases with Approved Providets. The
Group has determined. based on an evaluation of the terms and conditons of the arrangements, particularly the duration
of the lease terms and minimum lease payments, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and so accounts for the leases as operating leases.

3.4 34 sigmiicant judasment - REIT Starus

Civitas Sccial Housing PLC is a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT). The UK REIT regime applies when entities meet certain
conditions with the effect that the income profits and capital gaing of the qualifying property rental business are exempt from
tax. Within these conditions at least 90% of the Group's property income raust be distributed as dividends to Shareholders
and the Group rmust ensure that the property rental business represents more than 75% of total profits and assets. It is
management’s judgement that the Group will continue as a REIT for the foreseeable future.

4.0 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

41 Bovivs ndooeravialicn Wiy
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial information of the Group as at the year end date.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group corntrols an entity when the Group is exposed to.

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The financial information of the subsidiaries is included in the consclidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.

If an equity interest in a subsidiary is transferred but a controlling interest continues to be held after the transfer then the
change in ownership interest is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Company.

A e e L A

Investment property. which 1s property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is initially measured at cost, being
the fair value of the consideration given, including expenditure that is directly atiributable 1o the acquisition of the investment
property. After initial recognition, investment property is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gaing and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise in

the Consolidated Statement c¢f Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits are associated with the
expenditure. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Anh Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic henefits are expected from the disposal Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s incurred in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions rmade for the valuation of investment properties are discussed
in note 3.1

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC | REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021 105

Biv *ha o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

4.2 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases as discussed in note 3.3.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

Lease incentive costs are recognised as an asset and amortised over the life of the lease.

4.4 Finanatal dzksoels

Ciassification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement caltegories:

s those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through cther comprehensive income or through profit or loss); and
e those 10 be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
rash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or ather comprehensive
income,

Tiade and other raceivables
Trade and other receivables are amounts due in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected 1n one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment provision. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows.

Impairment
The Greup's financlal assels are subject to the expected credit loss model.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which reguires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The expected loss 1ates are based on the payment profiles of lease income cver a period of up to 12 months before 31 March
2021 or 1 April 2020, respectively, and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The histerical
loss rates are adjusted 1o reflect current and forward-locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the liability

of the tenants 1o settle the receivable. Such forward-looking informaticn would include: changes in economic. regulatory.
technological and environmental factors (such as industry outlock, GDP. employment and politics). external market indicators:
and tenant base.

Based on the assessment and the specific work that is underway around collection of aged arrears, a provision of £256,400 has
been reflected in the annual results.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recavery.

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, among others, the probability of insclvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Casr and cash equivalsnts
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash held by lawyers and hguidity funds with a term of no more than three
months that are readily convertible t¢ a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Restricted cash represents amounts held for specific commitments, tenant deposits and retention money held by lawyers in
relation to deferred payments subject to achievernent of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund
repair, maintenance and improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants
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4.5 Financial llablities
The Group recognises a financial liability when 1t first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligatuons in the
contract.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at fair value
through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amertised cost, unless the Group cpted to measure a liability at fair value through prefit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payahles

Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment 1s due within cne year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subseguently measured at
amortised cost until settled. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is 1ts discounted repayment amoeunt. If the due
date of the liahility is less than cne year, disccunting is omitted.

Bank and other borrowings

All bank and cther borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, all bank and other borrowings are measured at amortised cost. using the effective interest method. Any
attributabie transaction costs relating to the issue of the bank borrowings are amortised through the Group's Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the life cf the debt insttument on a straight-line basis.

Derivative tinancia!l instruments

Derivative financial instruments, which comprise interest rate swaps for hedging purposes, are initially recognised at fair value
at acquisition and are subsequently measured at fair value, being the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
to sell or transfer the agreement at the period end date, taking into account current interest rate expectations and the current
credit rating of the lender and its counterparties. The gain or loss at each fair value remeasurement date is recognised i the
Group's Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available
to measure fair value maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

4.4 Proveanps

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it1s
probable that the Group will be required 1o settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

37 Toaimn

Taxation on the profit or loss for the period not exempt under UK REIT regulations is comprised of current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
as a direct movement in equity, in which case it is recognised as a direct movement in equity. Current tax 1s expected tax
payable on any non-REIT taxable income for the period. using tax rates enacted cr substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment tc tax payabile in respect of previcus periods.

The current tax charge is calculated on profits arising in the pericd and in accordance with legislation which has been
enacted or substantally enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities {or financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpases. The amount of deferred tax that is provided is based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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4.3 Capntal ntanayement
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to cantinue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Capital assets comprise the following:

) March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000

Proceeds from the issue of Ordinary shares and retained earnings thereon 673,498 670.564
Bank and loan borrowings 352,120 269,170

1,025,618 939.734

Until the Group is fully invested and pending re-investment or distribution cf cash receipts, the Group will invest in cash, cash
equivalents, near cash instruments and money market instruments.

The Directors may use gearing to enhance equity returns. The level of borrowing will be on a prudent basis for the asset class
and will seek to achieve a low cost of funds. whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying security requirements and the
structure of the Graup.

The Group may, following a decision of the Board, raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the aggregate
borrowings of the Group will always be subject to an absolute maximum, calculated at the time of drawdown, of below 40% cof
the Gross Asset Value on a fully invested basis

3 Dradersds poyaide in shaay b lders
Dividends are included in the financial statements in the year in which they are paid.

FUE oyt F s,

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of ongoing leases and is shown
gross of any UK income tax. Lease incentives are spread evenly over the lease term.

Insurance recharges and other similar receipts are included in net rental and property incore gross of the related costs as the
Directors consider the Group acts as principal in this respect.

4.1 Finapow gmoan
Finance income is recognised as interest accrued on cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Group.

414 Furdaine osts

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with bank and other borrowings. Bank
interest and bank charges are recognised on an accruals basis. Borrowing transaction costs are arortised over the period of
the lcan.

.13 Eaps s
All expenses, including investment advisory fees, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an accruals basis.

ER B BT FEr R T RIS SR
The costs of issuing or reacquiring equity instruments (other than in a business combination) are accounted for as a deduction
from equity.

413 shaie pald p 1 asury

The costs, including directly attributable transacticns costs, of purchasing the Company's own shares to be held in treasury is
deducted from equity and the costs are shown in the Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Consideration received,
net of transaction costs, for the resale of these shares is also included in equity. Whilst the Company hclds shares in treasury,
the calculations for net asset value and earnings per share are adjusted to exclude these shares.
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5.0 Rental income

For the For the

yearendad year ended
3 Mvﬂéé%zé 31Mamh§g§g
Rental income from investment property I 48,201 45819
Rent straighl line adjustinerils I 361
Lease incentive adjustments (439) (274)
Rechargeable costs received 886 259
Rental income S o ) 49,020 46.165
Less direct property expenses (1,175) (259)
Net rental income S ' T _771‘717.7845 45.906

Rechargeabie costs received represent insurance costs paid by the Group and recharged to the Approved Froviders.
Direct property expenses represent insurance costs of £886,000 (2020: £259,000) and bad debt expense of £289,000 (2020: £nil).

As per the lease agreement with the Group and Approved Providers, the Approved Providers are responsible for the settlernent
of all present and future rates, taxes and other impositions payable in respect of the property. As a result, no further direct
property expenses were incurred.

6.0 Directors’ remuneration

For the Forthe

year gnded year ended

33 March 2021 31 March 2020

[ L o ) ) £000 £000
Directors’ fees 182 162
Employer's National Insurance Contributions 16 14
Total 198 16

The Directors are rernunerated for their services in accordance with the Remuneration Policy which sets parameters within
which Directors’ remuneration may be set. The Remuneration Policy is approved by shareholders.

7.0 Particulars of employees
The Group had no employees during the year (2020: nil) other than the Directors.

3.0 Investment adviscry fees

For the Forthe

year enced year ended

31 March 2021 3t March 2020
I L. . . ) £000 £000
Advisory fee 6,117 6,131
Disbursements o ] _ _ - 527
Total ) ) B &7 6183

On 7 May 2020, Civitas Housing Advisors Limited changed its name to Civitas Investment Management Limited ("CIM"). CIM
is the appointed Investment Adviser of the Company. Under the current Investment Management Agreement, the Advisory
Fee shall be an amount calculated in respect of each Quarter, in each case based upon the Net Asset Value most recently
announced to the market at the relevant time {as adjusted for issues cr repurchases of shares in the pericd between the date
of such announcement and the date of the relevant calculation), on the following basis:

a)} on that part of the Net Asset Value up to and including £250 mullion. an amount equal tc 1% of such part of the Net Asset Value:

b) on that part of the Net Asset Value over £250 millicn and up to and including £500 millicn, an amount equal to 0.9% of such
part of the Net Asset Value;

¢) on that part of the Net Asset Value over £500 million and up to and including £1,600 mullion, an amount equal t© 0.8% of
such part of the Net Asset Value;
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d) on that part of the Net Asset Value aver £1,000 million, an amaount equal to 0.7% of such part of the Net Asset Value.

The appointment of the Investment Adviser shall continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the

other not less than 12 months’ written notice, such notice not t¢ expire earlier than 30 May 2024.

Prior 1o 26 April 2019, the Adviscry Fee calculaticn was based upon the higher Portfolio NAV which is defined in Appendix 1 on

page 146.

9.0 General and administrative expenses

For the For the
Saehzom 3 March 2080
o . ) L E000 €000
Egal and professional fees 1,044 1081
Administration fees 983 1,070
Consultancy fees 16 148
Audit fees 361 246
Abortive costs 174 303
Valuation fees a6 96
Depositary fees 7l 71
Grants and donations 19 88
Insurance 65 49
Marketing 179 269
Requlatary fees 19 14
Sundry expenses 56 65
Dirgctors’ expenses - 1
Total - B 3.183 3501
Abortive costs represent legal and professional fees incurred in relation to the acquisition of investment properties and
proposed share issues that were considered but subsequently aborted.
oy it v ovrbeid By e pmsany s weringo, and 1eas assonates
The Group has obtained the following services from the Group's auditor and 1ts associates:
T B Forthe For the
Neeom 51 Maren 300
R ) . £000 £000
Fees payable to the group’s auditor and its associates for auditing financial statements; T
Audit of the Groups financial statements® 272 195
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries 32 -
Total fees payable for audit services o ) i 304 BT
Fees payable to the group’s auditor and its associates for other services:
Audit related services — review of the half year financial statements 57 51
Total fees payable to the group’s auditor and its associates o 7 B 361 246
* Inclvdes £50000 cost in relatian to the pnor year audit
10.0 Finance income
T o T For the Forihe
yeu ended year endad
~ o ) 0 Maa:l;: %%'ﬂ 5 Ma.:higggg
Interest and dividends recetved on liquidity funds a 1 Bl
Bank interest received 9 29
Total S T o 20 10
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11.0 Finance expense

For the

Forthe
year ended year ended
I1March 2021 3% March 2020
o £000 £000
Bank charges 3 2
linterest paid and paydble un bank Lontowings 6,416 5795
Bank borrowing commitment fees - 220
Amortisation of ican arrangement fees 1,293 1.325
Other interest 25 -
Total 7.737 7,342

12.0 Taxaticn

As a UK REIT, the Group is exempt from corporation tax on the profits and gains {rom its property investment business,
provided it meets certain conditions as set cut in the UK REIT regulations. For the current year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
did not have any non-qualifying profits and accordingly there is no tax charge in the year. If there were any non-gualifying

profits and gains, these would be subject to corporation tax.

It is assumed that the Group will continue to be a UK REIT for the foreseeable future, such that deferred tax has not been

recognised on temporary differences relating 1o the property rental business.

for the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 202! 31March 2020
£000 £000

ati ﬁ-t-auc_cliarge/(cfedit)wfér”ig;fear

The tax charge for the year is less than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. The differences are explained

below.
o ) For the For m;
Mg 3 waen 3000
—_ £000 £000
Group -
Profit before taxation 36,075 37725
UK corporation tax rate 19.00% 19.00%
Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 6,854 7168
Effects of:
Change in value of exempt investment properties (1,047} (1.784)
Exempt REIT income {6,511) {6136)
Amounts not deductible for tax purposes i 175
Unuulised residual current year tax losses 533 S77

Total

A deferred tax asset of £1,508,000 {2020: £1,128 000) has not been recognised in respect of the unutilised residual current year
losses as it is not anticipated that sufficient residual profits will be generated in the future.

The standard rate of corporation tax 1s currently 19%. The Government has anncunced that the corporation tax standard rate
will rise to 25% from 1 April 2023.

REIT exempt income includes property rental income that is exemnpt from UK Corperaticn Tax in accordance with Part 12 of
Corporaticn Tax Act 2010
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13.0 IFRS Earnings per share

Earnings per share ("EPS") amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to crdinary equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following:

For the Forthe
year ended year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000

Calculation of Earnings per share
Net profit atiributable 1o Ordinary shareholders (£000) 36,075 37725
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares 621,651,859 622103,758
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 5.80p 6.06p

14.0 Dividends

T Forhe  Fore
year anded year ended

Blvﬁé;{a--o-f ].C‘:ESp for the 3 months to 31 March 2020
(1325p 3 months to 31 March 2019)

{1.325p 3 months to 30 June 2019)

(1.325p 3 months to 30 September 2019)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
E'000 £'1000

(1L.325p 3 months to 31 December 2019)

8,237 8248
Dividend of 1.350p for the 3 months to 30 June 2020

8,392 8.248
Dividend of 1.350p for the 3 months to 30 September 2020

8,392 8,238
Dividend of 1350p for the 3 months to 31 Decernber 2020

8,392 8,236

. 33.413 32970

Total

Cn 11 May 2020, the Company anncunced a dividend of 1.325 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January 2020 to
31 March 2020. The dividend payment was made on 12 June 2020 to shareholders on the register as at 22 May 2020.

On 6 August 2020, the Company announced a dividend of 1.350 pence per share in respect of the period 1 April 2020 to 30 June
2020. The dividend payment was made cn: 7 September 2020 to shareholders on the register as at 14 August 2020,

On 6 November 2020, the Company anncunced a dividend of 1350 pence per share in respect of the period 1 July 2020 to
30 September 2020. The dividend payment was made on 4 December 2020 to sharehoiders on the register as at 20 November 2020.

On 2 February 2021, the Company announced a dividend of 1.350 pence per share 1n respect of the period 1 October 2020 to
31 December 2020. The dividend payment was made on 1 March 2021 to sharehclders on the register as at 12 February 2021,

On 11 May 2021, the Company announced a dividend of 1350 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January 2021 to 31 March
2021 totalling £8,396,000. The dividend payment was made on 11 June 2021 to shareholders on the register as at 21 May 2021. The

financial statements do not reflect this dividend.

n2
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15.0 Investment property

For the Forthe

year anded year ended

)

Balance at beginning of year o 878,743 826918
Property acquisitions 19,129 33,194
Acquisition costs 1,056 5311
Lease incentives recognised 11,150 3,931
Change in fair value cf investment properties 5,511 9,389
Value advised by the prdpérty valuers ) ) ) 915,589 878743
Adjustments for lease incentive assets and rent straight line assets recognised (21,905) (10,755)
Total 7 - 893.684 867,988

Acquisitions include capital expenditure to enhance lettable space of £4,077.000 {2020: £1.757,000).
New incentives undertaken in the year include a £10,000,000 payment following a rent review on two properties.

In accordance with “IAS 40; Investment Property”. the investment property has been independently valued at fair value by JLL,
an accredited external valuer with recegnised and relevant professional qualifications and recent experience of the location
and category of the investment property being valued, however, the valuations are the ultimate responsibility of the Directors.

Woaltsatian
JLL valued the Civitas Social Housing PLC property portfclic on the basis of each individual property and the theoretical sale of
the properties without the benefit of any corporate wrapper at £915,58%,000 as at 31 March 2021 {2020: £878,743.000).

JLL has provided valuation services to the Company with regards to the properties during the year. In relation to the year ended
31 March 2021, the proportion of the total fees payable by the Company to JLLs total fee income was less than 5% and is therefore
minimal. Additionally, JLL has a rctation policy in place whereby the signatories on the valuations rotate after seven years.

With the excepticn of acquisition in the prior year detailed in note 16.0, all corpaorate acquisitions during the year and the
comparative year have been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations because following review of the
IFRS 3 concentration test, they are considered to be acquisitions of properties rather than businesses (note 3.2).

The following takle provides the fair value measurement hierarchy for investment property:

Queted pricas in Signifcant Sgnificant

actve markels  observable inpis unohservable
Total [Level 1 (Level 2] nputs (Level 3)
e L . o e . €000 £000 £'000 9‘007077
Investment! properties measured at fair value:
31 March 2021 893,684 - - 893,684
31 March 2020 867988 - - 867988

There have been no transters between Level | and Level 2 during any of the years, nor have there been any transfers between
Level 2 and Level 3 during any of the years.

The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards (incorporating the
International Valuation Standards) by JLL, one of the leading professional firms engaged in the social housing sector.

As noted previcusly all of the Group'’s investments are reported as Level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13 where inputs are not
based on obhservable market data and the value is based upon advice from relevant knowledgeable experts.
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In this instance. the determination ! the fair value of investment property requires an examination of the specific merits of
each property that are in turn considered pertinent to the valuation.

These include:
i} the regulated social housing sector and demand for the facilities offered by each SSH property owned by the Group:

ii} the particular structure of the Group's transactions where vendors, at their own expense, meet the majority of the
refurbishment costs of each property and certain purchase costs;

iii) detailed financial analysis with discount rates supporting the cartying value of each property;

iv) a full repairing and insuring lease with annual indexation based on CPI or CPl+1% and effectively 25 years cutstanding in
most cases with a Housing Association, 1tself regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing.

The following descriptions and definitions relating to valuation techniques and key unobservable inputs made in determining
fair values are as fcllows:

Vrlmatrnn techaeies anaeime 1y nath
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

The valuation methodology used by the valuers follows the income approach. This approach considers the rental income
currently payable: the next uplift due in that income on review; the likelihood of a continuation of that rental income - with
growth in accordance with the leases - over the remaining terms; and then a long-term reversion which considers the likely
ability of the properties to continue to generate rent through supported housing occupation, as distinct from a reversion to
vacant possession value.

Risks are involved 1n both assessing the value of the rental income over the remaining terms of the leases and in alsc
predicting that income will continue beyond the end cf the existing leases. This 15 a balanced judgment, which can properly
be reflected in the exit yield applied to the final year's income and in the overall return to a purchaser.

Appropriate taxation calculations are adopted for every property based on its value and on the assumption of the sale of i
the property assets directly as opposed to shares of a subsidiary company holding the property and have considered the
individual characteristics of the properties.

There are two main unobservable inputs that determine the fair value of the Group's investment property:

i) Therate of 2.00% per annum has been used for CPI over the term of the subject properties’ leases in line with the Bank of
England’s long-term inflation targets for CPIL It should be noted thazr all leases benefit from either CPI or CPI+1 indexation. !

ii) The discount rate applied to the rental flows.

Key factors in determining the discount rates applied include the regulated social housing sector and demand for each SSH
property owned by the Group, costs of acquisition and refurbishment of each property, the anticipated future underlying
cash flows for each property, benchmarking of each underlying rent for each property (passing rent), and the fact that

ail of the properties within the Group's porticlio have the benefit of full repairing and insuring leases entered into by an
Approved Provider.

As at the balance sheet date, the lease lengths within the Group's porticlio ranged from an effective 15 years to 37 years with
a weighted average unexpired lease term of 22.6 years {(2020: 23.7). The greater the length of the lease. then, all other metrnies
being equal, the greater the value of the property

SEPLITUT S I G mat 8 L3 DT i b el napie,
As set out within significant accounting estimates at 3.1 above, the Group's property investment valuation is cpen to inherent
uncertainties in the inputs that determine fair value. As a result, the following sensitivity analysis has been prepared:

AUarage ot F e and reng s ‘
The average discount rate used by the valuer in the Group's property Portfolio Valuation 1s 6.0% (2020: 5.3%).

The range of discount rates used by the valuer in the Group's property Portfolic Valuation is from 4.7% to 10.7% (2020: 4.9%
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continued

to 10.7%). In assessing the range of discounts, the valuer considers the likely net initial yield which wouid be scught by the
investment market and builds in additional discounts to reflect added risk into the discount rate of the term and, in some
cases, the discount rate for the reversion. For example where larger rental growth is allowed during the lease an additional

discount is built intc the reversion because of the greater risk of a fall 1n the rent at the end of the lease.

Similarly additional discounts are considered where properties are in the process cf being re-purposed and premiums are

considered where residential care agsets are funded by back-te-back leases with care providers.

The table below illustrates the change to the value of investment properties if the discount rate and CPI used for the portfolio

valuation calculations are changed:

-05% indiscount  +0 5% in discount

+025% in CPl

-025% in CP}
o L - rate £000 @e£000 £000 £000
Increase/(decrease) in the IFRS fair value of investment properties at:
31 March 2021 34131 (3,776) 27,211 (26.175)
Sﬂd_a;_ch 2020 34,733 (32,245) 26817 (25,846}
16.0 Subsidiary resale
For the - For ll;e -
year ended year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
o o o _ £'000 E'OO_O
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Acguisition - 19,829
Transfer to investment property - (17,608)
- (2.221)

Sale proceeds

On 11 March 2020. the Group entered into a transaction to acquire the freehold properties operated by New Directions Flexible
Social Care Solutions Ltd and Vision MH Ltd Upon the acquisition of the companies for £19,829.000, investrnent properties were
transferred into cther Group companies and the companies, along with their associated operations, were sold to TLC Care

Homes Limited for £2,221,000.

17.0 Trade and other receivables

31 Magch 2021
£'000

Amounts falling due in less than one year
Trade receivables

Less provision far impairment of trade receivables
Accrued income

Prepaymenis a{]d other receivables

4,869

(256)

5264
2944

Total

12821

31 March 2020
£000

4307
4267
2261
10,838

Prepayments and other receivable amounts include prepaid legal and professional fees of £200,000 (2020: £469.000) that have
been incurred in connection with acquisitions yet to be completed and £817,000 (2020: £1,.635,000) in respect of ongoing works

on the property portfolio.
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The increase in accrued income relates mainly to rent acerued for the year but not yet demanded.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Debtor arising from straight line adjustments
Lease incentives

£000 £000

1524 1152
20381 9603
21905 10755

The aged analysis of trade receivables was as foliows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000

_ £'000

Current 2128 1594
<30 days 817 657
30-60 days 322 319
> 60 days ] ) i 1,602 1737
4869 4307

Less provision for impaument ) {(256) -
o - 4,613 4,307

Total

The Directors consider the fair value of receivables equals their carrying amount.

The table above shows the aged analysis of trade receivables included in the table above which are past due.

Cther categories within trade and other receivables do not inciude impaired assets.

The provision for impairment movement was as follows:

31March 2021 31 March 2020
£000

Balance at beginning of year
Impairment provision made
Amounts written off

£000
289 -
(33 -

256 -

Balance at end of year

18.0 Cash and cash equivaients

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash held by solicitors
Liquudiry funds
Cash held at bank

Unrestri¢ted cash and cash equivalents

£000 £000

721 3325

10485 10475

o 92615 27629
103819 41429

3278 16545

Restricted cash

Total

107097 5831

Liquidity funds refer 1o money piaced in money market funds These are highly higuid funds with accessibility within 24 hours

and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held 1h escrow for expenses expected to be incurred 1n relation to investment properties

pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.
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Restricted cash represents amounts held for specific commitments, tenant deposits and retention money held in relation
tc deferred payments subject to achievement of certain conditions. other retentions and cash segregated to fund repair,
maintenance and improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactery standards for the Group and the tenants.

19.0 Trade and other payables

Deferred income

Acdguisition costs accrued
Finance costs

Dividend withholding tax payable
Accruals and other crediters
Tenant deposits

31 March 2020

Total

31 March 2021

£000 £000

646 " 245

3,706 5,068

1557 1014

892 798

1979 618

565 -

T 9,345 7.743

Acquisition costs accrued also includes the balance of retention monies of £2.508,000 (2020: £4 818,000).

20.0 Bank and loan borrowings

Bank borrowings are secured by charges over individual investment properties held by certain asset-holding subsidiaries. The
banks also hold charges over the shares of certain subsidiaries and any intermediary holding companies of those subsidiaries.
Any asscciated fees in arranging the bank borrowings unamortised as at the year end are offset against amounts drawn on

the facilities as shown in the table below:

Forthe

yaarended|
151 March'2021

year ended
31March 2020

€D £000
Balance at start of \;.f_ear - ) - 12721500} 208,447
Bank borrowings drawn . 64,053
Bank borrowings drawn at end of year o o 272,500
Unamortlsed costsrerlit Erit'ot year N (3.291)
Less: loan issue costs incurred (1,364)
Add: loan issue costs amortised 1.325
Unamortised costs at end of year o E (g (3,330)
Atend of year B B 269170
Loan Balance® L.oan Balance™ Loan Frinnparr Loan Pr‘;\cipai
31 Mm::i'%z‘; L]l Marrhgggg 3t er:lé%ﬂé& 3t MarchEZ.ggg
ﬁaturity of bank horrowings
Repayable within 1 year 59,937 59,730 60,000 60,000
Repayable between 1 to 2 years 99,256 99.004 100,000 100,000
Repayable between 2 10 5 years 59,102 58,840 60,000 60,000
Repayable after 5 years 133,825 51596 137,050 52,500
Total ’ 352120 269170 357.050 272500

* Loan balance net of unarmortised costs

The Group 1s party to the following lecan facility agreements:

A 10-year Sterling Term Facility Agreement dated 2 November 2017 for up to £52,500,000 with Scotish Widows Limited. Interest

15 fixed at a total of 2.9936% per annum.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the vajue of £170,831,000 (2020: £170,595,000).
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A 3-year Sterling Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated 15 November 2017 for up to £40,000,000 (increased to £60.000.000)
with Lloyds Bank plc. Interest is charged at LIBOR +1.50% margin. This facility was extended in the normal course to November
2021. Since the year end, the facility with Lloyds Bank plc has been successfully re-financed with a 2 year Revolving Credit
Facility expiring in July 2023,

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £149,728.000 (2020: £147.475.000).

A 3-year Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated 28 November 2018 for up 1o £100.000.000 with HSBC Bank PLC. Interest is
charged at LIBOR +1.70% margin. During the year this facility was extended to 27 November 2022 with interest charged at LIBOR
+ 1.90% margin.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £219,606,000 (2620: £216,026,000).

A S-year loan facility with Naticnal Westminster Bank Plc. dated 15 August 2019, for up to £60,000,000. Interest is charged
at LIBOR +2.00% margin and has been fixed by way of a 5-year swap. The swap fixes interest on £20,000,000 at 0.7105%
and £40,000,000 at 0.5475%. The loan can be extended for an additional 2 years and there is the option of a further
£40,000,000 accordicn.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £131,283.000 (2020: £129,933,000).

A 7-year loan facility with M&G Investment Management Limited, dated 22 January 2021, for up to £84.550.000. Interest is fixed at
a total of 3.137% per annum.

The borrowings include amcunts secured on investment property to the value of £225,221,000.
At 31 March 2021 the Group is in compliance with all covenants.

The covenants in place under the five agreements are summarised in the table bhelow:

Loan Historcal and projected inlerest cover Loan to ValLe ratio

Scottish Widows Limited 10-vear facility At least 325% - Must not exceed 40%
Lloyds Bank plc 3-year revolving credit faciiny At least 250% Must not exceed 55%
HSBC Bank PLC 3-year facility At least 230% Must not exceed 60%
Naticnal Westrninster Bank Plc 5-year facility At least 250% Must not exceed 50%
ME&G Investment Management Limited 7-year faculity At least 250% Must not exceed 55%

The Group's borrowings with Lloyds Bank plc. HSBC Bank PLC and Naticnal Westminster Bank Plc will be transitioning
from the Lendon Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) benchrnark to Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) benchmark in due
course. There is expected to be negligible cost involved in the borrowing facility transition and the respective hedge
instrument amendments.

21.0 Interest rate derivatives
The Group has entered into interest rate swap agreements with NatWest Markets in order tc mitigate the risk of changes in
interest rates on its loan with National Westminster Bank Plc under which £60,000,000 is currently drawn.

The swaps have a notional value of £60.000,000 and fix interest at 2.60% {including the 2% margin rate on the bank locan).

For the: For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

[ £000 £000

At start of year (478) -
Change 1n fair value during the year (66} (478)
Atendoftheyear ) o ) (544) (478}
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The table below shows the fair value measurement hierarchy for interest derivatives:

Significant

Quote prices in Significant unobservable

acuve Markels  Observable Inputs Inpuis (Level 3}

L - ) Level TEOO0  (Level 2) £000 £000

31 March 2021 - (544 -
31 March 2020 - (478) -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year nor have there been any transfers between Level 2
and Level 3 during the year.

22.0 Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the 15sue of Ordinary shares.

For the For the year
yess ended ended
3 March 2021 31 March 2020
_— e . £000 £'000
Share capital

At bequnning and end of year L 6,225 6,225

Number of shares issued and fully paid Crdinary shares of £0.01 each
At beginning and end of year ) o ) ) 622461380 622.461.380

The Company haolds 565,000 (2620: 815.000) Ordinary shares in treasury. On 24 March 2021, the Company reissued 250.000
Ordinary shares from treasury.

The number of Ordinary shares used to calculate the net asset value is 621,896,380 (2020: 621,646,380).

23.0 Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve represents the amounts subscribed for Ordinary share capital in excess of nominal value less

associated issue costs of the subscriptions.

For the Far the

year ended year ended

3 March 202! 3t March 2020

o L - £000 E'000
At beginning of year 292,405 292,405
Premium azising on shares reissued from treasury L ) 58 -
At end of year ) o 292,463 292,405
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24.0 Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is a distributable reserve to which the value of the cancelled share premium has been
transferred. Pursuant to Article 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Share Capital) Order 2008, the balance held in the capital
reduction reserve is 1o be treated for the purposes of Part 23 of the Companies Act 2006 as a realised profit and therefore
available for distribution in accordance with section 830 of the Companies Act. The Company has used this reserve for the
costs of buying back shares to be held in treasury.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

~ . . £000 £000

At beginning of year 330,926 331,625
Shares bought back into treasury - (699)
Shares reissued from treasury o 214 -
At end of year 331,140 7773730.926

The Company holds 565.000 (2020: 815,000) Ordinary shares in treasury. The shares will continue to be held in treasury until
either re-issued or cancelled.

During the year, the Company re-issued 230,000 Ordinary shares from treasury for a total of £272,000.
During the comparative year, the Company purchased 815,000 Ordinary shares for a total cost of £699,000 to be held in

reasury.

25.C Retained earnings
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Group

For the For the

year ended yaar ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

,,, . o £000 £ogo

At beginning of year 41,008 36,253
Profit for the year 36,075 37725
Dividends paid in the year (as per note 14.0) o (33,413) (32,570)
At end of year ) ) 3 43670 41,008

26.0 Net asset value
Basic NAV per share is calculated by dividing net assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position attributable to
crdinary equity holders of the parent by the number of Ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the year.

Net asset values have been calculated as follows:

- I ) MMach202t 3 March 2020
Net assets (£'000) 673,498 £70.564

Number of Ordinary shares in issue at end of year
Number of Ordinary shares held in trteasury

Number of 6rdinary shares excluding treasury shares
held by the Company
NAV - basic ar}g diluted

622461380 622461380
(565.000) __ (815.000)
621,896,380 621,646,380

10830p  10787p

"20
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27.0 Reconciliation of liabiiities to cash flows from financing activities

For the

interest rate Bank year ended

deriuatives borrowings. 31 March 2021
o . = . L £000 £000 £'000
At beginning of year {478) 265,170 268,692
Cash flows trom financing activities
Loan draw down - 84,550 84,550
L.oan arrangerment costs paid - (2,811) (2.811)
Non cash movements I

Loan arrangement fees payable -
Arnortisation of loan arrangemernt costs -

Change in valuation L (66) =] B (66))
Atend of year o . (544) 352120
77777 T ) For the
Interest rate Bank year ended
dervatves barrowings 31March 2020
. S £'000 . . E'OC& __i:_oo_
At beginning of year - 205156 205,156
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down - 64,053 64,053
Loan arrangement costs paid - (1364) (1.264)

Non cash movements

Amortisation of lcan arrangement costs - 1325 1,325
Change in valuation L {478) - (478)
At end of year ) ) ) 7 - {478) 269170 268,692

28.0 Operating leases
The Group is party to a number of operating leases on its investment properties with Approved Providers. The future minimum
lease paymenits under non-cancellable cperating leases receivable by the Group are as {ollows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Amounts receivable
<1 year 50,367 48 416
1-2 years 50410 48.451
2-5 years 151,511 145,545
> 5 years 873,826 886,677
Atend of year TT112614 1129089

Leases are direct-let agreements with Approved Providers for a term between 15 — 37 years with indexed linked annual rent
reviews. All current leases are full repairing and insuring leases; the tenants are therefore cbliged to repair. maintain and

renew the properties back to the criginal conditions.
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The following table gives details of percentage of annual rental income per Approved Provider:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
% %

Auckland Home Sclutions ) o 23.88 22.73
Falcon Housing Association CIC 19.74 20.43
Bespoke Suppoertive Tenancies 13.25 11.05
Inclusion Housing CIC 8.70 8.74
Westmoreland Supported Housing Limited 6.07 7.97
Encircle Housing Limited 5.96 6.11
Trinity Housing Assoclaticn Limited 5.31 550
Pivotal Housing Association 391 396
Harbour Light Assisted Living CIC 3.67 3.76
Chrysalis Supported Assoclation Limited 3.38 349
New Walk Property Management CIC 2.80 2.87
My Space Housing Solutions 116 118
IKE Supported Housing Limited 112 115
Hilldale Housing Asscciation Limited 096 0498
Blue Sguare Limited 0.07 0.07
Qualitas Housing 0.02 -
Total 7 - - 1000 1000

The Group is also party to a number of operating leases en its long leasehold properties. The ground rent payment
commitments under these operating leases are negligible so the future mirumum lease payments under these leases have not
been disclosed in these financial statements.

29.0 Controlling parties
As at 31 March 2021, there is no ultimate controlling party.

30.0 Related party disclosures

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shall from time to tirmne determine. The aggregate
remuneration and benefits in kind of the Directors of the Company {in each case. solely In their capacity as such) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021 payable out of the assets of the Company is not expected to exceed £200,000.

Fees of £182.000 (2020: £162,000) were incurred and paid to the Directors.

As at 31 March 2021 the Direciors held the following number of shares:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Ordmary shares Qrdinary shares

Diié?or

Michael Wrobel Chairman 100,598 100,598
Alastair Moss Director 11,766 11.766
Alison Hadden Director - -
Caroline Gulliver Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chair 58,832 58,832
Perer Raxter Director ) 47,065 47,065

LY PR N B RN

The Investment Adviser has reviewed its rermuneraticn pohcies and procedures to ensure incentives are aligned with the
requirements of AIFMD. Itincludes measures tc avoid conflicts of interest such as providing staff with a fixed monthly salary
and determining discretionary payments by the performance of the Investment Adviser as a whele and not linked 10 any
one AlY in partcular. The Investment Adviser and its staff receive no remuneration through profit share, carned interest, co-
investment or other schemes related to the Company's performance.
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31.0 Transactions with the Investment Adviser
On 1 November 2016, Civitas Investment Management Limited ("CIM") was appointed as the Investment Adviser of the Company.

Fees of £6,117,000 (2020: £6,131,000) were incurred and paid to CIM. In addition. disbursements of £nil (2020: £52.000) were paid 1in
the year.

As at 31 March 2021, a net amount of £13.000 (2020: £nul) was due from CIM.

As at 31 March 2021, CIM held 50,000 Ordinary shares in the Company.

32.0 Consolidated entities

The Company has provided a guarantee under s479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the financial year ended

31 March 2021 for a number of its subsidiary companies (as indicated in the table on the following pages). The guarantee is
over all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary companies are subject at 31 March 2021 until they are satisfied in full,

The Group consists of a parent company. Civitas Social Housing PLC, incorporated in England and Wales (company number
10402528) and a number of subsidiaries held directly by Civitas Social Housing PLC, which operate and are incorporated in
England and Wales or Jersey.

The Group cwns 100% equity shares of all subsidiaries listed below and has the power to appeint and remove the majority of
the board of directors of those subsidianes. The relevant activities of the below subsidiaries are determined by the Board of
Directors based on the purpose of each company.

Therefore. the Directors concluded that the Group has control over all these entities and all these entities have been
consolidated within the consolidated financial statements.

A list of all related undertakings included within these consolidated financial statements are noted below. Indirectly held
subsidiary companies are marked by an indentation in the table below.

Name .. Regsstered number Principal activity Ownership %
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Coyniry of incorparation
Civitas Soclaliﬂom frinancﬂérEc?mpany 1 Limited* 10997707 Finance company England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas Social Housing Jersey 1 Limited 124128 Holding company Jersey 100.00%
Civitas SPV1 Limjted* 10518729  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV2 Limited* 10114251 Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV11 Limited* 10546749  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV15 Limited* 09777380 Propeny investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV2S Limited* 10791473  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV27 Lirnited* 10883112  Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV33 Limited* 10546407 Property iInvestment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV35 Limited®* 10588530  Property Investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV38 Limited* 10738318  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV39 Limited* 10547333 Propeny investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV40Q Limited* 10738510  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV41 Limited* 10738542  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV50 Limited* 10773419  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas Soclal Housing Finance Company 2 Limited” 10997698 Finance company England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas Social Housing Jersey 2 Limited 124876 Holding company Jersey 100.00%
Civitas SPV3 Limited* 10156529  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV4 Limited* 10433744  Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV3 Limited* 10479104  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV6 Limited* 10674493  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV9 Limited* 10536388  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV10Q Limited* 10535243  Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV1Z2 Limited* 10546753  Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Civitas SPV17 Limited* 10479036 Property investmment  England & Wales 100.00%
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Hame

Civitas Social Heusing Finance Company 3 Limited*

Registered number  Principal actiwty

Clvitas SPVI8 Limited®
Civitas SPV19 Limited*
Civitas SPV20 Limited®
Civitas SPV22 Limited*
Civitas SPV24 Limited*
Civitas SPV26 Limited*
Civitas SPV29 Limited*
Civitas SPV30 Limited*
Civitas SPV31 Limited®
Civitas SPV3Z Limited*
Civitas SPV34 Limited*
Civitas SPV36 Limited*
Civitas SFvV4Z Limited*
Civitas SPV43 Limited®
Civitas 3PV45 Limited*
Civitas SPV4é& Limited*
Civitas SPV47 Limited*
Civitas SPV48 Limited*
Civitas SPV51 Limited*
Civitas 5PV52 Limited*
Civitas SPV63 Limited*
Civitas SPV64 Limited*
Civitas SPV70 Limited*
Civitas SPV71 Limited*
Civitas SPV72 Limited*
Civitas SPV74 Limited*
Civitas SPV7E Limited*
Civitas 3PV80 Limited”

Civitas SPV8 Limited*
Civitas SPV28 Limited*
Civitas §PV33 Limited*
Civitas SPV55 Limited*
Civitas SPV57 Limited*
Civitas SPVE0 Limited™
Civitas SPVE] Limited*
Civilas SPVE6 Lumnited”
Civitas SPV77 Limited*
Civitas SPV78 Limited*
Civitas SPV79 Limited*
Civitas SPV81 Limited”
Civitas 8PVE2Z Limuted”
Civitas SPV83 Limited*
Civitas SPV85 Limited*
Civitas SPVS5 Limited*
Civitas 5PV97 Limited*
Civitas SPV103 Limned*
Civitas SPV105 Limited*
Civitas SPV106 Limited*

24

10546651  Property investment
10548932  Property invesiment
10588735 Property investment
10743958  Property investment
10751512 Property investment
10864336  Property investment
10911365 Property investment
10856025  Property investment
10974889  Property investment
11007173 Property investment
10738381  Property investment
10588792  Property investment
10738556  Property investment
10534877  Property investment
10871854  Property investiment
10871510 Property investment
10873270  Property investment
10873285  Property investment
10826693  Property investment
10827006  Froperty investment
10937805  Property investment
10938411 Property investment
10770201  Property investment
10886639 Property investment
10938022 Property investrent
11001855 Property investment
11001834  Property investment
11001998  Property investiment
10997714  Finance Company

10536157  Property investment
10895228 Property investment
11021625 Property investment
11036455  Property investment
11091444  Property investment
11111908 Property investment
10937662  Property investment
10937898  Froperty investment
11166451 Property investment
M70099 Property investment
11236544  Property investment
11192811 Property investment
11380796  Property investment
11371128 Property investment
11300749  Property investrnent
11208184 Froperty investment
11463890  Property investment
11500596  Property investment
11532177 Property investment
11532179 Property investment

Country of eorparatien

Englémd & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Fngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

Qwnership %

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.90%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.0C%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
1c0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
106.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10C.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
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Name
Civitas SPV107 Limited*
Civitag SPVI1IE Limited*
Civitas SPV117 Limited*

Civitas Social Housing Finance Company 4 Limited*
Civitag SPV23 Limited®
Civitag SPV34 Limited*
Civitas SPV59 Limited*
Civitas SPVES Limited*
Civitag SPV73 Limited*
Civitag SPV84 Limited’
Civitag SPV86 Limited*
Civitag SPV87 Limited*
Civitas SPV88 Limited*
Civitas SPVS0 Limited*
Civitag SPV9I1 Limited*
Civitag SPV92 Limited*
Civitas SPV93 Limited*
Civitag SPV94 Limited*
Civitag SPV96 Limited*
Civitag SPV100 Limited*
Civitag SPV101 Limited*
Civitag SFV102 Limited”
Civitag SFV109 Limited*
Civitag §PV112 Limited*
Civitag SPV114 Limited*
Civitas SFV115 Limited*
Civitag SPV118 Limited*
Civitag SPV121 Limited*
Civitag SPV122 Limited*
Civitas §PV126 Limited”
Civitag SPV127 Limited*
Civitas SPV129 Limited*
Civitas §PV130 Limited*
Civitag SPV131 Limited*
Civitag SPV132 Limited*
Civitag SPV145 Limited*

3PV153 Limited {previously Fieldbay Limited)*
Civitag SPV148 Limited*
Civitag SPV149 Limited*
Civitas 8PV150 Limited*
FPI CO 324 Lid*

Civitas Social Housing Finance Company 5 Limited*
Civitas SPV7 Limited®
Civitas SPV13 Limited*
Civitag SPV37 Limited”
Civitag SPV44 Limited*®
Civitas SPV49 Limited®
Civitas SPVSE Limited*
Civitag SPV62 Limited*
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Rggqsle«'ed nu_rr*bgr Principal acnvity

11532182
11504399
11504445
11906660
10746881
11039750
11111912
11142372
10939075
11381455
11418432
10888903
10939044
10939131
10941377
11449913
11043111
11208105
1270786
11069703
09978282
11521555
11532120
11579750
11578733
11522178
11411498
11099917
11482646
11459821
10941401
11664994
11705074
11675132
11473735
11842306
5219012
11632633
11462691
11462555
11633019
13083077
10536368
09517692
10738430
10588783
11031349
11036465
10537528

Covniry of mcorporation Cwnership %
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Finance Company England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investrnent  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Waleg 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Waleg 100.00%
Property Investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investrnent England & Wales 100.00%
Propernty investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investrnent  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Holding company England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Finance Company England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investnent England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment England & Wales 100.00%
Property investment  England & Wales 100.00%
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Narne

Registered number  Principal achvity

Civitas SPV6S5 Limited”
Civitas 8PV67 Limited*
Civitas SPVEB Limited*
Civitas SPV98 Limited*
Civitas SPV99 Limited*
Civitas SPV104 Limited*
Civitas SPV108 Limited*
Civitas SPV113 Limited*
Civitas SPV123 Limited®
Civitas SPV133 Limited*
Civitas SPV134 Limited*
Civitas SPV135 Limited*
Civitas SPV136 Limited*
Civitas SPV143 Limited*
Civitas 5PV144 Limited*
Civitas SPV146 Limited*
Bryn Eithin (2019} Limited*
Civitas SPV147 Limiteq®
Mynydd Mawr (2019) Limited*
Civitas SPV152 Limited*
Civitas SFV155 Limited*
Clvitas SPV156 Limited*
Civitas 8PV157 Limited*
Civitas SPV158 Limited*
Civitas §PV160 Limited*
Bedford SPV1 Limited*
Bridge Property Herts Limited*
Bridge Propco Limited*
FPI Co 294 Lid*
Civitag 3PV14 Limited*
Civitas SPV16 Limited*
Civitas 5Fv2! Limited*
Civitas SPV159 Limited*

10938467
10937929
10938269
11478695
1478707
11532174
11532135
11580068
08253452
11698972
11689461
11579880
11579760
11546808
11546696
11861500
11844898
11861974
11844917
11955719
12044281
12081083
12188610
12202674
12272906
12315518
12435985
12445439
11519226
10479041
09917557
10631541
12258313

Property investi‘neﬁt
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property invesunent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investrnent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Holding Company

Property investment
Holding Company

Property investment
Property investinent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment

Country of ncerporgtion

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Engiand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Engiand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Walesg
Engiland & Wales
England & wWales

En_gland & Wales -

100.06%

Ownership %

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
1600.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

" These entities are exernpl from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating ta the audit of iIndnndual financial statements by wirtue of Sectian 479A of that Act These are all entities that have  year

end of 31 March 2021

The reqgistered addresses for the subsidiaries are consistent based on their country of incorporation and are as follows:

» England & Wales entities; Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, Devon, EX4 4EP

= Jersey entities: 12 Castle Street, 5t Helier, Jersey. JE2Z 3RT

33.0 Financial risk management

338 Fitanual mnsirusmsnia

The Group's principal financial assets and habilities are those that arise directly from its cperations: irade and other

receivabiles, trade and other payables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group's other principal financial Lahilities are bank
borrowings, the main purpose of which is to finance the acquisition and development of the Group's investment property
portiolio, and interest rate dervatives as detailed in notes 20.0 and 21.C

26
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All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except interest rate derivatives, which are measured at fair value. All
financlal instruments were designated in thelr current categories upon nitial recogniticn.

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are
carried in the financial statements:

Book vaue Fair value Baok value Fair value

31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
£000 £000 £000 £aon
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables’ 11,667 11,667 8.595 8,595
Cash and cash equivalents o . 107,097 107,097 58374 58374
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables? 8,699 8,699 7498 7498
Bank borrowings 352,120 354,142 269170 269174
Interest rate derivatives 544 544 478 478

1 Excludes prepayments and debtors arising on rent smoothing.
2 Exciudes deferred incorme and tax habilives

The Group has five bank loans: a 10-year fixed rate lcan of £52.500.000 provided by Scottish Widows Limited: a 3-year revolving
credit facility variable rate loan of £60.000.000 provided by Lloyds Bank plc: a 3-year reveolving credit facility variable rate loan

of £100,000,000 provided by HSBC Bank PLC; a 5-year revolving credit facility variable rate loan of £60,000,000 provided by N
Naticnal Westminster Bank Plc; and a 7-year fixed rate loan of £84,550,000 with M&G Investment Management Limited. The fair o=
value of the fixed rate loan is determined by comparing the discounted future cash flows.

Financia: risk management

The Group is exposed to market nsk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the current and future years. The Beoard of :
Directors cversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees pclicies for managing each of -
these risks that are summarised below.

23 e ol
The Group's activities will expose it primarily to the market risks asscciated with changes in property values and changes in
interest rates.

Risk relating to investment in property

Investment in property is subject to varying degrees of risk. Scme factors that affect the value of the investment in property
include:

o changes in the general economic climate;

e competition for available properties;

¢ obsoclescence; and

®» government regulations, including planning. envirenmental and tax laws.

Variations in the above factors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence the financial
performance of the Group.
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Risk relating to liquidity funds classified as cash and cash equivalents

The Group holds positions 1n two AAA rated hquidity funds that invest in a diversified range of government and non-
government money market securities, which are subject to varying degrees of nsk. Some factors that atfect the value of the
liguidity funds include:

e the performance of the underlying government and non-government money market securities; and
e Interestrates.

Variations in the above factors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence the financial
performance of the Group.

333 Interest pats yisi
Interest rate nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate because of changes in
markel Inierest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk principally arises from long-term borrowings. To manage this. the Group has entered into a fixed
rate bank loan and three variable rate bank loans. The Group has entered into an interest rate swap cn the 5-year loan facility
with National Westminster Bank Plc in order to mitigate the nsk of rising interest rates.

At 31 March 2021, 55% (2020: 41%) of the Group's borrewings are subject to a fixed rate of interest,

The exposure of the Group to variable rates of interest is considered upon drawing of any new loan facilities, to ensure that the
Group's exposure 1o interest rate fluctuations is within acceptable levels.

The Investment Adviser monitors the Group's exposure to any changes in interest rate on an ongoing basis, with the Board
updated on a quarterly basis of the current exposure of the Group's loan facilities.

As at 31 March 2021 if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/(lower) with all other variables held constant the impact
on profits after taxation for the year would be as below. The Investment Adviser anticipates these levels are reasonably
possible based on the observation of current market conditions that interest rates would not fluctuate more than 1%.

3% March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 E'000

(_becreasé)lincrease in profits due to interest rates
100 bagls points higher {529} {1016}
100 basgis pom'is lower ) 1,600 1538

The average effective interest rates of financial instruments at 31 March 2021 were as follows,

31 March 2027 31 Mareh 2020
% %

Bank berrowings - fixed rate ' 293584 231950
Bank borrowings — variable rate 1.75639 2.80046
Cash and cash equivalents 7 - 0.11048

The Group's borrowings with Lloyds Bank plc, HSBC Bank PLC and National Westminster Bank Flc will be transinomnng from
the London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) benchmark to Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA} benchmark in due course.
There i5 expected to be negligible cost involved in the horrowing facility transiuon and the respective hedge instrument
amendments.

T et rin.

Credut risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligatiens under a financial instzument or customer contract,
leading 1o a financial loss. The Group 15 exposed (o credit nisks from both its leasing activities and financing activities,
in¢luding deposits with banks and financial institutions
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Debtors and accrued income represernt rent due cor accrued. these amounts due are diversified between a number of
different Approved Providers of differing financial strength, see note 28.0 for details of the different counterparties. Nene of
the Approved Providers have listed debt and as such dc not have a credit rating, however, the diversified nature of this asset
supports the credit quality.

The Group has policies in place tc ensure that rental contracts are entered into only with lessees with an appropriate credit
and operational history, and limits exposure t¢c any one tenant. The credit risk is considered to be turther reduced as the
source of the rents received by the Group is ultimately provided by the Government, by way of housing benefit and care
provision, via a diverse range of Local Authorites.

For detalls of provisicns for impairment please refer to note 17.0.

Credit risk related to financial instruments and cash deposits

Cne of the principal credit risks of the Group will arise with the banks and financial institutions. The Board cf Directors believes
that the credit risk on short—term deposits and current account cash balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
considered tc be of gocd credit quality. In the case of cash deposits held with lawyers, the credit risk is limited because the
cash is held by the lawyers within client accounts at banks with high credit quality.

The credit ratings for banks where balances are held by the Group are as follows:

Llcyds Bank plc A+/F1
HSBC Bank plc A+/Fl
RBS International Limited ASTI

National Westminster Bank plc A+/F1

Ratings advised by Fitch

a5 Tnundany g s

The Group manages its liquidity and funding risks by considering cash flow forecasts and ensuning sufficient cash balances
are held within the Group to meet future needs. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of financing through appropriate and adequate credit lines, and the ability of customers
10 settle obligations within normal terms of credit. The Group ensures, through forecasting of capital requirements, that
adequate cash is available.

The following table details the Group's maturity profile in respect of its financial instrument liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Cn demand <1year 1-5 years > 5 years Folai

o £000 £000 £000 £000 £000_
31 March 2021 '
Trade and other payables 8,699 - - - 8,699
Bank borrowings - 67,909 181,048 144 602 293,559

8,699 67,909 181,048 144602 402258

31 March 2020

Trade and other payables 7498 - - - 7498
66,896 174,785 55,002 296,683

" 7498 66896 174785 55002 304181

The profile above shows the maturity profile at 31 March 2021 and included within the contracted payments is £36,509,000
{2020: £24,183 000) of loan interest payable up to the point of maturity,
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34.0 Capital commitments

At 31 March 2021, the Company had no outstanding capital commitments {2020: £22,100,000). As at 31 March 2020, £12,100,000
related to two properties under development for which the Company had entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement contingent on the completion of development. £10,000.000 related to a capital payment tor the same properties
contingent on the operators achieving certain financial obligations.

Amounts totalling £Nil (2020 £850.000) have been allocated for capital works expenditure on properties, subject to future
proating activities to ensure the longevity of occupation by residents.

35.0 Post balance sheet events

SCQGUISINOT

In April 2021, the Group completed the purchase of a portfolio consisting of 13 existing specialist supported housing properties
for 81 adults with learning difficuites in South Wales together with two appurtenant day care accommodation facilities which
are integral to the care provided to the adults in the supported iiving accommedation. The purchase price was ¢.£10,900.000.

In May 2021, the Group also successfully completed on the acquisition of an additicnal portfolio of 10 properties each let to an |
existing Approved Provider on a 15 year lease for which the purchase price was c£8.600,000.

irtuesadean i

On 11 May 2021 the Board declared a quarterly dividend in respect of the Ordinary shares for the three months to 31 March 2021
of 1.350 pence per Ordinary share totalling £8.396,000. The dividend was paid on 11 June 2021 to holders of Ordinary shares on
the register as at 21 May 2021, The dividend was pald as a REIT property incame distnibution {'PID7.

PUESE] LT AN SR T S

From 1 April 2021, the remuneration of the Directors, Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chairman and Chaitrman’s

annual fee will increase by 4%. The Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chairman will also recewve an additional

£1.000 annually. i

[ BT LTSI

The facility with Lloyds Bank plc has also been successfully re-financed with a 2 year Revolving Credit Facility expiring in
July 2023, ;

Sode o Ty, shafes
Since the year end, the balance of the Company's shares held in treasury (563 000) were sold. Gross consideration before the
deduction of fees was £654,000. The Company no longer holds any shares in treasury.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2021

31 March 2021 51 March 2020

_ L Note E000 £000

Assets

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiaries ) 7.0 720,918 706,920

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 80 3,644 4,727

Cash and cash equivalents 9.0 15,447 29.011
- - o 19,091 23738

Total assets S _ o 740,009 740,658

Liabilities

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

Trade and other payables 0.0 (17M,655) (191,942)

T o {171,655) (191,942)

Total liabilities (171,655) (191.942)

Total net assets ' - 568354 548715

Equity

Share capital 11.0 6.225 6,225

Share premium reserve 292 462 292,405

Capital reduction reserve 331,140 330,926

Accumulated losses 120 (61,473) (80.,840)

Total equity o ) - 568354 548716

The Company has taken advantage of the provisions of Companies Act 2006 5408 and does not disclose the Company's
individual profit and loss account. Profits for the year were £52,780,000 (2020: loss of £9,110,000).

The Company financial statements on pages 131 to 137 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas Social
Housing PLC and authorised for issue and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Direclor

29 June 2021

Company No: 10402528

The notes on pages 133 to 137 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC |  REPORT ANG ACCOUNTS 2021 3



Companyfstatement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Share Capital
Share premym reduchan Total

o ) £600 "Fo00 To0o e £508
Balance at 1 April 2019 6,225 292,408 3316258 138,760} 591,495
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (8.110) (9,110)
Issue of Ordinary shares
Share bought back Into treasury - - (699) - (639)
Dividends paid
Total interim dividends for the year ended - - - {32.970) {32.970)
31 March 2020 (5.30p) o o
Balance at 31 March 2020 o 6225 292405 330926  (80840) 548716
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 52,780 52,780
Issue of Ordinary shares
Share reissued from treasury - 57 214 - 2n
Dividends paid
Total interim dividends for the year ended - - - {33,413) (33,413)
31 March 2021 (5.375p) o i
Balance at 31 March 2021 6225 292462 351140  (61473) 568354

The notes on pages 133 to 137 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1.0 Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (“the Company”) was inceorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 as a public
company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC which was
subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 October 2016.

The address of the registered office is Beaufort House, 51 New North Road. Exeter, Devon EX4 4EP. The Company is registered
as an investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 in England and Wales and 1s domiciled i the
United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange ("LSE").

The Company's Ordinary shares have been admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA"), and are
traded on the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate parent company of its subsidiaries (the "Group’) and to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income, together with the potential for capital growth from investing in a portfclio of
social homes.

2.0 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histcrical cost basis and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements ("FRS 1007, Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework ("FRS 1017 and the Companies Act 2006 as applicakle to companies using FRS 101

[n preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition. measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards ("Adopted IFRSs™), but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS 101
Therefore, these financial statements do not include:

e certain comparative information as otherwise required by IFRS;

» certain disclosures regarding the Company's capital;

& certain disclosures in relation to [FRS 15 Revenue Contracts with Customers:

s astatement of cash flows;

e the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted;

e the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

e disclosure of related party transactions with other whoelly owned members of Civitas Social Housing PLC.

In addinon, and m accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent disclosures
are included in the Company's consolidated financial staternents. These financial statements do not include certain
disclosures in respect of:

e share based payments;
e financial instruments; and
s fair value measurement other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial instrurnents at fair value.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its own 1Income
statement or statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Cdﬁipéhﬁ Financial Statements

continued

Naw standards, amendinents and inlerpratations
The following new standards are now effective and have been adopted for the year ended 31 March 2021

e Amendments to IAS1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”: (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020). These amendments ¢larify
the definition of ‘material. The amendments make the standards more consistent but have no significant impact on the
preparation of these financial statements.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

As discussed in the Group financial statements above, the underlying assets of the Company benefit from a secure income
stream and to date performance has not been negatively impacted by COVID-19.

The Company financial statements show an accumnulated loss, however this is due 1o a time-lag on proefits from subsidiary
companies being moved up the structure in the form of dividends.

The Company has a net current liability position of £152 564,000 (2020: £158,204,000). This balance arises due to the
intercompany balances totalling £169.465,000 (2020: £187,911,000) with the Company's subsidiary companies. The amounts
principally relate to bank loans drawn in the Company's subsidiary companies in order to finance the purchase of new
acquisitions in accordance with the Group's business model. The directors of the subsidiary companies have provided a letter
of comfort that they will not seek repayment of these balances within the next 12 months.

Alter review of these items, the Directors believe there are currently no matenal uncertainties in relation to the Company's
ability to continue for a period of at least 12 months from the date of the Company's financial statements and therefore it is
appropriate that the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

BURAfrang gy drpes ceprn A Dast D L L et aneertaea

The key source of estirnation uncertainty relates to the Company's investment in Group companies, and is stated in the
Company's separate financial statements at cost less impairment losses, if any. Impairment losses are determined with
reference to the investrment’s fair value less estimated costs of disposal. Fair value is derived from the subsidiaries’, and their
subsidiaries’, net assets at the balance sheet date, [nvestment properties held by the subsidiary companies are supported
by independent valuation. Judgements and assumptions associated with the property values of the Investments held by the
subsidiary companies are detailed in the Group financial statements.

3.0 Accounting policies
The financial statements of the Company follow the accounting policies laid out in the Group's consclidated financial
statements along with the following accounting policies which have been consistently applied:

I smanants i i id e,

The investments in subsidiary companies are included in the Company’s Statement of Financial Positicn at cost less provision
for impairment Impairment losses are determined with reference to the investment's fair value less estimated selling costs. Fair
value is derived fram the subsidiaries’, and their subsidiaries’ net assets at the balance sheet date. On disposal. the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is included in the inceme statemnent.

The investment in a subsidiary company may include both the purchase of shares and an intercompany loan which is
subsequently capitalised n return for shares in the subsidiary company. The intercompany loan capitalised is disclesed in
note 7.0 as a transfer between the shares and loan columns.

Laan i n subsidiare=s

Loans made to subsidiary companies which arise as part of the transactions for the acquisition of investments and are
subsequently capitalised by the issue of shares are recognised as investment in subsidiaries at cost. At the point the loan is
capitalised, this transacton is recognised as a transfer within the table in note 7.0.
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Notes to the Cdmpany Financial Statements

continued

Ainounts due (0 subsihary L ompr snaes
Balances arising with subsidiary companies of a temporary nature are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

4.0 Dividends
Dividends are included in the financial statements in the year in which they arc paid. Details of dividends paid and proposed
are included in note 14.0 of the Group's consolidated financial statements.

5.0 Employee information
Details of Directors remuneration are included in note 6.0 of the consolidated financial statements. The Company had no
employees during the year (2020 nil).

6.0 Audit fees
Audit fees in relation 1o the Company's financial statements total £272.000 (31 March 2020: £195.000). For further details, please
refer to note 9.0 of the Group financial statements.

7.0 Investments in subsidiaries

For the

Shares in Loans 1o year ended

subsidiaries subsdianes 31 March 2021

L o ) - o £00C £000 ‘000

Balance at the beginning of the year 678,247 28,673 706,920

Increase in investments 928 14,383 15,311

Loans transterred 25,573 {25,573) -

Impairment S {1.313) - (1,313)

Atthe end of the year S 703,435 17483 720918
Following a review comparing cost of investments to the underlying net assets of subsidiary companies. an umpalrment

provisicn has been made of £1,313,000 (2020: £n1l).

| - Shares in Loansto  For the year ended

subsidiarnes sLbsidianes 31 March 2020

£000 €000 £'000

Balance at the beginning of the year (as restate&) - 596.208 86,288 676,496

Increase in investments 4,015 28,232 32,247
Loans transterred 84,024 (84,024) -
Additions due to internal group restructure 93,289 - 93,289
Disposals due to internal group restructure (93.289) {1,823} (95,112}
Kt the end of the year o ) 678‘2_4_77 7 ' 58.67"3_ __7%%

Internal group restructures have taken place 1n the year in order to facilitate borrowings. As part of the restructures, a number
of subsidiary companies where the assets are used as security for bank loans are now directly held by other Group companies.

8.0 Trade and other receivables

51 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 00

£'0
Trade receivables _ - S a o 722 -
Frepayments and other receivables 1,433 3,357
Accrued income 1489 1370
Total B  3g44 477

Frepayments and other receivable amaounts include prepaid legal and professional fees of £200,000 (2020: £469.000) that have
been incurred in connection with acquisitions yet to be completed and £817,000 (2020: £1.695.000) in respect of uncempleted
works on the property porticlio.
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No'fg.s to the Cdmpanv Fiil;;&"i;i_gtatém_ B o o o

continued

9.0 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000

Cash held by solicitors o - 720 3419
Liguidity funds 10,485 10.475
Cash held at bank - o 3,381 338
Cash and cash equivalents T - 14,586 14,232
Restricted cash ) o o 861 14779
Total cash held atbank i 15,447 25,011

Liquidity funds refer to money placed in money market funds. These are highly liquid funds with accessibility within 24 hours
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held in escrow for expenses expected 1¢ be incurred in relation 16 investment properties
pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

Restricted cash represents amounts held tor specific commitments, tenant depoesits and retention money held by lawyers in
relation to deferred payments subject to achievement of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund
repalr, maintenance and improvement works to bring the properties up 10 satisfactory standards for the Group and the
tenants.

10.0 Trade and other payables

3 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000

. £000
Retentions ) - - 490 2653
Accruals 450 580
Dividends payable 892 738
Deferred income 358 -
Amounts due o subsidiary companies _ 169,465 18791
Total _ o ] - o 17,655 191942

11.0 Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary shares.

Fou the For the
yeas ended year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000

Share capital
At beginning and end of year ] 6,225 6,225

For the year ended  Far the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
000 _E'000

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Atbeginning and end of year 622461380 622461380

The Company holds 565,000 (2020: 815,000) Grdinary shares in treasury. The number of Ordinary shares used to calculate the
net asset value is 621.896.380 (2020: £21.646 380).
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

continued

12.0 Accumulated losses
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Company

Fou the For the

year ended, yearended

31 Merch 2021 31 March 2020

N S ) £000] £000

Balance at the beginning cf the year (80,840) {38,760)
Profit/{loss) for the year 52,780 (9.,110)
Dividends paid inrtheﬁyeiar ) (33,413) (32.970)
At end of year - o (61.473)  (8C,840)

13.0 Controlling parties
As at 31 March 2021, there is no ultimate centrolling party.

14.0 Related party transactions
For all related party transactions and transactions with the Investment Adviser please rmake reference to notes 30.0 and 31.0 of
the Group's consolidated financial statements, along with note 10.0 of the Company financial staternents.

15.0 Post balance sheet avents

AR TH T B3

In April 2021, the Group completed the purchase of a portiolic consisting of 13 existing specialist supported housing properties
for 51 adulis with learning difficulties in South Wales together with two appurtenant day care accommodation facilities which
are Integral to the care provided to the adults in the supported living accommedation. The purchase price was ¢.£10,900.000.

In May 2021, the Group also successfully completed cn the acquisition of an additional portfolioc of 10 properties each iet to an
existing Approved Provider on a 15 year lease for which the purchase price was ¢£8,600,000.

Thaoarienaed s

On 11 May 2021, the Board declared a quarterly dividend in respect of the Ordinary shares for the three months te 31 March 2021
of 1.350 pence per Crdinary share totalling £8,396,000. The dividend was paid on 11 June 2021 to helders of Ordinary shares on
the register as at 21 May 2021. The dividend was paid as a REIT property income distribution ("PID").

B $Hem

From 1 April 2021, the remuneration of the Directors, Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chairman and Chairman’s
annual fee will increase by 4%. The Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chairman will also receive an additional
£1,000 annually.

P vy
The facility with Lloyds Bank plc has alsc been successtully re-financed with a 2 year Revolving Credit Facility expiring in
July 2023.

Hale o Troasuary Sl
Since the year end, the balance of the Company's shares held in treasury (565,000) were scld. Gross consideration before the
deduction of fees was £654.000. The Company no longer holds any shares in treasury.
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of 1p each are gquoted
on the Official List of the FCA and traded on the premium
segment of the Main Market of the LSE.

SEDOL number BDSHBD3

ISIN GBOOBDSHEDZ2 -
Ticker/TIDM  CSH -
LEI 213800PGBGB4]BGMEFI5

Frequency of NAV Publication
The Company's NAV is released to the LSE on a quarterly
basis and published on the Company's website.

Sources of Further Information

Copies of the Company's Annual and Half-Yearly Reports,
Stock Exchange announcements and further infermation
on the Company can be obtained from its website:
www.Civitassocialhousing.com.

Share Register Enquiries
The register for the Company’s Ordinary shares is
maintained by Link Group. In the event of queries
regarding your holding, piease contact the Registrar

on 0371 664 0300 (calls are charged at the standard
gecgraphic rate and will vary by provider, calls outside
the UK will be charged at the applicable international
rate). Lines are open between 9.00am to 3.30pm, Monday
to Friday, excluding public helidays in England and
Wales. You can also email enquiries@linkgroup.couk.

Changes of name and/or address must be notified in
writing to the Registrar: Link Group, 10th Floor, Central
Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds, LS14DL

Key Dates

June Annual results anno{mc_gL %ﬂ B
Payment of first dividend T

September  Company's half year end B

o L Annual general meeting

o Payment of second dividend )

December Half-y?aarly resuits announced

o Payment of third dividend o

February ~_FPayment of fourth dividend ,

March _ Company's year eg B

Association of Investment Cbit?]:ra;ies o o
The Company is a member of the AIC, which publishes
statistical information in respect of member companies.
The AIC can be contacted on 020 7282 5555, enquiries@
theaic.co uk or visit the website: www theaic.couk.

140

Electronic Communications from the Company
Shareholders now have the opportunity to be notfied by
email when the Company's Annual Report. Half Yearly
Report and other formal communicaticns are available on
the Company's website, instead of receiving printed copies
by post. This has etvironmental benefits in the reduction of
paper, printing, energy and water usage, as well ag reducing
costs 1o the Company.

If you have not already elected to recelve electronic
communications from the Company and wish to do so, please
contact the Registrar
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Glossary

ALMO means an arm's length management organisation,
a not-for-profit company that provides housing services
on behalf of a Local Authority.

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs} means

a financial measure of histcrical or future financial
performance, financial position, or cash flows, other than
a financial measure defined or specified in the applicable
financial reperting framewocrk.

Approved Provider means Approved Providers, Local
Authorities, ALMQOs, Community Interest Comparnies,
Registered Charities and other regulated organisations
directly or indirectly in receipt of payment from local or
central government including the NHS.

Care Provider means a provider of care services to the
occupants of Specialist Supported Housing, registered
with the Care Quality Commission.

CIM means Civitas Investment Management Limited or
CIM {formerly known as Civitas Housing Adviscrs Limited
until its change of name on 7 May 2020).

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulator of
Comrnunity Interest Companies as a community interest
company and registered as such with Companies House.

Company means Civitas Sccial Housing PLC, a company
incorporated in England and Wales with company
number 10402528.

CMA Order means the Statutory Audit Services Order
2014, issued by the Competition and Markets Authority.

Current Leverage means the percentage taken as total
bank borrowings gver total assets.

Dividend Yield means the ratio of the total annual
dividend payments over market price per share.

EPRA means the Eurcpean Pubiic Real Estate Assoclation.

EPRA EPS is the EPRA earnings divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue in the period.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV”) is a new
EPRA NAV metric which assumes that entities never sell
assets and aims to represent the value required te rebuild
the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA") is a new EPRA
NAV metric which assumes that entities buy and sell
assets, thereby crystallising certain levels of unavcidable
deferred tax.
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EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV™) is a new EPRA
NAV metric which represents the shareholders’ value
under a disposal scenaric, where deferred tax, financial
instruments and certain other adjustments are calculated
to the full extent of their liability, net of any resulting tax.

EPRA Run Rate means the ratio of a company's earnings
{excluding fair value gains/losses) over dividends paid to
shareholders.

Gross Asset Value means total assets.
Group means the Company and its subsidiaries.

Housing Association cr HA means an independent
society, body of trustees or company established for
the purpose of providing low-cost social housing for
pecple in housing need generally cn a non-profit
making basis. Any trading surplus is typically used to
maintain existing homes and to help finance new cnes.
Housing Associations are regulated by the Regulator of
Social Housing.

IFRS Net Asset Value o1 IFRS NAV means the net asset
value of the Group on the relevant date, prepared in
accordance with IFRS accounting principles.

Investment Adviser means Civitas Investiment
Management Limited (*CIM"), a company incorporated in
England and Wales with company number 10278444, in its
capacity as investment adviser tc the Company.

IPO means Initial Public Cffering.
IRR means internal rate of return.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of return including
the impact of debt.

Local Authority or LA means the administrative bedies
for the local government in England comprising of 326
authorities (including 32 London boroughs).

Net Initial Yield means the ratic of net rental income
and gross purchase price of a property.

NHS means the publicly funded healthcare system of
the United Kingdom comprising The National Health
Service in England, NHS Scotland, NHS Wales and Health
and Social Care in Northern Ireland. including, for the
avoidance of doubt, NHS Trusts.

NHS Trust means a legal entity, set up by order of the
Secretary of State under section 25 of, and Schedule 4 to,
the National Health Service Act 2006, to provide gocds
and services for the purposes of the health service.
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Glossary

continued

Ongoing Charges (previcusly Total Expense Ratios

or TERs) means the figure published annually by the
Company which shows the drag on performance caused
by operational expenses. More specifically, it is the
annual percentage reduction in sharehoclder returns as
a result of recurring operaticnal expenses assuming
markets remain static and the portfolio is not traded.
Although the Cngoing Charges f{igure is based on
historical information, it provides shareholders with an
indication of the likely level of costs that will be incurred
in managing the Company in the future.

Portfolio means the Group's portfelio of assets.

Portfolio Net Asset Value or Portfolio NAV means the
net asset value of the Company, with assets aggregated
rather than valued on an asset by asset basis, as at the
relevant date, calculated on the basis of an independent
Portfolio Valuation. See note 7.0 to Appendix 1 for a
reconciliation to [FRS NAV.

Portfolio Basis means the Portfolic NAV {as defined
abaove)

Portfolio Valuation means an independent valuation of
the Portfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited or such other
property adviser as the Directors may select from time

to time, based upon the Portfolio being held, directly or
indirectly, within a cerporate vehicle or eguivalent entity
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
otherwise prepared in accordance with RICS “Red Beok”
guidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real estate investment trust in
accordance with the UK REIT Regime intraduced by the
UK Finance Act 2006 and subsequently re-written into
Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

‘42

RICS means Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

RSH means the Regulator of Social Housing, the
executive non-departmental public body, sponscred
by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government, which is the regulator for Social Homes
providers in England and Wales.

Social homes or social housing means social rented
homes and other accommodation that are offered at
rents subsidised below market level or are constituents
of other appropriate rent regimes such as exempt rents
or are subject to bespoke agreement with entities such as
NHS Trusts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or SSH means social
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancillary service cn the premises.

SPV means special purpese vehicle, a corporate vehicle
in which the Group's properties are held.

Target Return means the target return on investment.

Valuation means an independent valuation of the
Partiolio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited or such other
property adviser as the Directors may select from
time to time, prepared in accordance with RICS "Red
Book” guidelines and based upon a valuation of each
underlying investrnent property rather than the value
ascribed to the porticlio and on the assumption of

a theoretical sale of each property rather than the
corporate entities in which all of the Company's
investment properties are held.
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Non-executive Directors
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Peter Baxter, Senior Independent Director
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ABpendix 1(unaudited): Notes to the calculation
of EPRA and other alternative performance measures

1.0 EPRA Earnings

For the year ended  For the year ended
51 March 2021 31 March 2020

Earnings from o;}érational activities

Profit after taxation (E'000) 36,075 37728
Change in fair value of dernvative financial instruments (£'000; 656 478
Changes in value of investment properties (£'000) . (5.511) (9.389)
EPRA Earnings (£000) ' ' 30,630 28814
Weighted average number of shares in issue (adjusted for shares held in treasury) T 621,651,859 622103.798
EPRA Earnings per share (EPS) - basic & diluted T T 493p RZI,GSp_

2.0 New EPRA NAV Metrics
EPRA has advised three new NAV measures to replace the EPRA NAV & EPRA NNNAV.

For Civitas Sacial Housing Group. the EPRA NAV calculation has been reblaced by the EPRA Net Reinstatement Value and the

EFRA NNNAV by the EPRA Net Disposal Value Upon adoption of these new metrics there are no changes 1o these calculalions.

A1 FTELL Nt Repantar i ent Wi
EPRA NAV metric which assumes that entities never sell assets and alms ta represent the value required to rebuild the entity.

TMarch 2021 I March 2020

Net assets (€000} ‘ 673498  670.564
Fair value Qf derivative financriral instrumerts (£'600 - ) ) - _ 544 47_8_
EPRA Net Reinstatement Value {(£'00C) 674,042 671‘0_{13

Numker of Crdinary shares in issue'(adjusted for shates held in treésurs-z) 621,896,380 621.646,380
EPRA Net Reinstatement Value per share i08.38p 107.95p

2.2 EPPa Nt Tangine as g

EPRA NAV metric whjich assumes that entities buy and sell assets, thereby crystallising certain levels of unavcidable deferred
1ax.

’ B 31 March ZDZT 31 March 2020
Net assets (£000) T o T . 673498 670564
Fair value of denvative financial instruments (£'000) 544 478
EPRA Net Tangible Assets (£000) o 674042 §71042
Number of (D_rdlnafy shares in i;s“u—eﬂidjﬁsted for sha_fgs held in treasury) - 621,896,380 621646380
EPRA Net Tangible Asset per share 108.38p 107.95p

R EIRL M e T tanal Talue
EPRA NAV metric which represents the shareholders value under a disposal scenario, where deferred tax financial
instruments and certain other adjustments are calculated to the full extent of their liability, net of any resulting tax.

3t March 2G21 31 March 2020

Net assets (£000) ' ) 675498  670.554
Fair value of bank borrowings (£'000) 7 o ) 2022) (3.004}
EPRA Net Disposal Value (£000) S 671,476 66_7_,560

Number of Ordinary shares in issue (adjusted for shares held in treasury) 621,896,380 521.646,380
_EPR:A Net Dis_p_qsa] Vaku(_e per share 107.97p  107.3%p
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation
of EPRA and other alternative performance measures

continued

%.0 EPRA Net Initial Yield

31 March 2023, 31 March 2020

[nvestment property (£'000)
Allowance for estimated purchasers’ costs {(£'000)

915,589 878,743
53,753 51182

Gross up completed preperty portfolrriioi(E'Qpiq)mw
Annualised net rents (£'000)
Add: notional rent expirauon of rent free periods or other lease incentives (E000)

969,342  929.925

50.78§ 48,891

Topped-up nEt__gnnualis__(_ed rent
EPRA NIY
EPRA topped-up” NIY

50760]  48.89

5.24% 5.26%
5.24%) 5.26%

4.0 EPRA Vacancy Rate
Estimated Market Rental Value ("ERV") of vacancy space divided by ERV of the whole portfolic.

3iMarch2021 _31March 2620

Eéiiﬁlated Market Rental Value (ERV) of vacant spaces (E‘Eod)

Estimated Market Rental Value (ERV) of whole porticlio (£000)
EPRA Vacancy Rate

5.0 EPRA Costs Ratio
Administrative and operating costs divided by gross rental income.

50.380 48,416

0% 0%

i For the For the
year ended year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

o £000 £000

9,787 9.860

Total administrative and aperating costs and bad debt expenses (£'000)
Gross rental income (excluding bad debt expense) (E'000)

48,134 45,9086

EPRA cost ratic

6,0 EPRA Tabie of Capital Expenditure

20.35%  2148%

Acquisitions including incidental costs of purchase

Investment properties pertfolio expenditure
Enhancing lettable space
Tenant incentives

Total Capital ExpendithE -

Conversion from accruals to cash basis

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

Forthe For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2000 £000

16,108 36,747

4077 1758
1217 3.844
3402 42349
215 9,626
31617 52175
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation
of EPRA and other alternative performance measures

continued

7.0 Portiolic NAV
IFRS NAV adjusted te reflect investment property valued on a portfolio basis rather than individual asset basis.

31 March2020

. o . o S\Mecch 2021
Net assets (£'000) 673,498 670.564
Adjustment for change to property valuation (£000) 63,270 65,140
Portfolio net assets (£'000) 736,768 735704
Number of Ordinary shares in issue (adju_s_ted for shares heid in treasury) 621,896,380 621,646,380
Portfolio Net Assets per share S 118.47p 118.35p
8.0 Leveraged Internal rate of return (IRR)
B B ) - S - 31March 2021 31 March 2620
IFRS NAV per share 108300p 107.870p
31 May 2017 Interim dividend 0.750p 0.750p
31 August 2017 Interim dividend 0.750p 0.750p
30 November 2017 Interim dividend 0.750p 0.750p
9 March 2018 Interim dividend 0.750p 0.750p
8 June 2018 Interim dividend 1.250p 1.250p
7 September 2018 Interim dividend 1.250p 1.250p
30 November 2018 Interim dividend 1.250p 1250p
11 January 2019 Intenim dividend 1110p 1110p
28 February 2019 Interim dividend 0.140p 0.140p
7 June 2018 Interim dividend 1325p 1325p
6 September 2019 Interim dividend 1325p 1325p
23 November 2019 Interim dividend 1325p 1325p
28 February 2020 Interim dividend 1.325p 1325p
12 June 2020 Interim dividend 1325p -
7 September 2020 Interim dividend 1.350p -
4 December 2020 Interim dividend 1350p -
1 March 2021 Interim dividend 1.350p -
T 126975p  121170p
IFRS NAV per share at launch 98.00p 98.00p
Levered IRR 6.54% £6.82%
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